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Share Capital

Share holders' equity

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible asset

Long term investment

Long term loan, advances and rec

Long term deposits

Stock in trade

Trade debts 

Total current assets

Total current liabilities

Short term borrowings

Current portion of non-current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

 9,779 

 1,834 

 12,581 

 -   

 22,661 

 -   

 10 

 7,332 

 8,287 

 20,642 

 39,179 

 6,594 

 5,442 

 10,160 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

 9,779 

 (29)

 13,716 

 -   

 5,729 

 16,931 

 10 

 4,860 

 9,349 

 18,549 

 36,376 

 738 

 3,729 

 13,372 

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross pr

Operating pr

Financial charges

(Loss) / pr fore taxation

(Loss) / pr ter taxation

(Loss) / earnings per share

79,434 

 73,419 

 6,014 

 3,253 

 2,309 

 718 

 1,367 

 1.40 

94,807 

 89,941 

 4,866 

 2,935 

 2,758 

 (151)

 72 

 0.07 

 9,779 

 (14,279)

 14,928 

 -   

 5,729 

 -   

 7 

 8,778 

 10,245 

 38,589 

 37,786 

 6,402 

 2,655 

 16,216 

 92,545 

 92,136 

 409 

 (2,695)

 2,793 

 (6,325)

 (5,937)

 (6.07)

 9,779 

 (8,667)

 17,625 

 3 

 5,729 

 -   

 14 

 5,704 

 12,124 

 20,537 

 29,470 

 6,800 

 1,636 

 17,848 

 66,187 

 66,111 

 76 

 751 

 2,645 

 (2,085)

 (2,259)

 (2.31)

 9,779 

 (6,723)

 18,373 

 6 

 5,729 

 -   

 19 

 2,956 

 9,729 

 14,483 

 37,177 

 7,650 

 2,442 

 2,574 

 19,453 

 21,170 

 (1,717)

 (233)

 2,965 

 (3,197)

 (3,078)

 (3.15)

 9,779 

 (3,992)

 18,678 

 9 

 2,087 

 2,346 

 21 

 4,113 

 6,658 

 12,598 

 29,497 

 -   

 1,933 

 4,305 

 38,944 

 38,169 

 775 

 246 

 2,096 

 (1,850)

 (1,987)

 (4.91)
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2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Gross Pr %

Pr fore Tax %

Net Pr %

EBITDA Margin to sales %

Return on equity %

7.57%

0.90%

1.72%

5.60%

20.86%

5.13%

-0.16%

0.08%

4.44%

1.39%

0.45%

-6.83%

-6.42%

-1.83%

-117.52%

0.12%

-3.15%

-3.41%

2.67%

66.23%

-8.82%

-16.44%

-15.82%

4.76%

-270.00%

1.99%

-4.75%

-5.10%

2.41%

-79.30%

Current Ratio   Times

Quick / Acid Test Ratio  Times

 0.53 

 0.34 

 0.51 

 0.38 

 1.02 

 0.78 

 0.70 

 0.50 

 0.39 

 0.31 

 0.43 

 0.28 

Interest coverage ratio  Times

Debt to equity ratio  Times

 1.41 

 12.10 

 1.06 

 (615.14)

 (0.96)

 (1.77)

 0.28 

 (3.03)

 (0.08)

 (2.21)

 0.12 

 1.42 

Earnings per share    Rs.  1.40  0.07  (6.07)  (2.31)  (3.15)  (4.91)

Inventory turnover  Days

Debtors turnover   Days

Creditors turnover  Days

Inventory turnover  Times

Debtors turnover   Times

Creditors turnover  Times

Total assets turnover ratio  Times

Fixed assets turnover ratio Times

 30.31 

 40.52 

 143.39 

 12.04 

 9.01 

 2.55 

 1.42 

 6.31 

 27.67 

 37.72 

 119.75 

 13.19 

 9.68 

 3.05 

 1.71 

 6.91 

 28.69 

 44.11 

 95.39 

 12.72 

 8.27 

 3.83 

 1.56 

 6.20 

 23.90 

 60.30 

 111.00 

 11.60 

 5.46 

 3.29 

 1.51 

 3.76 

 60.90 

 153.70 

 446.60 

 6.58 

 2.00 

 0.82 

 0.50 

 1.06 

 43.20 

 63.40 

 258.40 

 9.47 

 5.85 

 1.41 

 1.09 

 2.09 
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2016

In the name of Allah the Most Merciful and the 
Most Benevolent.

The Directors of your Company are pleased 
to present the Annual Report of the Company 
together with the audited, stand alone and 
consolidat tements and 
auditors’ report thereon for the year ended 
30th June, 2016.

GLOBAL OIL PRICES AND PAKISTAN
ECONOMY
This was another challenging year for the oil 
sector as declining price trend continued to 
persist in most part of the year. The price of 
crude oil has f ce 2014, 
r owing down of demand, high 
global crude oil production and inventories. 
During the review year, oil prices have further 
declined by about 23%.

 

Pakistan, being a net importer of oil, has 
t rom falling global oil 

prices as oil generally constitutes about 20% 
of the country’s import bill. With the availabili-
ty of fuel at substantially lower price com-
pared to prior years, the domestic consump-
tion increased substantially and during the 
year, 22% growth was recorded in the 
consumption of Motor Spirit(MS) followed by 
4% growth in High Speed Diesel (HSD). The 
gov
of decreased oil prices to general public. This 
has been a catalyst for increasing the 
consumption of petrol and has also helped in 
c rate to lowest seen in the 
last 10 years.

Product share in country consumption

Seeing the enhanced consumption of MS, the 
government has taken a proactive view on 
environment and has revised c -
cations for MS by introducing 92 Research 
Octane Number (RON) MS. This should 
improve the consump
vehicles and protect the environment. 87 RON 
will continue to be sold alongside 92 RON.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE
We are pleased to inform that despite facing 
strong competition your Company was able 
to continue its stride to further penetrate the 
market by increasing volume of its sales by 
27% in current year. However this increase in 
volume was o set by a 23% reduction in oil 
prices. The Company recorded gross sales in 
current year at Rs. 115.40 billion compared to 
Rs. 119.41 billion last year.

In order t rom the declining product 
price trend, the Company pursued growth in 
higher margin products by making products 
available to the customers through its own 
r rough product import via Single 
Point Mooring (SPM) which pro -
cy in terms of costs and time. In all, 41 vessels 
berthed at the SPM including the largest ever 
product vessel which called at the Country, 
carrying over 100,000 metric tons of petrole-
um product, thereby proving the reliability and 
e ectiveness of Byco SPM. Currently the SPM 
is handling about 9% of country’s total oil 
imports, which is expected to increase in 
coming years.

Byco advantages of employing SPM are as 
follows:
 Berthing and un-berthing can be provided 

 at the SPM 24/7 without dependence on
 high tide whereas this facility is not available
 at other ports of the country. Monsoon
 operations however are handled di erently.
 The SPM does not require channels for

 approach; rather, it is approachable from
 360 degr ows.
 The SPM is designed to berth Very Large

 Crude Carriers (VLCC) as it has a maximum
 depth of 25 meters compared to 12 - 14
 meters depth of other existing ports of the
 country
 The SPM is designed to sustain adverse

 weather conditions

T exibility of SPM to handle crude oil as 
well as petroleum products provided an 
opportunity to the Company to focus more 
on import of products at opportune pricing. 
We are also pleased to inform that the Oil & 
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Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) has also 
provided its formal approval for import of 
white oil petroleum products through SPM 
subsequent to the end of the year.

The Company earned gross pr s. 6.01 
billion in current year as compared to Rs. 
4.90 billion last year primarily due t -
cantly high sales volume, import of products 
at competitive pricing and improved market-
ing margins. 

Manufacturing, administrative and selling & 
distribution expenses remained within budget 
and the Company earned operating pr
Rs. 3.2 billion which is 11% higher compared to 
last year. The Company remained under the 
regime of minimum tax on turnover basis in 
the current year as well. 

Based on above results, pr ter tax for the 
year amounted to Rs. 1.4 billion (2015: Rs. 72 
million) and earnings per share for the year 
was Rs. 1.40 compared to Rs. 0.07 per share 
last year. On a consolidated basis, the Com-
pany’s Group earnings per share amounted to 
Rs. 0.40 (2015: loss per share of Rs. 0.66). 
There has been a delay in payment of 
Government dues (as mentioned in note 21 to 

tements) due to delay in 
recovery / utilization of funds for clearing 
some old outstanding government dues.

In summary, above results r
Company’s integrated business approach, 
improved operational performance and 
resilienc s. The under 
revie rove-
ment in the turnover of the Company and we 
look forward to continued improvement in the 
years to come.

For a more comprehensiv -
cials of your Company over the last six years, 
refer to page 8.

BYCO TERMINALS PAKISTAN LIMITED - 
Subsidiary Company

The Single Point Mooring (SPM) project of our 
subsidiary company, Byco Terminals Pakistan 
Limited (BTPL), operated successfully 
throughout the year and continued to provide 
support for economical crude oil and product 
imports. During the year, 41 vessels berthed 
on SPM compared to 29 vessels last year 
which demonstrat contribu-
tion of SPM in facilitating the quickest and 
economical oil import. As stated above, in 
order to expand the usage of SPM, your 
Company started importing all petroleum 
products through the SPM facility for onward 
supply to marketing company.

BTPL incurred net loss of Rs. 280 million (2015: 
Rs. 480 million) primarily due t
charges on long term loan. It is expected that 
these losses will positively be recovered in 
subsequent years with the increased utiliza-
tion of SPM facility and storage terminals.

BYCO ISOMERISATION PAKISTAN 
(PRIVATE) LIMITED - Subsidiary Company

The Isomerisation unit was operated for some 
duration of the year however, due to the 
unfortunate ev re at Parent Company’s 
r feedstock disrupted as 
a result of which the unit was shut down. It is 
expected that the unit will be operated with 
the Parent Company’s r 017.

BIPL incurred a net loss of Rs. 913 million in 
current year primarily due to the depreciation 
of Rs xed assets. It is expect-
ed that with the commencing of operations of 
Byco Oil Pakistan Limited’s (BOPL) r
large quantity of Naphtha will be processed 
next year which will help in improving BIPL 
pr ty. 

2016

112015/16



DIESEL HYDRO DESULPHURIZATION 
(DHDS)
Your Company is committed to install a DHDS 
unit which reduces the Sulphur contents in 
Diesel to make it more environmental friendly 
and Euro II compliant. The Government has 
set deadline of June 2017 for completion of 
DHDS unit by all the r every e ort 
is being made to achieve the deadline set by 
the Government however, there might be 
some delays in completing this project on the 
given timeline.

REASONS FOR NOT DECLARING
DIVIDEND
Considering the C commit-
ments, the Directors do not recommend any 
appropriations for the year ended 30th June 
2016.

AUDITORS’ OBSERVATION
The auditors have included a paragraph in their 
report whereby they have highlighted the use 
of going concern assumption followed in 
prepar tements. Their 
observation is based on some negative 
indicators like accumulated losses and net 
current liability position. The management 
has taken several steps to address the above 
issue by improving the supply chain and cash 
conversion cycle, tapping new customers in 
r consumer sales businesses, 
improved businesses integration etc. as a 
result of which the sales volume increased and 
the Company show r ter 
tax. 

Based on the above factors, the management 
is of the view that these negative conditions 
are temporary and would reverse in foreseea-
ble future. Therefor tements 
have been prepared on going concern basis.

MERGER OF BYCO OIL PAKISTAN LIMITED 
AND BYCO TERMINALS PAKISTAN LIMITED 
WITH AND INTO THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors (the Board) of the 
Company in a meeting held on 14th April, 2016 
considered and approved in principle a 
potential merger of the Company, its wholly 
owned subsidiary Byco Terminals Pakistan 
Limited and the Parent Company in accord-
ance with terms of a scheme of arrangement 
prepared under the provisions of Section 284 
to Section 228 of the Company’s Ordinance, 
1984, subject to the sanction of the High 
Court of Sindh. 

Under the said scheme, the Company would be 
the surviving entity. The C
petition with the High Court on 24th June 2016 
and is in the process of completing the required 
legal and corporate formalities relating to the 
said arrangement.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Acknowledging diversity in the interest and 
expectation of its stakeholders your Company 
being a responsible Corporate Citizen, continu-
ously makes e orts to positively impact com-
munities in and around which it is operating.

One of the strategic priorities of your Company 
for sustained development is Community 
engagement. Working closely with the local 
communities your Company manages 
socio-economic impact of its business activities 
on them. Company’s Management Training & 
Internship programs and other on job training 
opportunities contribute in developing skill set of 
local workforce, hence, supporting them in their 
sustainable economic development. Your 
Company extends continuous support and 
assistance in the form of providing emergency 
medical treatment, ambulance service, availabili-
ty of drinking water, educational and sports 
activities.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH, SAFETY AND 
SECURITY (EHSS)

2016
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During last year the focus of the Company 
remained on EHSS and specially to realize 
Process Safety as an integral part of all 
operations. Training and dev
on occupational and process safety remained 
the center of attention. 

DuPont has been engaged for assisting the 
Company to excel in process safety and 
inculcating inherent safety approach in 
selection and design of asset as well as 
eliminating where appropriate and minimizing 
error inducing environment at work place.

Contractors had been extensively included in 
all training and development programs. Water 
and energy conservation at r was one 
of the EHSS objectives.

Despite of distr re incident that halted 
the operations of our parent company’s 
r ccupational health and safety 
performance remained intact and no lost time 
injury or occupational health related incident 
took place at r complex, terminals and 
retail outlets.

A total of 1.22 million safe man hours were 
achieved during last year and cumulatively 
10.55 million safe man hours were achieved 
since November 2005 without a Lost Time 
Injury (LTI) and Total Recordable Injury Rate 
(TRIR) for the year was 0.284 per million man 
hours.

Your Company has introduced solar panels at 
some of its retail stations whereby basic 
electric requirements are being met through 
green energy. The Company intends to 
deploy more of these panels on its retail 
stations. In addition, tree plantation is part of a 
consistent activity carried out by the Compa-
ny along with observing Earth Day.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL 
EXCHEQUER
During the current year, your Company 
contributed an amount of Rs. 36 billion to the 
national exchequer on account of direct and 
indirect taxes and levies. In addition the 
Company brought valuable foreign exchange 
of approximately US$ 73 million into the 
economy, through the exports of petroleum 
product thereby contributing towards reduc-
ing burden on the country’s balance of 
payment.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has been and remains committed 
to the conduct of its business in line with the 
code of corporate governance and the listing 
regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange. As 
required by the Code of Corporate Governance,
following is the statement of compliance with the 
Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of 
the Code:

The Directors are pleased to c

 T tements, prepared by the
 Management of the Company, present its
 state of a airs fairly, the results of its
 operations ows and changes in equity. 

 Proper books of accounts have been main-
 tained in the manner required under the
 Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

 Appropriate accounting policies have been
 consistently applied in prepar
 statements. Accounting estimates are based
 on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

 International Financial Reporting Standards, as
 applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
 prepar tements and
 deviation if any, has been adequately
 disclosed. 

 The system of internal control is sound in
 design and has been e ectively implemented
 and monitored. 

 During the year twelve meetings of the Board
 of Directors were held and attendance by the
 directors was as follows: 

2016
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
 The pattern of shareholding and additional

 information as at June 30, 2016 appears on
 page 109 of the Annual Report of your
 Company 
 Byco Oil Pakistan Limited holds 80.84%

 shares tutions and banks hold 
 0.37% shares, and 18.79% shares are held

VALUE OF INVESTMENT IN POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT FUND 
The value of investment of provident fund on the basis of unaudited accounts is as under:

As at June 30 (Rs. in ‘000)
2016

89,039
2015

99,440

by individuals. 
 No trading in the shares of the Company 

was carried out by the directors, executives or 
their spouses and minor children during the 
year except that mentioned in “Pattern of 
Shareholding”.

Name of Director                    Number of Meetings Attended

Mr. Amir Abbassciy (Appointed on 26th May 2016)     2
Mr. Muhammad Mahmood Hussain (Appointed on 26th May 2016)   1
Mr. Akhtar Hussain Malik (Appointed on 26th May 2016)    1
Mr. Syed Arshad Raza (Appointed on 26th May 2016)    1
Mr. Omar Khan Lodhi (Appointed on 26th May 2016)    1
Mr. Chaudhary Khaqan Saadullah Khan (Appointed on 26th May 2016)  2
Mr. Mohammad Wasi Khan (Appointed on 1st April 2016)    5
Mr. Muhammad Raza Hasnani       11
Mr. Javed Akbar (Resigned on 1st February 2016)     5
Mr. Syed Muhammad Mujtaba Jafarey (Resigned on 31st March 2016)  6
Mr. Hamid Imtia Resigned on 30th April 2016)    9
Mr. Ovais Mansoor Naqvi (Resigned on 26th May 2016)    Nil
Ms. Diana Brush (Resigned on 26th May 2016)     7
Mr. Richard Legrand (Resigned on 26th May 2016)     6
Mr. Philip Harris (Resigned on 26th May 2016)     7

Meetings Attended

Muhammad Raza Hasnani       4
Philip Harris (upto 26th May 2016)      2
Diana Brush (upto 26th May 2016)      2
Muhammad Mahmood Hussain (from 26th May 2016)    Nil
Syed Arshad Raza (from 26th May 2016)      Nil

The Board of Directors gave leave of absence to those directors who were unable to attend.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable services rendered by outgoing 
directors on Board.

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year. Attendance by each member was 
as follows:

Meetings Attended

Muhammad Raza Hasnani       1
Hamid Imtia to 30th April 2016)      1
Diana Brush (upto 26th May 2016)      1
Akhtar Hussain Malik (from 26th May 2016)     Nil
Syed Arshad Raza (from 26th May 2016)      Nil

Strategy & Risk Management Committee 
The Strategy & Risk Management Committee held one meeting during the year. Attendance 
by each member was as follows:

2016
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS 
The auditors Messrs EY Ford Rhodes Char-
tered Accountants retired and o ered them-
selves for reappointment. The Audit Commit-
tee has recommended the reappointment of 
Messrs EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Account-
ants as auditors for the year ending June 30, 
2017.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board wishes to express appreciation and 
place on record its gratitude for the co‐opera-
tion extended to your Company by Govern-
ment of Pakistan and strategic partners 

tutions, vendors, 
suppliers, customers and shareholders of your 
Company.

We would also like to thank our dedicated 
employees for their commitment towards 
sustainable operations during these trying 
times.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

2016

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 
Karachi
September 06th 2016
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2016

Muhammad Mahmood Hussain

1.  The Company encourages representation
 of independent non-executive directors
 and directors representing minority
 interests on its board of directors. As at
 30th June 2016, the board consisted of:

 The independent director meets the criteria
 of independence under clause 5.19.1. (b) of
 the CCG.

2. The directors have c re
 not directors on the boards of more than
 seven listed companies, including this
 Company.

3. All the resident directors of the Company
 are registered taxpayers and none of them
 has defaulted in the payment of any loan to
 a banking company, a DFI or NBFI, or being
 a member of a stock exchange, has been
 declared a defaulter.

4. During the year seven casual vacancies
 occurred on the board, which were created
 by the resignations of Mr. Javed Akbar on
 1st February 2016, Syed Muhammad
 Mujtaba Jafarey on 31st March 2016, Mr.
 Hamid Imtia 30th April 2016, Ms.
 Diana Brush, Mr. Ovais Mansoor Naqvi, Mr.
 Philip Harris and Mr. Richard Legrand on
 26th May 2016. Mr. Mohammad Wasi Khan
 was appointed a chief executiv cer t
 the casual vacancy on  1st April 2016.
 Mr. Amir Abbassciy, Mr. Muhammad  
 Mahmood Hussain, Mr. Akhtar Hussain
 Malik, Syed Arshad Raza, Mr. Omar
 Khan Lodhi and Mr. Chaudhary Khaqan
 Saadullah Khan were appointed directors to
 vacancies on 26th May 2016.

5. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of
 Conduct’ and has ensured that appropriate
 step have been taken to disseminate it
 throughout the company along with the
 supporting policies and procedures.

6. The board has developed vision and mission
 statements, overall corporate strategy and
 s. A complete record of
 particular policies along with the dates on
 which they were approved or amended has
 been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly
 exercised and decisions on material
 transactions, including the appointment and
 determination of remuneration and the
 terms and conditions of employment of the
 Chief Executiv cer, other executive and
 non-executive directors, have been taken by
 the Board / shareholders.

8. During the year the Board met twelve times.
 The meetings of the Board were presided
 over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by
 a director elected by the Board for this
 purpose. Written notices of the Board
 meetings, except urgent meetings, along
 with the agendas and working papers were
 circulated at least seven days before the
 meetings and the minutes of the meetings
 were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. While almost all the directors are
 professionals and senior executives who
 possess wide experience and awareness of
 the duties of directors, the Company
 intends to comply with the directors’ training
 programs for its recently elected directors,
 as required by the Code.

10. During the year, the Board has approved the
 appointment of Mr. Asad Azhar Siddiqui, as
 the Chief F cer of the Company
 on 26th May 2016, which was created by the
 resignation of Mr. Imran Shaikh, and the
 appointment of Mr. Majid Muqtadir, as the
 Company Secretary of the Company on 1st

 May 2016, which was created by the
 resignation of Ms. Shahana Ahmed Ali,
 including remuneration and terms and
 conditions of employment. There was no
 change in the position of the Head of
 Internal Audit.

11. The director’s report for this year has been
 prepared in compliance with the
 requirments of the Code and fully describes
 the salient matters required to be disclosed.

Mohammad Wasi Khan

Amir Abbassciy
Akhtar Hussain Malik
Syed Arshad Raza
Muhammad Raza Hasnani
Omar Khan Lodhi
Chaudhary Khaqan Saadullah Khan

2016
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2016

12. T tements of the Company
 were duly endorsed by the CEO and CFO
 before approval of the board.

13. The directors, chief executiv cer and
 other executives do not hold any interest in
 the shares of the Company other than what
 has been disclosed in the pattern of
 shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the
 corporat reporting require
 ments of the Code.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee,
 comprising of three members, all of whom
 are non-executive directors and the
 Chairman of the Committee is an independ- 
 ent director.

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were
 held atleast once every quarter prior to
 approval of int results of the
 Company and as required by the Code. The
 terms of reference of the committee have
 been formed and advised to the committee
 for compliance.

17. The Board has formed a Human Resource
 and Remuneration Committee by the name
 of Strategy & Risk Management Committee,
 comprising of three members, all of whom
 are non-executive directors, including the
 Chairman of the Committee.

18. The Board has setup an e ective internal
 audit function for the Company, which is
 consider experi  
 enced for the purpose.

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have
 c ave been given a
 satisfactory rating under the quality control
 review program of the Institute of Chartered
 Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or
 any partner
 minor children do not hold shares of the
 c
 partners, are in compliance with the Interna 
 tional Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
 guidelines on the Code of Ethics as adopted
 by the ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons
 associated with them have not been
 appointed to provide other services except
 in accordance with the listing regulations
 and the auditors have c
 have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21. The ‘closed period’ prior to the announce- 
 ment of int results, and
 business decisions that may materially
 a ect the market price of the Company’s
 shares, was determined and intimated to the
 directors, employees and the Pakistan Stock
 Exchange.

22. Material / price sensitive information was
 disseminated among all market participants
 at once through the Pakistan Stock
 Exchange.

23. We c other material principles
 enshrined in the Code have been fully
 complied with except for the mechanism for
 the annual evaluation of the board’s own
 performance which is not yet established,
 toward which reasonable progress is being
 made by the company to seek compliance
 by the end of next accounting year.

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executiv cer

September 06th, 2016
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of 
Corporate Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Byco Petroleum Pakistan 
Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2016 to comply with the requirements of Rule Book of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Chapter 5, Clause 5.19.23 (b) of the Code of Corporate Governance, 
where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively veri ed, whether the 
Statement of Compliance re ects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code 
and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the 
Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the nancial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the account-
ing and internal control systems su cient to plan the audit and develop an e ective audit approach. We are 
not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and 
controls, or to form an opinion on the e ectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate 
governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors’ for their review and approval its related party 
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in 
arm‘s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording 
proper justi cation for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured 
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board 
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to 
determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately re ect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
best practices contained in the Code, as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2016.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement of the Code as re ected in 
paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance: 

I. 9 Arrangement for directors’ training program is currently in progress.

II. 23 The mechanism for development of an annual evaluation plan to 
evaluate the Board of Directors’ own performance is currently in 
process.

06th September 2016
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We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited as at 30 June 2016 
and the related unconsolidated pr ccount, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income,
unconsolidat ow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes 
forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare 
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free
of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the acc
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due v we report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b) in our opinion:

 i) the unconsolidated balance sheet and unconsolidated pr ccount together with the notes ther eo
  have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of
  account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied except for changes as stated
  in note 3.3 to the unconsolidat tements, with which we concur;

 ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

 iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance 
  with the objects of the Company.

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidate
 balance sheet, unconsolidated pr ccount, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income,
 unconsolidat ow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes
 forming part thereof, conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the
 information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and
 fair view of the state of the Company’s a airs as at 30 June 2016 and of the pr comprehensive income, its cash
 ows and changes in equity for the year then ended; 

d) in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980;

e) We draw attention to note2 to the unconsolidat tementswhich states that the Company has accum
 lated losses as at 30 June 2016 amounting to Rs. 7,944.149 million and its current liabilities exceed its current assets by
 Rs. 18,536.626 million. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertaint
 doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the unconsolidat
 ments have been prepared on going concern basis based on the mitigating factors, as more fully explained in note 2
 to the unconsolidat tements. Our opinion is no respect of the above matters.

06th September 2016
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Unconsolidated Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2016

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

222015/16

ASSETS     
     
NON-CURRENT ASSETS        

Property, plant and equipment 5 12,580,784  13,715,845 
Long-term investment - at cost 6 22,660,762  5,729,258 
Long-term advance 7 -  16,931,504 
Long-term deposits 8 10,278  9,803 

  35,251,824  36,386,410 
CURRENT ASSETS     

Stores and spares  293,148  279,196 
Stock-in-trade 9 7,331,755  4,859,615 
Trade debts  10 8,286,897  9,349,396 
Loans and advances  11 3,038,152  1,497,310 
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments  12 26,500  23,188 
Interest accrued  497,688  572,610 
Other receivables 13 934,402  1,280,500 
Cash and bank balances 14 233,383  687,576 

  20,641,925  18,549,391 
     
TOTAL ASSETS  55,893,749  54,935,801 
      
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
     
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES     
     

Share capital 15 9,778,587  9,778,587 
Accumulated losses  (7,944,149)  (9,807,784) 

   1,834,438  (29,197) 
    
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT 
    AND EQUIPMENT 16 4,720,991  5,217,476 
     
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Long-term nancing and deferred mark-up 17 9,975,319  12,224,800 
Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease 18 -  1,730 
Long-term deposits 19 130,978  108,978 
Deferred liabilities 20 53,472  1,036,268 

  10,159,769  13,371,776 
     
CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Trade and other payables 21 26,647,202  31,037,413 
Accrued mark-up 22 95,692  183,727 
Short-term borrowings - secured  23 6,593,696  737,609 
Current portion of long-term nancing and deferred 
mark-up  5,442,326 

 
3,729,000 

Current portion of liabilities against assets subject to 
nance lease  4,362 

 
4,970 

Taxation – net  395,273  683,027 
  39,178,551  36,375,746 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24    
     

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  55,893,749  54,935,801 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director



Unconsolidat
For the year ended 30 June 2016

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)
Note

232015/16

Sales– net 25 79,433,874  94,807,329 
     
Cost of sales 26 (73,419,493)  (89,940,833) 
  6,014,381  4,866,496 
Gross pro t     
     
Administrative expenses 27 (561,244)  (553,605) 
Selling and distribution expenses 28 (2,540,254)  (2,628,920) 
Other expenses 29 (978,393)  (801,036) 
Other income 30 1,318,577  2,051,774 
  (2,761,314)  (1,931,787) 
     
Operating pro t  3,253,067  2,934,709 
     
Finance costs 31 (2,535,445)  (3,086,143) 
     
Pro t/(Loss) before taxation  717,622  (151,434) 
     
Taxation 32 649,876  223,731 
     
Pro t after taxation   1,367,498  72,297 
     
Earnings per ordinary share – basic and diluted (Rupees)                   33 1.40  0.07 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

Unconsolidat

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director



Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2016

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

242015/16

Pro t after taxation   1,367,498  72,297 
     
Other comprehensive income for the year     
     
Items that may not be reclassi ed subsequently to pro t and loss 
account 

 
   

     
Actuarial loss on re measurement of de ned bene t obligation  (348)  (2,476) 
     
Total comprehensive income for the year  1,367,150  69,821 
     
The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director



Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2016

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)
Note

252015/16

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
 
 Pro t / (loss) before taxation  717,622  (151,434) 
 Adjustments for non-cash and other items:     
  Depreciation 5.1 1,196,719  1,272,064 
 Finance costs 31 2,535,445  3,086,143 

Provision for doubtful debts 10.2 680,548  399,608 
Provision for gratuity 20.2.6  18,990  23,799 
Interest income 30 (514,500)  (780,826) 

 Gain on disposal of operating xed assets 30 (2,974)  (944) 
 Net cash ow before working capital changes  4,631,850  3,848,410 
      
 (Increase) / decrease in current assets     
  Stores and spares  (13,952)  (74,896) 
  Stock-in-trade  (2,472,140)  3,917,892 
  Trade debts   381,952  984,516 
  Loans and advances   (1,540,842)  (660,842) 
  Trade deposits and short-term prepayments   (3,312)  91,491 
 Other receivables  346,098  (615,265) 
   (3,302,196)  3,642,896 
 (Decrease) / increase in current liabilities     
  Trade and other payables  (4,338,832)  2,713,772 
 Cash (used in) / generated from operations  (3,009,178)  10,205,078 
 
     Finance costs paid  (743,321)  (1,565,658) 
     Income taxes paid  (635,426)  (351,125) 
     Gratuity paid  (18,000)  (26,000) 
  Interest income  received   120,000  154,667 
 Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities  (4,285,925)  8,416,962 
      
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

  Fixed capital expenditure  (64,191)  (92,593) 
  Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets  5,507  4,719 
  Long term deposits – net  21,525  19,011 
 Net cash used in investing activities  (37,159)  (68,863) 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
 
  Repayment of long-term nancing  (1,984,858)  (2,455,000) 
  Short term borrowings   5,856,087  (5,664,499) 
      Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease - net  (2,338)  (13,659) 
 Net cash generated from / (used in) nancing activities  3,868,891  (8,133,158) 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  (454,193)  214,941 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  687,576  472,635 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  233,383  687,576 
 

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements.

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director



Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016

(Rupees in ‘000)
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Balance as at 1 July 2014  9,778,587  (24,057,777)  (14,279,190) 
       
Net pro t for the year  -  72,297  72,297 
       

Other comprehensive income  -  (2,476)  (2,476) 
       

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  69,821  69,821 
       
Transfer of revaluation surplus relating to non-

current assets classi ed as held for sale sold 
o  during the year 

 

-  13,661,086  13,661,086 
       
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on       

revaluation of property, plant and        
equipment – net of deferred tax        -  519,086  519,086 

       
Balance as at 30 June 2015   9,778,587  (9,807,784)  (29,197) 
       
Balance as at 1 July 2015  9,778,587  (9,807,784)  (29,197) 
       
Net pro t for the year  -  1,367,498  1,367,498 
       

Other comprehensive income  -  (348)  (348) 
       

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  1,367,150  1,367,150 
       
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on       

revaluation of property, plant and        
equipment – net of deferred tax  -  496,485  496,485 

       
Balance as at 30 June 2016  9,778,587  (7,944,149)  1,834,438 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid-up capital

Accumulated
loss

Total

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director



Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2016
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1 Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited 
company on 09 January 1995 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and was granted a certi cate of 
commencement of business on 13 March 1995. The shares of the Company are listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange. The registered o ce of the Company is situated at The Harbour Front, 9th Floor, Dolmen 
City, HC-3, Block 4, Marine Drive, Clifton, Karachi – 75600, Pakistan. Byco Oil Pakistan Limited (the 
Parent Company) holds 80.84% (30 June 2015: 80.84%) shares in the Company. The Parent Company is 
a wholly owned subsidiary of Byco Industries Incorporated (BII), Mauritius (ultimate Parent Company).
The Company is principally engaged in the production, marketing and sale of petroleum products. 
 
The Company currently operates two business segments namely Oil Re nery Business and Petroleum 
Marketing Business. The Company commenced its crude Oil Re ning Business in 2004.The re nery has 
a rated capacity of 35,000 bpd (barrels per day). Petroleum Marketing Business was formally launched in 
2007 with 261 retail outlets across the country. 
 

1.2  The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company in a meeting held on 14 April 2016 considered and 
approved in principle a potential merger of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiary Byco Terminals 
Pakistan Limited and the Parent Company in accordance with terms of a scheme of arrangement 
prepared under the provisions of Section 284 to Section 288 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and 
subject to the sanction of the High Court of Sindh. 

1.3   These unconsolidated nancial statements are the separate nancial statements of the Company in 
which investment in subsidiaries has been accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. 

 
2. GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION 

 
As at 30 June 2016, the Company’s accumulated losses amounted to Rs. 7,944.149 million (30 June 2015:
Rs.9,807.784) million. Moreover, current liabilities of the Company exceeded its current assets by Rs.
18,536.626 million. 
 
These conditions indicate existence of material uncertainty which may cast signi cant doubt about the
Company's ability to continue as going concern, therefore, it may be unable to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. These unconsolidated nancial statements have
been prepared using the going concern assumption as the management is con dent that all these
conditions are temporary, and would reverse in foreseeable future due to the reasons given below: 

 
- the Company earned a pro t after tax amounting to Rs.1,367.498 million for the year as compared to

a pro t after tax of Rs. 72.297 million last year, showing improvement in the Company’s pro tability
as compared to last year; 

 
-

-

the sales volume of the Company has increased by 27% showing improvement in the Company’s
performance as compared to last year; 
 

the Company’s Petroleum Marketing Business (PMB) has entered into various fuel supply
arrangements with di erent marketable sectors such as shipping, power andenergy. High margin 
aviation fuel export market has also been tapped through these arrangements. Further, during the 
year, PMB segment has increased their retail business by entering into di erent dealer nanced, 
semi- nanced and company nanced agreements for opening of various retail outlets across the 
country. These factors of PMB segment has been and is expected to yield signi cant contribution
towards the pro tability of the Company; 
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- the Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) has approved the recovery of crude oil transportation 
through Inland Freight Equalization Margin (IFEM) pool which would result in future cost savings for 
the Company. Further, the Competition Commission of Pakistan has also issued its opinion in favour 
of the Company in this respect; 

 
- the Company is contemplating a restructuring plan of the Group Companies which would bring 

e ciencies in the operations as stated in note 1.2; 
 

- the Company is continuously reviewing its administrative costs, operating expenditures as well as 
capital expenditures, with a view to optimize the associated bene ts through reduction / elimination 
of such costs as they nd appropriate; 

 

- the ultimate Parent Company has also given its commitment to provide nancial support to the 
Company as and when required. The support is available during the current nancial year and beyond 
that; and 

 
- the management has also prepared nancial projections to demonstrate the nancial bene ts of 

above measures. 
 

The results of the above e orts, activities and actions are expected to contribute signi cantly towards 
the pro tability, cost reduction, cash ows and equity position of the Company and mitigate the risks 
involved; therefore, the preparation of unconsolidated nancial statements on going concern 
assumption is justi ed. 
 

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
3.1 Statement of compliance 
 
 These unconsolidated nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting 

standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are 
noti ed under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements di er, the provisions of, or directives issued under the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984, shall prevail. 

 
3.2 Accounting convention 
 

These unconsolidated nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
except for: 
 
- De ned bene t gratuity plan which is carried at present value of de ned bene t obligation net of fair 

value of plan assets in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 "Employee Bene ts", as disclosed in 
note 20.2; and 

 
- Property, plant and equipment which are carried at revalued amount in accordance with IAS 16 

“Property, Plant and Equipment” as disclosed in note 5.1.2 
 
3.3 Adoption of amended standards 
 
 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated nancial statements are 

consistent with those of the previous nancial year except as described below: 
 

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments 
 
The Company has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments and interpretation 
of IFRSs which became e ective for the current year: 

IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 11 – Joint Arrangements 
IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement 
IAS    27 – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 
IAS    28 – Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
 
The adoption of the above accounting standards did not have any material e ect on the nancial 
statements. 
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 The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be e ective from the dates mentioned below against the 
respective standard or interpretation: 

  

  
Standard or Interpretation 

E ective date 
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after) 
   
 IFRS 2: Share-based Payments – Classi cation and Measurement of Share-

based Payments Transactions (Amendments) 
01 January 2018 

 IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in 
Other Entities and IAS 28 Investment in Associates – Investment Entities: 
Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendment) 

01 January 2016 

 IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates 
and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) 

Not yet nalized 

 IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint 
Operation (Amendment)   

01 January 2016 

 IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative 
(Amendment)   

01 January 2016 

 IAS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment) 01 January 2017 
 IAS 12 Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses 

(Amendments)   
01 January 2017 

 IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38  intangible assets - Clari cation 
of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendment) 

01 January 2016 

 IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment IAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture: Bearer 
Plants (Amendment) 

01 January 2016 

 IAS 27 – Separate Financial Statements – Equity Method in Separate Financial 
Statements (Amendment) 

01 January 2016 

   
 The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the 

Company's nancial statements in the period of initial application. 
 
 In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards 

have also been issued by the IASB in September 2014. Such improvements are generally e ective for 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2016. The Company expects that such 
improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's nancial 
statements in the period of initial application. 

 

 Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be noti ed by the SECP for 
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan. 

  
  

Standard or Interpretation 
IASB E ective date 

(annual periods 
beginning on or after) 

   
 IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classi cation and Measurement 01 January 2018 
 IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016 
 IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 January 2018 
 IFRS 16 – Leases 01 January 2019 
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3.4 Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions 
 
 The preparation of these unconsolidated nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting 

standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that a ect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the 
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
Actual results may di er from these estimates. The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised 
if the revision a ects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision a ects 
both current and future periods. 

   
 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a signi cant risk of material adjustments 

to the unconsolidated nancial statements in the subsequent years are as follows: 
 

 i) Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment (note 4.1 and 5.1);  
 ii) Impairment against investment in subsidiaries (note 4.2); 
 iii) Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade (note 4.3 and 9); 
 iv) Provision for doubtful debts and other receivables (note 4.5 and 10.2); 
 v) Impairment against other nancial and non- nancial assets (note 4.8);  
 vi) Estimates of receivables and payables in respect of sta  retirement bene t schemes (note 4.11and 

20.2); 
 vii) Provision for compensated absences (note 4.12); 
 viii) Provision for taxation (note 4.14, 20.1 and 32); and 
 ix) Contingencies (note 24.1). 
 

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

4.1 Property, plant and equipment 
  
 Owned  
  
 These are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses, if any, except forfreehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, roads and civil 
works, plant and machinery, generators and safety and lab equipments which are measured at revalued 
amounts, which is the fair value at the date of revaluation less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any, recognised subsequent to the date of revaluation. The surplus arising on 
revaluation is disclosed as surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. 

 
 Depreciation is charged to pro t and loss account, applying the straight line method whereby costs of 

assets, less their residual values, is written o  over their estimated useful lives at rates as disclosed in 
note 5.1 to the unconsolidated nancial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month 
in which the asset is available for use up to the month preceding the disposal. 
 
The carrying values of the Company’s property plant and equipment are reviewed at each nancial year 
end for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 
recoverable. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable 
amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount. 
 
Repairs and maintenance cost is written o  to the pro t and loss account in the year in which it is incurred. 
Major renewals and improvements are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic 
bene ts will ow to the Company. 
 
An item of property plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene ts are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal of property plant and equipment is 
recognised in the year of disposal. 
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 Capital work-in-progress 
  
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment, if any, and consists of 

expenditure incurred in respect of operating xed assets in the course of their acquisition, erection, 
construction and installation, including salaries and wages directly attributable to capital work-in-
progress, determined by the management. The assets are transferred to relevant category of operating 

xed assets when they are available for use. 
  
 Assets subject to nance lease 
  
 Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and bene ts incidental to 

ownership of the leased item, are stated at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Lease 
payments are apportioned between the nance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
 
Leased assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. However, if there is no reasonable 
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated 
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Depreciation, repair and 
maintenance and gain/loss on disposal of assets subject to nance lease is recognised in the same manner 
as for owned assets. 

  
4.2 Investment in subsidiary 
  
 Investment in subsidiary is initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the Company 

reviews the carrying amount of the investment to assess whether there is any indication that such 
investments have su ered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Such impairment losses or 
reversal of impairment losses are recognised in the pro t and loss account. These are classi ed as 'long- 
term investment' in the unconsolidated nancial statements. 

  
4.3 Stock-in-trade 
  
 All stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). 
  
 Raw materials 
  
 Cost in relation to crude oil is determined on the basis of First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis. Net realizable value in 

relation to crude oil represents replacement cost at the balance sheet date. 
 

 Finished products 
  
 Cost of nished products comprises of the cost of crude oil and re ning charges consisting of direct 

expenses and appropriate production overheads. Direct expenses are arrived at on the basis of average cost 
for the year per barrel of throughput. Production overheads, including depreciation, are allocated to 
throughput proportionately on the basis of normal capacity. 
 
Net realizable value in relation to nished products is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less the estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale. 

  
4.4 Stores and Spares 
  
 These are stated at moving average cost less impairment loss, if any. For items which are slow moving and / or 

identi ed as surplus to the Company's requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess book value 
over estimated realizable value. The Company reviews the carrying amount of the stores and spares on a 
regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence. 
 
Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving items where necessary and is recognised in the pro t and loss 
account. 
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4.5 Trade debts and other receivables 
  
 Trade debts and other receivables are stated at original invoice amount less provision for doubtful debts, if 

any. Provision for doubtful debts/ other receivables is based on the management’s assessment of customers’ 
outstanding balances and creditworthiness. Bad debts are written-o  when identi ed. 

  
4.6 Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 
  
 These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial 

recognition assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is an indication that a 
nancial asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable 

amount of that asset or group of assets is determined and any impairment loss is recognised for the 
di erence between the recoverable amount and the carrying value. 

  
4.7 Cash and cash equivalents 
  
 Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. For the purposes of cash ow statement, cash and cash 

equivalents comprise cash in hand and balance with banks. 
  
4.8 Impairment 
  
 Financial assets 
  
 A nancial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that 

it is impaired. A nancial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more 
events have had a negative e ect on the estimated future cash ows of that asset. 
 
Individually signi cant nancial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 

nancial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.  
 
All impairment losses are recognised in the pro t and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the 
reversal can be related objectively to an event accruing after the impairment loss was recognised. 

 
 Non- nancial assets 
  

 The carrying amounts of non- nancial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there 
is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to 
determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the pro t 
and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value-in-
use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash ows using a discount rate 
that re ects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk speci c to the assets. For 
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identi able cash ows (cash-generating units). 

 

 An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised. 

  
4.9 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
  
 The surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to the “Surplus on Revaluation 

of property, plant and equipment ” shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The said section was amended through the 
Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002. The Company has adopted following accounting treatment of 
depreciation / amortisation on revalued assets, in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated 13 January 2003: 
 

- depreciation / amortisation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value 
assigned to such assets on revaluation and depreciation / amortisation charge for the year is taken to 
the pro t and loss account; and 
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 - an amount equal to incremental depreciation / amortisation for the year net of deferred taxation is 
transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment” to accumulated loss 
through Statement of Changes in Equity to record realization of surplus to the extent of the 
incremental depreciation / amortisation charge for the year. 

 
Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the asset being disposed is transferred to accumulated 
pro t. 

  
4.10 Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings 
  
 All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly 

attributable transaction costs. 
 

Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost with any di erence between the proceeds 
(net of transaction cost) and the redemption value recognised in the pro t and loss account over the period of 
the borrowing using the e ective interest method. 

 
4.11 Sta  retirement bene ts 
  
 De ned bene t plan 
  
 The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees who have completed 

minimum qualifying period of service. The Company’s obligation under the scheme is determined through 
actuarial valuations carried out under the "Projected Unit Credit Method". The latest actuarial valuation was 
carried out at 30 June 2016 and based on the actuarial valuation; the Company had recognised the liability for 
retirement bene ts and the corresponding expenses. Actuarial gains and losses that arise are recognised in 
other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Past service costs are recognised immediately in 
pro t and loss account irrespective of the fact that the bene ts are vested or non-vested. Current service 
costs and any past service costs together with the e ect of the unwinding of the discount on plan liabilities 
are charged to operating expenses. 
 
The amount recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of de ned bene t obligation as 
reduced by the fair value of plan assets. 

 
 De ned contribution plan 
  
 The Company operates a funded provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal contributions are 

made by the Company and the employees at 8.33% of the basic salary of the eligible employees. 
  
4.12 Compensated absences 
  
 The Company accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the year in which 

these are earned. Provisions to cover the obligation are made using the current salary levels of the 
employees. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences is carried out as the management considers that 
the nancial impact is not material. 

 

4.13 Trade and other payables 
  

 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 
to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company. 

  
4.14 Taxation 
  
 Current 
  
 The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with 

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
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 Deferred 
  
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary di erences arising at the 

balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for nancial 
reporting purposes. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary di erences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised for all deductible temporary di erences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable 
pro ts will be available against which the assets may be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that the related tax bene t will be realized. As of the balance sheet date, deferred 
tax asset amounting to Rs. 1,935.022 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 3,099.337 million) has not been recognised in 
these unconsolidated nancial statements as a matter of prudence. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

  
4.15 Provisions 
  
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 

past event, if it is probable that an out ow of resources embodying economic bene ts will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to re ect the current best estimate. 

 
4.16 Liabilities and nance charges against assets subject to nance lease 
  
 Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease are accounted for at net present value of minimum 

payments under the lease arrangements. Lease payments are apportioned between the nance charges and 
reduction of lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Financial costs are charged directly to the pro t and loss account except those which are directly attributable 
to the acquisition and installation of a qualifying asset (refer note 4.1). 

 
4.17 Revenue recognition 
  
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bene ts will ow to the Company and 

revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable and is recognised on the following basis: 
 

- Sales are recognised when the signi cant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to 
the customer who coincides with the dispatch of goods to the customers. 

 

- Export sales are recognised on the basis of product shipped to the customers. 
 

4.18 Other income 
  
 Other income is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bene ts will ow to the Company 

and amount can be measured reliably. Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and is recognised on the following basis: 
 

 

- Mark-up on delayed payments charges are recognised on the time proportionate basis. 
 

- Interest income on short-term deposits and interest bearing advances are recognised on the 
proportionate basis. 

 

- Handling income including income from gantry operations and pipeline charges are recognised on an 
accrual basis. 
 

- Scarp sales and rental income are recognised on an accrual basis. 
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4.19 Foreign currencies translation 
  
 Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the exchange rates approximating those ruling 

on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates 
of exchange which approximate those prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses on translation 
are taken to pro t and loss account.    

  
4.20 Financial instruments 
  
 All nancial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently re-measured at fair value 

or amortized cost as the case may be. The Company derecognises the nancial assets and nancial liabilities 
when it ceases to be a party to such contractual provisions of the instruments. 

  
4.21 O setting of nancial assets and nancial liabilities 
  
 Financial assets and nancial liabilities are o set and the net amount is reported in the nancial statements 

only when there is legally enforceable right to set-o  the recognised amounts and the Company intends 
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

  
4.22 Operating segments 
  
 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identi ed as Chief Executive O cer of the 
Company. 

  
4.23 Dividends and appropriations 
  
 Dividends and reserve appropriations are recognised in the year in which these are declared / approved. The 

distribution of dividend is subject to the covenant as mentioned in note 17.1. 
 

4.24 Functional and presentation currency   
  
 These nancial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company’s functional and 

presentation currency.           
 

 

      
      
   
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT     
      

 Operating xed assets 5.1 12,527,158  13,662,219 
 Capital work-in-progress 5.2 53,626  53,626 
    12,580,784  13,715,845 

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)
Note
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5.1.1 The Company’s assets located at lling stations are not in possession of the Company. In view of large 
number of dealers, the management considers it impracticable to disclose particulars of assets not in 
possession of the Company as required under para 5 of part I of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984. 

 
5.1.2 During the year ended 30 June 2007, 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011, 30 June 2012, 30 June 2014 and 30 June 

2015 revaluation exercises were carried out by independent valuers resulting in surplus on revaluations 
amounting to Rs.1,901.021 million, Rs.4,062.989 million, Rs.3,484.024 million, Rs. Nil, Rs.1,150.540 million 
and Rs.66.939 million respectively. 

  
 The fair values were determined with reference to market based evidence, based on active market prices 

and relevant enquiries and information as considered necessary, adjusted for any di erence in nature, 
location or condition of the speci c property and in case where market based evidence was not available 
or not applicable due to the specialized nature of asset, than it was based on depreciated replacement 
cost method. 

  
5.1.3 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of speci c classes of operating xed assets would have 

amounted to: 

 Freehold land  46,731  46,731 
 Lease hold land  213,200  213,200 
 Buildings on freehold land, roads and civil works  746,175  1,106,108 
 Plant and machinery  4,777,931  5,011,243 
 Generators  55,975  65,365 
 Safety and lab equipments  -  8,379 
   5,840,012  6,451,026 

 

5.1.4 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as 
follows: 

 

 Cost of sales 26.1 1,104,938  1,176,275 
 Administrative expenses 27 54,138  57,594 
 Selling and distribution expenses 28 37,643  38,195 
   1,196,719  1,272,064 

 
 

 

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation 

Written 
down value 

Sale 
proceeds 

Gain  Mode of 
disposal 

Particulars of Buyer 

 Name Status Address 

   Rupees in ‘000s      

Vehicles          
          

Honda City 1,399 1,119 280 350 70 
Company 

Policy Muhammad Maroof Employee Karachi 

Honda Civic 1,288 1,288     - 690 690 Tender Hammad Ahmed 
Khan Independent Karachi 

Toyota Corolla 999 999    - 527 527 Tender Ittehad Motors Independent Karachi 

Toyota Corolla 999 999    - 457 457 Tender Ittehad Motors Independent Karachi 

Suzuki Cultus 585 585    - 440  440 Tender Ittehad Motors Independent Karachi 

Suzuki Cultus 780 780    - 530 530 Tender Muhammad Maroof Employee Karachi 

Audi 5,200 2,947 2,253 2,513 260 Company 
Policy 

Mujataba Jafarey Employee Karachi 

          

June 2016 11,250 8,717 2,533 5,507 2,974     

          

June 2015 169,597 69,525 100,072 101,016 944     

 

  
5.1.5 Details of assets disposed o  during the year: 

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note



Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2016

392015/16

5.2 Capital work-in-progress          

 The movement of capital work-in-progress during the year is as follows: 

        Transferred  Closing balance 
    Opening    to operating  30June 30 June 
    Balance  Additions  xed assets  2016 2015 
            

     (Rupees in ‘000) 
 

            
 Plant and machinery  45,084  -  -  45,084  45,084 
 Building on free hold land, 

roads and civil works 
  

229  
- 

 
- 

 
229 

  
229 

 Filling stations   8,313  -  -  8,313  8,313 
   53,626  -  -  53,626  53,626 

 
     

Note
 30June 

2016 
 30 June  

2015 
      Rupees in '000  
         
6. LONG-TERM INVESTMENT - at cost     

 Investment in subsidiaries – unlisted     
 Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited  (BTPL) 6.1 5,729,258  5,729,258 
 Byco Isomerisation Pakistan (Private) Limited (BIPL) 6.2 16,931,504   - 
       22,660,762  5,729,258 

6.1 This represents investment in BTPL – a wholly owned subsidiary, of 568,717,418 shares (30 June 2015: 
568,717,418 shares) of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 0.07 per share. BTPL is principally engaged in the 
provision of bulk storage services of petroleum products and mooring and unmooring services. 

 

  
6.2 This represents investment in BIPL – a wholly owned subsidiary, of 1,693,150,430 shares (30 June 2015: 

Nil) of Rs. 10 each. BIPL is principally engaged in blending, re ning and processing of petroleum naphtha 
to produce petroleum products such as premium motor gasoline. 

 

 

      
Note

 30June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

       Rupees in '000  
       
7. LONG-TERM ADVANCE – unsecured      
       
 Advance against investment in shares of  

Byco Isomerisation Pakistan (Private) Limited 
  

7.1 
 

- 
 

16,931,504 
  
7.1 During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company sold its Isomerisation plant to its wholly owned 

subsidiary Byco Isomerisation Pakistan (Private) Limited (BIPL) at carrying value of Rs. 16,931.504 million 
against 1,693,150,420 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each of BIPL in accordance with the Sale Agreement 
dated 27 March 2015. BIPL after completing all legal formalities issued the shares on 28 June 2016. 

 

 

 

  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  

8. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS   
      
 Lease deposit  6,955  6,955 
 Rental premises  7,089  7,089 
 Others  3,189  2,714 
  8.1 17,233  16,758 
 Current portion 12 (6,955)  (6,955) 
   10,278  9,803 

      

8.1 These deposits are interest free. 
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Note 30 June 30 June
2016 2015

(Rupees in ‘000) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
10.1 Represents amount due from Pakistan State Oil Company Limited (PSO) against supplies of products and 

on account of mark-up on delayed payments. The Company had entered into a "sale and purchase of 
product" agreement with PSO on 5 April 2002 for a period of 10 years. The said agreement states that in 
the event of late payment of invoices by PSO, the Company would be entitled to recover mark-up from 
PSO for the period of delay on daily compounding basis at the lending rates applicable for short term 
running finance of the Company or PSO whichever is lower. The mark up on delayed payments relates 
only to purchases made by PSO under agreement dated 02 April 2002, which expired on 02 April 2012. 
Subsequent to the expiry of the agreement, all purchases made by PSO do not carry any mark up on 
delayed payment. 
 
Based on the legal opinion, the management is of the considered view that the Company has a legal right 
to claim markup from PSO. Further, the Company is currently pursuing this matter with the Director 
General Oil, Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources, for the recovery / settlement of the 
outstanding amount. Hence, the management is con dent that the Company would be able to recover 
the receivable in full from PSO in due course of time. 
 
 
 

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE     
      

Raw material   9.1, 9.2& 9.3 2,389,729  682,874 
Finished products 9.4, 9.5 & 9.6 4,942,026  4,176,741 
  7,331,755  4,859,615 

9.1 This includes raw material held by a subsidiary company amounting to Rs. 585.623 million (30 June 2015: 
Rs. 210.687 million) as at the balance sheet date. 

9.2 This includes raw material in transit amounting to Rs. 1,492.395 million (30 June 2015: Rs. Nil) as at the 
balance sheet date. 

9.3 Raw material costing Rs. 2,368.790 million (30 June 2015: Rs. Nil) has been written down by Rs. 22.287 
million (30 June 2015: Rs. Nil) to net realizable value. 

9.4 This includes nished product held by third parties and related parties amounting to Rs. 1,345.617 million 
(30 June 2015: Rs. 1,992.633 million) and Rs. 1,157.273 million (30 June 2015: Rs.956.450 million) 
respectively, as at the balance sheet date. 

9.5 This includes nished product in transit amounting to Rs. 729.435 million (30 June 2015: Rs. Nil) as at the 
balance sheet date. 

9.6 Finished products costing Rs. 1,327.639 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 3,026.379 million) has been written 
down by Rs. 156.158 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 156.625 million) to net realizable value. 

  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000) 
10. TRADE DEBTS – unsecured   
      
 Considered good     
 Due from Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 10.1 4,531,746  4,476,158 
 Due from related parties:     

- K-Electric Limited  196  1,364,484 
- Byco Oil Pakistan Limited – Parent Company  1,005,506  - 
- Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited – Subsidiary  

Company  186,693 
 

866,090 
Others  2,562,756  2,642,664 
     

Considered doubtful  2,873,379  2,192,831 
  11,160,276  11,542,227 
     

Provision for doubtful debts 10.2 (2,873,379)  (2,192,831) 
  8,286,897  9,349,396 
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11.  AND ADVANCES – unsecured, considered good  
  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
10.2 Provision for doubtful debts     

     
Opening balance  2,192,831  1,793,223 
Provision made during the year 29 680,548  399,608 
Closing balance  2,873,379  2,192,831 

 Loan to employees  100  100 
 Advance to suppliers and contractors 11.1 3,038,052  1,497,210 

 11.2 3,038,152  1,497,310 

11.1 This includes advances amounting to Rs. 2,928.654 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 1,214.983 million) to BTPL, a 
subsidiary company, in respect of storage facilities. 

11.2 These loans and advances are interest free. 

  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
12. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS      
      

Current portion of long-term deposits 8 6,955  6,955 
     
Prepayments     
     

- Insurance  16,933  11,978 
- Rent  2,612  4,255 

  26,500  23,188 

13. OTHER RECEIVABLES – considered good     
      

Inland Freight Equalization Margin  397,062  866,192 
Due from related parties 13.1 537,340  414,308 
  934,402  1,280,500 

13.1 
 

This represents amount of Rs. 346.913 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 282.555 million) receivable in respect of 
rent for land situated at Mauza Kund, Balochistan, sub-leased to the Parent Company and BTPL and also 
an amount of Rs. 190.427 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 131.753 million) receivable against pre-
commencement and other expenses incurred and purchases made on behalf of BIPL. 

  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES     
      

Cash in hand  102  74 
     
Cash at banks     

- Current accounts  130,764  670,904 
- Saving / deposit accounts 14.1& 14.2 102,517  16,598 

 14.3 233,281  687,502 
  233,383  687,576 

14.1 These carry interest at the rates ranging from 5.3 % to 8.2% (30 June 2015: 5.5% to 8.5%) per annum. 
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15. SHARE CAPITAL       
               

 30June 
2016 

 30 June 
2015 

        30June 
2016 

 30 June 
2015 

  (Number of Shares)           (Rupees in ‘000)  
               

 
1,200,000,000 

 
1,200,000,000 

Authorized share capital 
 
Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 

 
12,000,000 

 
12,000,000 

              

 

977,858,737 

 

977,858,737 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up 
capital 
 
Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 
issued for cash 

 

9,778,587 

 

9,778,587 
     
 As at 30 June 2016, Byco Oil Pakistan Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of Byco Industries Incorporated) 

held 790,510,099 (30 June 2015: 790,510,099) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each, aggregating to Rs. 
7,905.101 million and constituting 80.84% of issued share capital of the Company.  

 

14.2 Bank balances with saving accounts are placed under interest arrangements. The Company has 
conventional banking relationships with all the banks having Islamic window operations. 

  

14.3 
 

This includes Rs. 5.254 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 23.98 million) kept under lien against letter of credit 
facilities obtained from banks. 

  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
16. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT 

AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 
    
 Opening balance  7,435,974  21,793,483 
      
 Surplus on revaluation carried out during the year  -  66,939 
 Surplus on non-current asset held for sale realized during 

the year  - 
 

(13,661,086) 
   -  (13,594,147) 
      
 Transfer to accumulated loss in respect of:     
 - incremental depreciation charged during the year – 

net of tax  496,485 
 

519,086 
 - related deferred tax liability  223,058  244,276 
   719,543  763,362 
      

   6,716,431  7,435,974 
      

Less: Related deferred tax liability :     
- on revaluation at the beginning of the year    2,218,498  2,462,774 
- on incremental depreciation charged during the year  (223,058)  (244,276) 

     

 20.1 1,995,440  2,218,498 
     

Closing balance  4,720,991  5,217,476 
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17. LONG-TERM FINANCING AND DEFERRED MARK-UP    

 

 Restructured principal and accrued mark-up facilities  12,080,128  12,869,267 
 Total deferred mark-up on restructured principal  

facilities 
 

3,337,517 
 

3,084,533 
   15,417,645  15,953,800 
      
 Current maturity of restructured principal  (5,154,142)  (3,529,000) 
 Current maturity of deferred mark-up on restructured 

principal facilities 
 

(288,184) 
 

(200,000) 
   (5,442,326)  (3,729,000) 
      

   9,975,319  12,224,800 
 

17.1 
 

The syndicate banks upon request of the Company restructured the outstanding amount in accordance 
with the terms and subject to the conditions mentioned in the Restructured Agreement (the Agreement) 
made on 04 December 2012. As per the Agreement, principal amount of Rs. 17,379.700 million has been 
restructured over a period of maximum 7 years from 2013 to 2019 and carries mark-up at the rate of 6 
months Karachi Inter-Bank O er Rate (KIBOR) whereas deferred markup of Rs. 1,853.586 million is 
interest-free. Further, the restructured facility contains a covenant that the Company cannot pay 
dividend to its shareholders in the event of a default. 

  
17.2 As per the terms of the Agreement, National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) was paid on priority basis, whereas 

payment in respect of the remaining principal amount is to be made in fourteen unequal semi-annual 
installments. Further, an amount of Rs. 50 million out of the total deferred mark-up, shall be payable by 
the Company on each installment date in the rst year and Rs. 100 million on each installment date in the 
following six years. The remaining deferred mark-up shall be payable within a period of two years 
commencing after the repayment of the restructured principal facilities. 

  
17.3 The restructuring of loans as mentioned above had resulted in substantial modi cation of the nancing 

terms. Accordingly, the previous liability has been derecognised and new liability has been recognised at 
fair value. The di erence between the carrying amount of the liability extinguished and the fair value of 
the new liability had been recognised in the unconsolidated pro t and loss account. 

 
17.4 The restructured facility is secured by way of: 
  
 (i) rst Joint Pari Passu charge over xed assets to the extent of Rs. 7,670 million, rst Pari Passu 

equitable mortgage charge over xed assets (land and building only) to the extent of Rs. 7,670 
million; 

  
 (ii) rst Pari Passu equitable mortgage charge over xed assets (exclusive of land and building) to the 

extent of Rs. 20,400 million; 
  
 (iii) rst Joint Charge on the assets of Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited, a Subsidiary Company 

including storage related assets and crude oil tanks; 
  
 (iv) rst Pari Passu Hypothecation charge to the extent of Rs. 9,967 million on all present and future 

current assets of the Company; and 
  
 (v) the Syndicate banks will have a lien and right of set o  on an account maintained with an assigned 

agent bank wherein the Company will route all its revenues / receipts. 

   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
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18. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE  
 
 

   2016  2015 
   Lease payments  Lease payments 
   Minimum  Present  Minimum  Present 
   -------------------------  ( Rupees in ‘000) ----------------- 
    

    
  

 Less than one year  5,006  4,362  5,726  4,970 
 One to ve years  -  -  1,963  1,730 
 Total minimum lease payments  5,006  4,362  7,689  6,700 
 Less: Financial charges allocated  to 

future periods  644  -  989  - 
 Present value of minimum lease 

Payments  4,362  4,362  6,700  6,700 
 Less: Current portion   4,362  4,362  4,970  4,970 
   -  -  1,730  1,730 

 

18.1 Presently, the Company has lease agreements with the leasing companies to acquire vehicles. The 
rentals under the lease agreements are payable upto August 2016. The cost of operating and maintaining 
the leased assets is borne by the Company. The Company intends to exercise the option to purchase the 
leased assets at the residual value of assets upon the completion of respective lease periods. 

 

  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
19. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS     
      
 Deposit from related party 19.1 3,646  3,646 
 Trade and other deposits 19.2 127,332  105,332 
   130,978  108,978 

      
19.1 This represents interest-free deposit received from Parent Company against land lease rental. 
  
19.2 This represents interest-free deposits received from logistics vendors as security against goods to be 

transported. 
 

  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
      

20. DEFERRED LIABILITIES     
      

 Deferred taxation 20.1 -  997,548 
 Employees retirement bene ts 20.2 53,472  38,720 

   53,472  1,036,268 
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  Note 30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  

 

20.1 DEFERRED TAXATION     
 Taxable temporary di erences arising in respect of:     
 - accelerated tax depreciation   852,685  977,179 
 - nance lease     -  1,922 
 - surplus on revaluation of property, plant and  

equipment 
16 

1,995,440 2,218,498 
   2,848,125  3,197,599 
          

 Deductible temporary di erences arising in respect of:     
 - employees retirement bene t    (16,576)  (12,392) 
 - provision for doubtful debts   (890,748)  (701,706) 
 - nance lease  (140)  - 
 - intangible assets  -  (9,067) 
 - unabsorbed tax losses   (1,940,661)  (1,476,886) 
     (2,848,125)  (2,200,051) 
     -  997,548 

 

20.2 - sta  gratuity    

20.2.1 General description        

 The Company operates employee retirement bene ts for permanent employees who have completed 
the minimum service period. In accordance with the requirements of IAS–19 “Employee Bene ts”, 
actuarial valuation was carried out as at 30June 2016, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision 
has been made in the unconsolidated nancial statements to cover obligation in accordance with the 
actuarial recommendations. Details of signi cant assumptions used for the valuation and disclosures in 
respect of above-mentioned scheme is as follows: 

 

     Note  30 June  30 June 
       2016  2015 
        (Rupees in ‘000)  
20.2.2 Reconciliation of amount payable to de ned 

 bene t plan 
    

 Present value of de ned bene t obligation  20.2.3  75,609  74,733 
 Fair value of plan assets   20.2.4  (22,137)  (36,013) 
       53,472  38,720 
20.2.3 Movement in the present value of de ned  

bene t obligation: 
   

          

 Opening balance  74,733  70,969 
 Current service cost     15,410  16,376 
 Interest cost     6,342  9,155 
 Transfer to a Subsidiary Company    -  (2,535) 
 Transfer to the Parent Company     1,245  (14,011) 
 Bene ts paid during the year     (22,618)  (6,312) 
 Actuarial loss   20.2.7  497  1,091 
 Closing balance      75,609  74,733 
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  Note 30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  

 

20.2.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets:       

 Opening balance    36,013  15,978 
 Expected return on plan assets     2,762  1,732 
 Contributions     18,000           26,000  
 Bene ts paid during the year     (22,618)  (6,312) 
 Bene ts paid to employees of Subsidiary Company     (12,169)  - 
 Actuarial gain / (loss)   20.2.7  149  (1,385) 
 Closing balance      22,137  36,013 

 

20.2.5 Movement in net liability         

 Opening balance     38,720  54,991 
 Charge for the year    20.2.6  18,990  23,799 
 Transfer to a Subsidiary Company    -  (2,535) 
 Transfer to the Parent Company     1,245  (14,011) 
 Contributions     (18,000)  (26,000) 
 Bene ts paid to employees of Subsidiary Company    12,169  - 
 Actuarial loss  20.2.7  348  2,476 
 Closing balance     53,472  38,720 

20.2.6 Charge for the year        

 Current service cost      15,410  16,376 
 Interest cost – net     3,580  7,423 
       18,990  23,799 

 

20.2.7 Actuarial re-measurements       
        
 Actuarial loss on de ned bene t obligations    497  1,091 
 Actuarial (gain) / loss on fair value of plan assets    (149)  1,385 
     348  2,476 

 

20.2.8 Actuarial assumptions:       
        
 Valuation discount rate per annum    9.00%  10.00% 
 Salary increase rate per annum    7.00%  8.00% 
 Expected return on plan assets per annum    9.00%  10.00% 
 Normal retirement age of employees    60 years  60 years 

 

20.2.9 Comparisons for past years:    
     

 As at June 30 2016  2015  2014  2013  2012 
   (Rupees `000)  
           
 Present value of de ned bene t obligation 75,609  74,733  70,969  44,673  47,764 
 Fair value of plan assets (22,137)  (36,013)  (15,978)   -   - 
 De cit  53,472  38,720  54,991  44,673  47,764 
          
 Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 497  1,091  9,656  7,406  3,391 
 Experience adjustment on plan assets (149)  1,385  (65)   -   - 
  348  2,476  9,591  7,406  3,391 

 
 

   30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
20.2.10 Composition of plan assets       
        
 Cash at bank    22,137  36,013 
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2016 
  Discount rate Salary increase 
  + 100 bps  - 100 bps  + 100 bps  - 100 bps 
  (Rupees in ‘000)  
   
 Present value of de ned bene t obligation 66,685  86,224  86,731  66,145 
         
20.2.12  As of 30 June 2016, a total of 274 employees have been covered under the above scheme. 
  
20.2.13 Charge for the next nancial year as per the actuarial valuation report amounts to Rs. 16.599 million. 

 

   30June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  

 

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES     
      
 Creditors for supplies and services  18,956,639  16,810,492 
 Accrued liabilities  294,785  469,522 
 Due to a related party 21.1 13,658  13,658 
 Advances from customers 21.2 670,263  1,712,653 
 Dividend payable  1,146  1,146 
 Sales tax, duties, levies, penalties and default surcharge  6,570,028  11,931,377 
 Workers' pro t participation fund 21.3 109,445  64,181 
 Workers’ welfare fund 29 15,569  - 
 Withholding tax deductions payable  1,891  30,595 
 Payable to sta  provident fund  13,778  3,789 
   26,647,202  31,037,413 

 

21.1 This represents amount of Rs. 12.014 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 12.014 million) payable in respect of 
expenses paid on behalf of the Company by Byco Industries Incorporated and also an amount of Rs. 
1.644 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 1.644 million) payable against purchases made from Premier Systems 
(Private) Limited. 

  
21.2 
 

This includes Rs. 138 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 158 million) received in respect of demarcated plots of land 
for setting up of Lique ed Petroleum Gas storage and lling facilities (LPG village facility). The amount 
has been received in advance from consumers under LPG village facility utilization agreement. The 
agreements are e ective for 10 years from the date of signing or any period thereafter as mutually 
agreed. During the year, the advance was returned to certain consumers on the their demand, however, 
the facility is expected to commence shortly after completion of certain legal formalities upon which the 
advance will be classi ed as deferred revenue and amortized over the period of the agreed terms. These 
advances are interest free. 

 

   30 June  30 June 

   2016  2015 

    (Rupees in ‘000)  
21.3 Workers’ pro t participation fund     

      
 Opening balance   64,181  56,823 
 Allocation for the year 29 38,923  - 
 Mark-up for the year 21.3.1  6,341  7,358 

 Closing balance  109,445  64,181 
 

21.3.1 
 

Mark-up has been charged at KIBOR plus 2.5% as per the Companies pro t (Workers' Participation) Act, 
1968. 

20.2.11 Balance sheet date sensitivity analysis (+ 100 bps) on present value of de ned bene t obligation 

Note

Note
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   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
22. ACCRUED MARK-UP      
      
 Short-term borrowings  -  3,327 
 Advance from customers  95,692  180,400 
   95,692  183,727 

 

23. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS – secured     
      

 Finance against trust receipts 23.1 6,593,696  737,609 
 

23.1 
 

The facility has been extended by a commercial bank for working capital requirements aggregating to Rs. 
15,000 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 15,000 million) out of which Rs. 8,406.304 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 
14,262.391 million) remains unutilized as at the balance sheet date. The facility carries mark-up at 1 
month's KIBOR plus 1%. The facility is secured against documents of title of goods, stock of crude and 
petroleum products, and receivables, lien on the bank's collection account and a Rs. 15,000 million 
corporate guarantee furnished by the Parent Company. 

 

 

24.1 Contingencies  

24.1.1

24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Note

As at June 30, 2015, the Company had recorded default surcharge and penalties for the tax periods from 
July 2013 to June 2014 and July 2014 to May 2015 amounting to Rs. 708.883 million and Rs. 398.012 million,
respectively. 

During the current year, the Company received an order from Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue 
(DCIR), dated 20 August 2015, in respect of tax periods July 2013 to June 2014, whereby default surcharge 

by the Company, Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA), in its order dated 30 September 2015, 
waived the aforementioned default surcharge and penalty. Accordingly, provision for default surcharge and 

Further, the Company received various orders from DCIR in respect of tax periods from June 2015 to Janu-
ary 2016 claiming default surcharge amounting to Rs. 21.445 million and penalty amounting to Rs. 68.418 

surcharge and penalty. Therefore, no accrual in respect of aforementioned tax periods has been made

Furthermore, the Company received various orders from DCIR in respect of tax periods from October 2015 
to January 2016 to recover the amount of sales tax, default surcharge and penalty amounting to Rs 494.286 

statements.

During the current year, the Company has made a provision amounting to Rs. 243.353 million for default 
surcharge and penalties for periods from June 2015 to September 2015 and February 2016 to May 2016. 
Therefore as at the balance sheet date, total provision amounting to Rs. 644.781 million has been made in

of the provisions of the Sales Tax Act, 1990.
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24.1.2 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts amounting to Rs. 3,834.285 million (30 June 
2015: Rs. 3,137 million) comprise of late payment charges on account of delayed payments against crude 
oil supplies from Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL), Mari Gas Limited (MGL) and 
Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) amounting to Rs. 3,196.378 million, Rs. 233.55 million and Rs. 404.357 
million, respectively. The details of the cases led by MGL and PPL are as follows: 

  
 Mari Gas Limited (MGL) had led a suit bearing number 636 of 2012 in Honorable High Court of Sindh at 

Karachi whereby a sum of Rs. 817.340 million has been claimed by MGL on account of its share of the 
price of condensate allocated to the Company from the Adam X-1 well together with late payment 
surcharge and other associated legal and other cost amounting to a total of Rs. 1,050.890 million. Out of 
the above mentioned principal, the Company had paid Rs. 203.148 million in previous years and as a 
matter of prudence, the remaining principal amounting to Rs. 614.192 million has already been recorded 
in these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

  
 Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) had led a suit bearing number 160 of 2013 in the Honorable High Court 

of Sindh at Karachi for recovery of unpaid sales invoices amounting to Rs. 1,156 million which has already 
been booked in these unconsolidated nancial statements.  Additionally, PPL also claims a Late Payment 
Surcharge (LPS) amounting to Rs. 404 million. 

 
 Based on the opinion of legal advisor, the Company is of the view that there are no speci c contractual 

arrangements with the above suppliers along with OGDCL which allow them to claim / recover LPS and 
other associated costs and hence no provision in respect of the same has been made in these 
unconsolidated nancial statements. 

  
24.1.3 The Company was served with a sales tax order by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) claiming additional 

sales tax amounting to Rs. 99 million. The Company has not adjusted its input claim of Rs. 99 million being 
Federal Excise Duty (FED) claim charged under Value Added Tax (VAT) mode by Banking Companies, 
Insurance Companies and Terminal Operators on various invoices in the relevant tax periods from July 
2009 to June 2011. The Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR) has condoned the time limit under section 43 
of the Federal Excise Duty Act, 2005 and has allowed the Company to adjust Rs 66 million in the month of 
June 2014. The remaining amount to be adjusted is under consideration by FBR. 

  
 Management based on the opinion of its advisor is con dent of a favourable decision and accordingly no 

provision has been made in this respect. 
 

24.1.4 The Company was selected for an audit under Section 177 and 214C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
for the tax years 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2013. Audit proceedings for all mentioned tax years were 
completed and a demand of Rs. 87.105 million has been raised in an amended order passed under Section 
122(1)(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. This pertains to the tax year 2013 only and represents tax 
due under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
 
Being aggrieved by the amended order, the Company led an appeal before Commissioner Inland 
Revenue, Appeals, Karachi which is pending for adjudication. However, as a matter of prudence, the said 
amount has already been provided for in these unconsolidated nancial statements. 

 

   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  
24.2 Commitments     
      

 Commitment for capital expenditure  11,478  41,146 
      
 Outstanding letter of credit  10,722,572  - 
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   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
   ------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------- 

 

25. SALES – net     
      

 Gross Sales     
   - Local  107,817,756  110,540,039 
   - Export  7,581,901  8,866,314 

   115,399,657  119,406,353 

 
Less: Sales discount, sales tax, excise duty and  
petroleum development levy 

 
(35,965,783)  

 
(24,599,024) 

      

   79,433,874  94,807,329 
 

26. COST OF SALES     
      

 Opening stock  4,176,741  6,292,464 
 Cost of goods manufactured 26.1 38,269,420  71,553,828 
 Finished products purchased during the year  35,915,358  16,271,282 

   78,361,519  94,117,574 
      

 Closing stock 9 (4,942,026)  (4,176,741) 
      

   73,419,493  89,940,833 
 

26.1 Cost of goods manufactured     
      

 Raw material consumed 26.1.1  36,182,737  69,056,114 
 Salaries, wages and other bene ts 26.1.2  344,819  337,133 

 Depreciation 5.1.4 1,104,938  1,176,275 
 Fuel, power and water  260,475  596,729 
 Repairs and maintenance  102,452  88,849 

 Insurance  48,072  72,753 
 Sta  transportation and catering   62,676  67,705 

 Industrial gases and chemicals 
 61,700  63,762 

 Stores and spares consumed  67,591  58,754 
 Security expenses  24,120  17,014 
 Vehicle running  9,840  10,297 
 Technical fee  -  8,443 

   38,269,420  71,553,828 
 

26.1.1 Raw material consumed     
      

 Opening stock  682,874  2,485,043 
 Purchases during the year  37,889,592  67,253,945 
   38,572,466  69,738,988 

      

 Closing stock 9 (2,389,729)  (682,874) 
      

   36,182,737  69,056,114 
 

26.1.2 This includes a sum of Rs. 11.509 million (30June 2015: Rs. 8.961 million) in respect of sta  retirement 
bene ts. 

Note
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   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
   ------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------- 
27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES     
      

 Salaries, allowances and other bene ts 27.1 293,174  284,155 
 Rent, rates and taxes  61,963  65,216 
 Depreciation 5.1.4 54,138  57,594 
 Repairs and maintenance  32,536  32,408 
 Legal and professional  16,718  25,366 
 Vehicle running  20,322  23,068 
 Travelling and conveyance  23,342  22,013 
 Fee and subscriptions  9,307  9,935 
 Utilities  7,263  7,935 
 Insurance  6,573  6,444 
 Printing and stationary  7,482  5,418 
 Auditors’ remuneration 27.2 4,050  4,351 
 SAP maintenance costs  17,986  1,487 
 Others  6,390  8,215 
   561,244  553,605 
 

27.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 4.742 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 9.348 million) in respect of sta  retirement 
bene ts. 

 

   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
   ------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------- 

27.2 Auditors’ remuneration     
      
 Statutory audit  1,300  1,300 
 Half yearly review  500  500 
 Consolidation of nancial statements  400  400 
 Special audit and other certi cations  1,400  1,850 
 Out of pocket expenses  450  301 

   4,050  4,351 

28. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES     
      

 Salaries, allowances and other bene ts 28.1 169,334  164,402 
 Transportation and product handling charges  1,972,225  1,838,354 
 Sales commission  177,903  447,639 
 Rent, rates and taxes  86,461  63,212 
 Advertisement  47,510  28,634 
 Depreciation 5.1.4 37,643  38,195 
 Export development surcharge  16,568  20,772 
 Wharfage and other export expenses  30,574  16,045 
 Insurance  2,036  11,667 

   2,540,254  2,628,920 
 

28.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 2.739 million (30June 2015: Rs. 5.49 million) in respect of sta  retirement 
bene ts. 

Note

Note
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   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
   ------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------- 

 

29. OTHER EXPENSES     
      

 Late payment surcharge and penalties  243,353  401,428 
 Provision for doubtful debts 10.2 680,548  399,608 
 Workers’ pro t participation fund 21.3 38,923  - 
 Workers’ welfare fund 21 15,569  - 
   978,393  801,036 
      
30. OTHER INCOME     
      

 Income from nancial assets     
      

 Interest on balances due from customers  497,229   745,242 
 Interest income on saving accounts  17,271  35,584 

   514,500  780,826 
 Income from non- nancial assets     
      
 Reversal of excess sales tax surcharge provision  708,883  913,576 
 Inland Freight Equalisation Margin (IFEM)  -  256,408 
 Land lease rent  55,962  55,962 
 Storage and handling income  28,158  41,658 
 Gain on disposal of operating xed assets 5.1.5 2,974  944 
 Dealership income  8,100  2,400 
      

   1,318,577  2,051,774 
 
 

31. FINANCE COSTS     
      
 Mark-up on:     
 - Long-term nancing  1,560,519  1,692,106 
 - Short-term borrowings   655,286  969,591 
 - Workers’ pro t participation fund  21.3 6,341  7,358 
 - Advances from customers  20,159  26,994 
   2,242,305  2,696,049 
      
 Exchange loss– net 31.1 226,447  328,617 
 Bank and other charges  66,693  61,477 

      

   2,535,445  3,086,143 
 

31.1 Represents exchange loss - net arising on revaluation of foreign currency nancial assets and liabilities 
and on transactions in foreign currencies. 

 

   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
   ------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------- 

  

32. TAXATION     
      
 Current   (434,673)  (518,368) 
 Prior year  87,001  - 
 Deferred  997,548  742,099 

      

   649,876  223,731 
 

32.1 The returns of income tax have been led up to and including tax year 2015. These, except for those 
mentioned below, are deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

Note
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 Income tax and taxable losses in respect of tax years 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2013 have been assessed by 
Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whereas 
return submitted for the tax year 2008 has been amended by the Additional Commissioner Inland 
Revenue under section 122(5A). The amendments relate to proration of expense against income covered 
in NTR and FTR, disallowance of unrealized exchange loss and other expenses not allowed under section 
21. The management has led an appeal against the aforesaid notices and in consultation with its tax 
advisors is con dent that no major liability is expected to arise. 

 
32.2 Relationship between accounting pro t and income tax expense for the period 

  
 The Company is subject to Minimum Tax and Final Tax Regime under section 113 and section 169 

respectively of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship between income tax expense 
and accounting pro t has not been presented for the current year. 

 

   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
   ------- (Rupees in ‘000) ------ 

 

33. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE – basic and diluted     
      
 Pro t after taxation  1,367,498  72,297 
 

   ------ (Number) ------ 
      
 Weight average number of ordinary shares  977,858,737  977,858,737 

       

   ------ (Rupees) ------ 
      
 Earnings per share – basic / diluted  1.40  0.07 
 

34. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES  
 

 The related parties comprise of ultimate parent company, parent company, subsidiary companies, 
associated companies, directors, key management personnel, sta  provident fund and sta  gratuity 
fund. All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at 
agreed terms and conditions. Details of transactions and balances with related parties during the year are 
as follows: 

 

 

34.1 Transactions with related parties    
 

Parent Company 
Land lease rentals 52,937 52,937 
Purchases 41,970,503 62,475,593 
Sales  12,614,170 3,726,181 
Markup charged 413,067 668,005 
Allocation of gratuity expense   1,245  14,011 
Allocation of group expenses   284,954  290,137 

Subsidiary Companies 
Land lease rentals 3,025 3,025 
Sales 185,981 198,052 
Services received 549,426 416,258 
Interest income 31,978 58,425 
Operating xed assets sold during the year   -  96,297 
Allocation of gratuity expense   -  2,535 
Other expenses incurred   58,674  115,118 
Non-current assets held for sale sold during the year   -  16,931,504 

 

   30 June  30 June 
   2016  2015 
   ------- (Rupees in ’000) ------- 
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Associated Companies 
Sales 1,063,832 7,791,034 
Purchase of operating xed assets and services - 5,324 
Interest income 28,348 198,216 

 
Sta  Provident Fund 
Contribution to sta  provident fund 37,077 40,985 

 
 

34.2 Balances with related parties   
 

Ultimate Parent Company 

Payable against expenses 12,014 12,014 
 

Parent Company 

Receivable against land lease rental 329,134 268,255 

Accrued interest 18,924 18,924 

Security deposits payable 3,646 3,646 

Payable against purchases and expenses - 1,376,893 

Receivable against purchase of goods and services   1,005,506  - 

Subsidiary Companies 

Receivable against sales  186,693 866,090 

Advance against services 2,928,654 1,214,983 

Receivable against land lease rentals 17,779 14,300 

Receivable against expenses incurred 190,427  131,753 

Accrued interest 219,462 187,484 
 

Associated Companies 

Long term deposit receivable  95  95 

Trade debts 196 1,364,484 

Advance against purchases  9,407 9,407 

Accrued interest 259,302 366,202 

Payable against purchases  1,644 1,644 

Sta  Provident Fund 

Payable to sta  provident fund 13,778 3,789 
 

34.3 There are no transactions with key management personnel other than under the terms of employment as 
disclosed in note 35 to the nancial statements. 

     

30 June 30 June
2016 2015

(Rupees in ‘000) 
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35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES  
 

The aggregate amount included in these unconsolidated nancial statements for remuneration, 
including the bene ts and perquisites, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company 
are as follows: 

 
     2016  2015 
     Chief 

Executive   
Executive 
Director 

Executives  Chief 
Executive   

Executive 
Director 

  Executives  
         
     -------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)------------------------ 
             
 Managerial remuneration 10,678 6,053 143,660  13,488 7,078  133,663 
 Sta  retirement bene ts 1,779 1,008 23,749  2,247 1,179  21,861 
 Housing and utilities  3,203 1,816 46,428  4,261 2,241  44,419 
 Leave fare assistance  890 504 11,967  1,124 590  11,134 
     16,550 9,381 225,804  21,120 11,088  211,077 
             
 Number of persons   1 1 141 1 1 125 

 

35.1 The Chief Executive and Executives have been provided with company maintained cars. 
 

35.2 As at 30June 2016, the Company's Board of Directors consists of 8 Directors (of which 7 are Non-
Executive Directors). Except for Chief Executive and a director, no remuneration and other bene ts 
have been paid to any Director. 

 
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES   

The Company nances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital 
with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of nances to minimize the risk. The 
Company's principal nancial instruments comprise short-term borrowings and nancing from nancial 
institutions and trade and other payables. Main purpose of these nancial instruments is to raise funds 
for the import of crude oil for re ning business and for its operations. The Company has various nancial 
assets such as cash (including balances with banks), deposits, loans, investment in subsidiary 
companies, which are directly related to its operations. 

 

 The Company’s overall risk management policy focuses on minimizing potential adverse e ects on the 
Company’s nancial performance. The overall risk management of the Company is carried out by the 
Company’s senior management team under policies approved by the Board of Directors. No changes 
were made in the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the year ended 30June 2016.  
 
The policies for managing each of these risk are summarized below: 

                
36.1 Market risk               

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk. 

 

  
36.1.1 Interest Rate Risk 
  
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk arises from  long-term 
nancing and short-term borrowing facilities for nancing its re ning business operations and meeting 

working capital requirements at variable rates and on delayed payments from PSO and K-Electric 
Limited on which the Company earns interest. The Company manages these mismatches through risk 
management policies where signi cant changes in gap position can be adjusted.  
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 At the reporting date, the interest rate pro le of Company's interest-bearing nancial instruments was: 
  
 

Variable Rate Instruments 
       30June 

 2016 
 30June 

2015 
              ---------- (Rupees in '000) ---------- 
 Financial assets         
 Trade debts    6,132,327  6,425,905 
        

 Financial liabilities          
 Long-term nancing and deferred mark-up    15,417,645  15,953,800 
 Liability against asset subject to nance lease    4,362  6,700 
 Short-term borrowings    6,593,696  737,609 
              22,015,703  16,698,109 
  
 A change of 1% in interest rates at the year-end would have increased or decreased the pro t before tax 

by Rs. 159.612 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 102.722 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables 
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for June 2015. 

 
36.1.2 Currency risk               
               

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate due 
to changes in foreign exchange rates and arises where transactions are done in foreign currency.  

  
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in currency other 
than Pak Rupees. As the Company imports and exports nished petroleum products, it is exposed to 
currency risk. The currency in which these transactions are undertaken is US Dollar.  

 

 As at 30June 2016, the company is not exposed to any material foreign currency risk. 
 

36.1.3 Other price risk 
  
 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of the nancial instruments will uctuate 

because of changes in market prices. As at the balance sheet date, the Company is not exposed to other 
price risk.  

 

36.2 Credit risk          
           
 Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss to the Company if a customer or a counter party to a nancial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables 
from customers and balances held with banks. 

  
 Management of credit risk 
  

The Company’s policy is to enter into nancial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the 
Board of Directors and other internal guidelines.  

  
 Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Company in the following manner: 
            

 - Credit rating and / or credit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the 
nancial background so as to minimize the risk of default.    

            

 - The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Company is 
mitigated by a periodic review of their credit ratings, nancial statements, credit worthiness and 
market information on a regular basis.   

            

 - Cash is held with reputable banks only.       
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 As of the balance sheet date, the Company is exposed to credit risk on the following assets: 
  
    Note  30June 

2016 
 30 June 

2015 
      ---------Rupees in '000------- 
       

 Long-term deposits  8  10,278  9,803 
 Trade debts  10  8,286,897  9,349,396 
 Loans and advances  11  3,038,152  1,497,310 
 Trade deposits   12  6,955  6,955 
 Other receivables  13  934,402  1,280,500 
 Accrued interest    497,688  572,610 
 Bank balances  14  233,281  687,502 
     13,007,653  13,404,076 
        
 Credit quality of nancial assets     
      
 The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference 

to external credit ratings agencies or the historical information about counter party default rates as 
shown below: 

      30 June 
2016 

 30 June 
2015 

      ---------Rupees in '000------- 
 

 
 Bank balances       
 A-1+    22,349  116,869 
 A1+    113,342  455,373 
 A1    1,406  16,260 
 A-1    72,258  98,091 
 A-2    23,926       - 
 C    -  909 
     233,281  687,502 

 

 Financial assets other than trade debts and bank balances are not exposed to any material credit risk. 
 

36.3 Liquidity risk             

 Liquidity risk re ects the Company’s inability in raising fund to meet commitments. Management closely 
monitors the Company’s liquidity and cash ow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet 
liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance 
of undue reliance on any individual customer.  

 Trade debts 
  
 The aging of unimpaired debtors at the balance sheet 

    date is as follows: 
    
 Neither past due nor impaired  3,858,095  2,251,845 
 Past due 1-30 days  20,196  1,495,382 

Past due 31-180 days  56,745  1,619,322 
Past due 180-365 days  1,005,506  1,395,770 
Above 365 days  3,346,355  2,587,077 
  8,286,897  9,349,396 
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 The table below summarizes the maturity pro le of the Company's nancial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments. 

     On demand  Less than       
3 months 

 3 to 12    
months 

 1 to 5   Total 

    ------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000)---------------------------- 
 June2016            
 Long-term nancing and deferred mark-up  -  1,632,326  3,810,000  9,975,319  15,417,645 
 Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease  -  4,362  -  -  4,362 
 Long-term deposits    -  -  -  130,978  130,978 
 Trade and other payables   1,146  26,646,056  -  -  26,647,202 
 Short-term borrowings   -  6,593,696  -  -  6,593,696 
 Accrued mark-up    95,692  -  -  -  95,692 
     96,838  34,876,440  3,810,000  10,106,297  48,889,575 
             
     On demand  Less than       

3 months 
 3 to 12    

months 
  Total 

    ------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000)---------------------------- 
 June 2015            
 Long-term nancing and deferred mark-up  -  -  3,729,000  12,224,800  15,953,800 
 Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease   -

 
 1,193

 
  3,777

 
  1,730

 
  6,700

 
 Long-term deposits    -  -  -  108,978  108,978 
 Trade and other payables   1,146  11,072,620  -  -  11,073,766 
 Short-term borrowings   -  737,609  -  -  737,609 
 Accrued mark-up    180,400  3,327  -  -  183,727 
     181,546  11,814,749  3,732,777  12,335,508  28,064,580 

      
36.4 Capital risk management         

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital 
ratios in order to support its business sustain the development of the business and maximize the 
shareholders’ value. The Company closely monitors the return on capital. The Company manages its 
capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of changes in economic conditions and nances its 
activities through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an 
approximate mix between various sources of nance to minimize the risk. No changes were made in the 
objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 30 June 2016.

 

 The Company is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirement. 
 

37. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES     

 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying values of all nancial assets and 
liabilities re ected in the nancial statements approximate their fair values. 
 
The following table shows nancial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose 
fair value is based on: 
 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, 
 
Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 
 
Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date 
(unobservable inputs). 
 
As of the balance sheet date, the Company does not have any nancial instruments measured at fair value.  

years

1 to 5
years
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38. OPERATING SEGMENTS           

 For management purposes, the Company has determined following reportable operating segments on the 
basis of business activities i.e. oil re ning and petroleum marketing businesses. Oil re ning business is 
engaged in crude oil re ning and selling of re ned petroleum products to oil marketing companies. 
Petroleum marketing business is engaged in trading of petroleum products, procuring products from oil 
re ning business as well as from other sources. The quantitative data for segments is given below: 

 
   Oil Re ning Business  Petroleum Marketing 

Business 
 Total 

   2016  2015  2016  2015  2016  2015 
   --------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)-----------------------------

 
 Revenue             
 Net Sales to external customers 47,411,465  50,186,823  32,022,409  44,620,506  79,433,874  94,807,329 
 Inter-segment sales  27,419,742  39,077,387  -  -  27,419,742  39,077,387 
 Eliminations  (27,419,742)  (39,077,387)  -  -  (27,419,742)  (39,077,387) 
 Total revenue  47,411,465  50,186,823  32,022,409  44,620,506  79,433,874  94,807,329 

 Result             
 Segment pro t 2,668,690  1,501,415  1,048,270  1,453,504  3,716,960  2,954,919 
 Unallocated expenses:            
 Finance cost          (2,535,445)  (3,086,143) 
 Interest income          514,500  780,826 
 Other expenses           (978,393)  (801,036) 
 Taxation          649,876  223,731 
 Pro t for the year         1,367,498  72,297 
              
 Segmental Assets 54,459,089  45,598,416  1,434,660  3,929,311  55,893,749  49,527,727 
 Unallocated Assets         -  5,408,074 
   54,459,089  45,598,416  1,434,660  3,929,311  55,893,749  54,935,801 
              
 Segmental Liabilities 48,142,536  41,070,747  1,195,784  3,508,482  49,338,320  44,579,230 
 Unallocated Liabilities         -  5,168,292 
   48,142,536  41,070,747  1,195,784  3,508,482  49,338,320  49,747,522 
              
 Capital expenditure 61,942  80,996  2,249  11,597  64,191  92,593 
              
 Other Information            
 Depreciation and amortization 1,159,076  1,196,470  37,643  75,594  1,196,719  1,272,064 

 
39. PROVIDENT FUND DISCLOSURE         

 The Company operates approved funded contributory provident fund for both its management and non- 
management employees. Details of net assets and investments of the fund is as follows: 

           30 June 
 2016 

 30 June 
 2015 

           ----- (Rupees in ’000) ----- 

 Size of the fund - Net assets       130,997  146,148 
 Cost of the investment made       111,908  120,443 
 Fair value of the investment       128,885  132,520 
 Percentage of the investment      85%  82% 

 
The breakup of fair value of the investment is: 

 
       30 June 2016 30 June 2015 
       (Rupees in '000)  %  (Rupees in '000)  % 
              

 Bank Deposits     39,846  30.92%  33,080  24.96% 
 Debt securities     24,881  19.30%  32,731  24.70% 
 Unit trust schemes    64,158  49.78%  66,709  50.34% 
       128,885  100%  132,520  100% 
 

 The management, based on the un-audited nancial statements of the fund, is of the view that the 
investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 227 of the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose. 

 
40. CAPACITY AND ANNUAL PRODUCTION         

 Against the designed annual capacity (based on 330 days) of 11.55 million barrels (30 June 2015: 11.55 
million barrels), the actual throughput during the year was 8.362 million barrels (30June2015: 9.55 million 
barrels). The Company operated the plant considering the level which gives optimal yield of products. 
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41. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES         
  
 The total number of employees as at 30 June 2016 were 291 (30 June 2015: 358) and average number of

employees were 324 (30 June 2015: 384). 
  
42. RECLASSIFICATION 
  
 Following corresponding gures have been reclassi ed for better presentation: 

  
 From To    (Rupees in ‘000’) 
       
 Administrative expenses Selling and distribution expenses    28,634 

 
43. GENERAL     

  
 Figures have been rounded o  to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated. 

44 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

th  September 2016 by the board of directors.

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director
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Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary companies as at 30 June 2016 and 

Holding Company and its subsidiary companies namely Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited (BTPL) and Byco
Isomerisation Pakistan (Private) Limited (BIPL). 

circumstances.

Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary companies as at 30 June 2016 and the results of their
operations for the year then ended.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2016

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

ASSETS  
         
NON-CURRENT ASSETS   

Property, plant and equipment 5 35,652,029 37,972,932 
Intangible asset 6 23,746 23,746 
Long-term loans and advances 7 1,753,780 2,064,817 
Long-term deposits 8 31,332 31,068 

37,460,887 40,092,563 
         

CURRENT ASSETS 
Stores and spares 293,689 279,196 
Stock-in-trade 9 7,331,755 4,859,615 
Trade debts 10 8,278,080 8,690,271 
Loans and advances 11 555,535 683,429 
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 12 53,217 44,198 

 Other receivables  13 1,276,715  1,660,951 
Interest accrued 353,193 435,888 
Cash and bank balances 14 240,532 692,425 

18,382,716 17,345,973 

TOTAL ASSETS  55,843,603 57,438,536 
         
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
         
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
       

Share capital 15 9,778,587 9,778,587 
Accumulated losses (25,469,576) (26,839,084) 

(15,690,989) (17,060,497) 

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT 
    AND EQUIPMENT 16 13,490,917 14,474,151 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Long-term nancing and deferred mark-up 17 12,170,263 12,933,211 
Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease 18 -  1,730 
Long-term deposits 19 130,978 108,978 
Deferred liabilities 20 5,027,609 6,471,976 

17,328,850 19,515,895 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 21 27,576,892 31,984,348 
Accrued mark-up 22 194,643 661,046 
Short-term borrowings 23 6,940,999 3,264,912 
Current portion of long-term nancing and deferred 

mark-up 24 5,596,765 3,900,058 

 
Current portion of liabilities against assets subject to 

nance lease   18 4,362  4,970 
Taxation – net 401,164 693,653 

40,714,825 40,508,987 
           

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 25 
55,843,603 57,438,536 

 
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements. 

 

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director



   
      

Sales – net 26 80,088,405 95,372,404 
Cost of sales 27 (75,235,149) (90,810,151) 
Gross pro t  4,853,256 4,562,253 
Administrative expenses 28 (693,612) (668,099) 
Selling and distribution expenses 29 (2,426,138) (2,628,920) 
Other expenses 30 (980,367) (805,332) 
Other income 31 1,557,281 2,015,422 

(2,542,836) (2,086,929) 
Operating pro t      2,310,420  2,475,324 
         
Finance costs 32 (2,778,621) (3,413,267) 
Loss before taxation (468,201) (937,943) 
Taxation 33 854,526 290,045 
Pro t / (loss) after taxation 386,325 (647,898) 

       Rupees 
        
Earnings / (loss) per ordinary share – basic and diluted 34 0.40 (0.66) 

          
          
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements. 

 

For the year ended 30 June 2016

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)
Note
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Consolidated

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2016

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

  

 

Pro t / ( loss)after taxation 386,325 (647,898) 

Other comprehensive income for the year 
        
Items that may not be reclassi ed subsequently to pro t and 

loss account       

Actuarial loss on re-measurement of de ned bene t obligation (51) (2,610) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 386,274 (650,508) 

           
           
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements. 

 

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2016

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note
  

 
 

 
 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Loss before taxation (468,201) (937,943) 
Adjustments for non-cash items and other charges:  
Depreciation 5.1.4 2,471,021 1,962,098 
Finance costs 32 2,778,621 3,413,267 
Provision for doubtful debts 10.2 680,548 399,608 
Provision for gratuity 20.2.6 22,348 27,571 
Interest income  31  (756,159)  (746,750) 
Gain on disposal of operating xed assets 31  (3,044) (1,693) 
Net cash ows before working capital changes  4,725,134 4,116,158 

Movement in working capital 
(Increase)/ decrease in current assets 

Stores and spares (14,493) (74,898) 
Stock-in-trade (2,472,140) 3,917,892 
Trade debts 168,658 995,394 
Loans and advances 127,894 (120,755)
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments (9,019) 93,695 
Other receivables   384,236  (553,535) 
   (1,814,864)  4,257,793 

(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities 
Trade and other payables (4,406,882) 3,215,185 

           

Cash (used in) / generated from operations  (1,496,612) 11,589,136 

Finance costs paid (1,089,108) (1,837,387) 
Income taxes paid (659,018) (360,064) 
Gratuity paid (18,000) (27,867) 
Interest income received        178,730  223,578 

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities  (3,084,008) 9,587,396 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
       

Fixed capital expenditure (153,110) (874,974) 
Proceeds from disposal of operating xed assets 6,037 6,706 
Long-term deposits – net 21,736 19,011 
Advance against investment in shares      (135,000)  (100,000) 
Transaction cost received    446,037  - 

Net cash generated from /(used in) investing activities  185,700 (949,257) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
       

Long-term nancing – net (1,227,334) (2,944,179) 
Short-term borrowings – net 3,676,087 (5,458,196) 
Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease – net (2,338) (16,874) 

Net cash generated from /(used in) nancing activities  2,446,415 (8,419,249) 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  (451,893) 218,890 
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year   692,425 473,535 
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year   240,532 692,425 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements. 
 

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016

  
Issued, 

subscribed and 
paid-up capital 

 
Accumulated 

losses 

 

Total 
  
  

Rupees in '000  
  

Balance as at 01 July 2014 9,778,587  (26,873,272)  (17,094,685) 
  

Net loss for the year -  (647,898)  (647,898) 
   

Other comprehensive income for the year -  (2,610)  (2,610) 
Total comprehensive income for the year -  (650,508)  (650,508) 

  
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus       
on revaluation of property, plant and       
equipment - net of tax  -  684,696  684,696 
           
Balance as at 30 June 2015 9,778,587  (26,839,084)  (17,060,497) 

  
Balance as at 01 July 2015      9,778,587  (26,839,084)  (17,060,497) 

     
Net pro t for the year -  386,325  386,325 
         
Other comprehensive income for the year -  (51)  (51) 
Total comprehensive income for the year -  386,274  386,274 

  
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus    
on revaluation of property, plant and   
equipment - net of tax -  983,234  983,234 

     
Balance as at 30 June 2016 9,778,587  (25,469,576)  (15,690,989) 

  
           

  
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated nancial statements. 

 

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director



682015/16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2016

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS    

1.1 The "Group" consists of:     

 Holding Company      

 i) Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company)  

The Holding Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on 09 January 
1995 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance) and was granted a certi cate of 
commencement of business on 13 March 1995. The shares of the Holding Company are listed on 
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered o ce of the Holding Company is situated at The 
Harbour Front, 9th Floor, Dolmen City, HC-3, Block 4, Marine Drive, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan. 
Byco Oil Pakistan Limited (the Parent Company) holds 80.84% (30 June 2015: 80.84%) shares in 
the Holding Company. The Parent Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Byco Industries 
Incorporated (BII), Mauritius (the Ultimate Parent Company). The Holding Company is principally 
engaged in the production, marketing and sale of petroleum products. 

  

The Holding Company currently operates two business segments namely Oil Re nery Business 
and Petroleum Marketing Business. The Holding Company commenced its Oil Re ning Business 
in 2004. The re nery has a rated capacity of 35,000 bpd (barrels per day). Petroleum Marketing 
Business was formally launched in 2007 and has 261 retail outlets across the country. 

  

 Subsidiary Companies      

 i) Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited (BTPL)    

BTPL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on 14 June 2002 under the 
Ordinance. BTPL had been converted from private limited company to public limited company on 
24 May 2010. The registered o ce of BTPL is situated at Harbour Front Tower,9th Floor, Dolmen 
City, HC-3, Block 4, Marine Drive, Clifton, Karachi. 

  

BTPL is principally engaged in the provision of bulk storage services of petroleum products. BTPL 
has developed an o shore jetty (Single Point Mooring) along with the pipelines for facilitating 
movement of petroleum products. The "Buoy", which is an integral part of Single Point Mooring 
(SPM) facility, is owned by Coastal Re nery Limited with whom BTPL is in agreement regarding its 
operation at agreed terms. 

  

BTPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company by virtue of share purchase 
agreement dated 17 February 2010.    

 ii) Byco Isomerisation Pakistan (Private) Limited (BIPL)    

  BIPL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on 14 May 2014 under the 
Ordinance and it is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company. The registered o ce of 
BIPL is situated at Rooms 406 and 407, 4th Floor, Islamabad Stock Exchange Towers, 55-B, Jinnah 
Avenue, Islamabad. BIPL is principally engaged in blending, re ning and processing of petroleum 
naphtha to produce petroleum products such as premium motor gasoline. 

 

1.2 The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Holding Company in a meeting held on 14 April 2016 
considered and approved in principle a potential merger of the Holding Company, its wholly owned 
subsidiary Byco Terminals Pakistan Limited and the Parent Company in accordance with terms of a 
scheme of arrangement prepared under the provisions of Section 284 to Section 288 of the Ordinance
and subject to the sanction of the High Court of Sindh. Under the said scheme, the

 
Holding

 
Company

would be the surviving entity. 

2. GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION     
  
 As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s accumulated losses amounted to Rs. 25,469.576 million (30 June 2015: 

Rs.26,839.084) million. Moreover, current liabilities of the Group exceeded its current assets by Rs. 
22,332.109 million. 
 
The conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast signi cant doubt about 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. These consolidated nancial statements have been 
prepared using the going concern assumption as the management is con dent that all these conditions 
are temporary, and would reverse in foreseeable future due to the reasons given below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



692015/16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2016

 - the Group earned a pro t after tax amounting to Rs. 386.325 million for the year as compared to a 
loss after tax of Rs. 647.898 million last year, showing improvement in the Group’s pro tability as 
compared to last year; 

   
 - the sales volume of the Holding Company has increased by 27% showing improvement in the 

Holding Company’s performance as compared to last year;   

 - the Holding Company’s Petroleum Marketing Business (PMB) has entered into various fuel supply 
arrangements with di erent marketable sectors such as shipping, power and energy, and high 
margin aviation fuel export market has also been tapped through these arrangements. Further, 
during the year, PMB segment has increased retail business by entering into di erent dealer 

nanced, semi-financed and company nanced agreements for opening of various retail outlets 
across the country. These factors of PMB segment has been and is expected to yield signi cant 
contribution towards the pro tability of the Group; 

  

 - the Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) has approved the recovery of crude oil 
transportation through Inland Freight Equalization Margin pool which would result in future cost 
savings for the Group. Further, the Competition Commission of Pakistan has also issued its 
opinion in favour of the Holding Company in this respect; 

  

 - The Holding Company is contemplating a restructuring plan of the Group Companies which would 
bring e ciencies in the operations as stated in note 1.2;   

 - the Parent Company re nery, which is temporarily closed, is expected to resume its operations in 
foreseeable future; 

   
 - the Group is continuously reviewing its administrative costs, operating expenditures as well as 

capital expenditures, with a view to optimize the associated bene ts through elimination of such 
costs as they nd appropriate;   

   
 - during the year, a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) restructured its nancing from a commercial bank, 

amounting to Rs. 1,800 million as disclosed in note 17.3 to the consolidated nancial statements. 
   
 - the Ultimate Parent Company has given its commitment to give nancial support to the Group as 

and when required. The support is available during the next nancial year and beyond that; and 

 - the management has also prepared nancial projections to demonstrate the nancial bene ts of 
above measures. 

 
 

 The results of the above e orts, activities and actions are expected to contribute signi cantly towards  
the pro tability, cost reduction, cash ows and equity position of the Group and mitigate the risks 
involved. Therefore, the preparation of these consolidated nancial statements on going concern 
assumption is justi ed. 

 
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION       

 
3.1  Statement of compliance        

 
These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting 
s t a n d a r d s  a s  a p p l i c a b l e  i n  P a k i s t a n .  A p p r o v e d  a c c o u n t i n g  s t a n d a r d s  c o m p r i s e  o f  s u c h 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are noti ed under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements di er, the provisions of, 
or directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.  

 
3.2  Accounting convention        

 
These consolidated nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
except for: 
 

- Certain classes of property, plant and equipment which are carried at revalued amount in 
accordance with IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” as disclosed in note 5.1 to these 
consolidated nancial statements; and 
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3.3  Basis of consolidation        

 These consolidated nancial statements include the nancial statements of the Holding Company and 
its subsidiary companies, here-in-after referred to as “the Group”. 

  
 A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, bene cially 

owns or holds more than fty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and 
appoint more than fty percent of its directors. 

  
 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be 

consolidated until the date when such control ceases. 
  
 The nancial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Holding 

Company, using consistent accounting policies. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been 
changed to conform to accounting policies of the Group, where required. 

  
 All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group 

transactions and dividends are eliminated in full. 
  
 Where the ownership of a subsidiary is less than 100% and therefore, a non-controlling interest (NCI) 

exists, the NCI is allocated its share of the total comprehensive income of the period, even if that results 
in a de cit balance. 

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line 
basis and carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the 
subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated nancial statements.   

 
3.4 Adoption of amended standards

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated nancial statements are 
consistent with those of the previous nancial year except as describe below: 

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments 

The Group has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments of IFRSs which became 
e ective for the current year: 

IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 11 – Joint Arrangements 
IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
IFRS 13 –  Fair Value Measurement 
IAS    27 – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 
IAS    28 – Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

 

- De ned bene t gratuity plan which is carried at present value of de ned bene t obligation net 
of fair value of plan assets in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 "Employee Bene ts", 
as disclosed in note 20.2 to the consolidated nancial statements; 

The adoption of the above accounting standards did not have any material e ect on the consolidated 
nancial statements. 

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet e ective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be e ective from the dates mentioned below against the 
respective standard or interpretation: 
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Standard or Interpretation 
E ective date (annual 

periods beginning on or 
after) 

  
 IFRS 2: Share-based Payments – Classi cation and Measurement of Share-

based Payments Transactions (Amendments) 
01 January 2018 

 IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in 
Other Entities and IAS 28 Investment in Associates – Investment Entities: 
Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendment) 

01 January 2016 

 IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in 
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) 

Not yet nalized 

 IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint 
Operation (Amendment)   

01 January 2016 

 IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative 
(Amendment)   

01 January 2016 

 IAS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Disclosure Initiative  
- (Amendment) 

01 January 2017 

 IAS 12 Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized 
losses (Amendments)   

01 January 2017 

 IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38  intangible assets - 
Clari cation of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization 
(Amendment) 

01 January 2016 

 IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment  IAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture: Bearer 
Plants (Amendment) 

01 January 2016 

 IAS 27 – Separate Financial Statements – Equity Method in Separate Financial 
Statements (Amendment) 

01 January 2016 

   
 The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the consolidated 

nancial statements in the period of initial application. 

 
In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards 
have also been issued by the IASB in September 2014. Such improvements are generally e ective for 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2016. The Group expects that such improvements 
to the standards will not have any material impact on the consolidated nancial statements in the period 
of initial application. 

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be noti ed by the SECP for 
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

 
Standard or Interpretation 

IASB E ective date 
(annual periods 

beginning on or after) 

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classi cation and Measurement 01 January 2018 
IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016 
IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 January 2018 
IFRS 16 – Leases 01 January 2019 

3.5  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions 
 

The preparation of these consolidated nancial statements in conformity with approved accounting 
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that a ects the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of 
which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may di er from these estimates. The estimates 
underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision a ects only that period, or in the 
period of the revision and future periods if the revision a ects both current and future periods. 
Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a signi cant risk of material 
adjustments to the consolidated nancial statements in the subsequent years are as follows:
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 i) Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment (note 4.1 and 5.1); 
 ii) Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade (note 4.2 and 9); 
 iii) Provision for doubtful debts and other receivables (note 4.4 and 10.2); 
 iv) Impairment against other nancial and non- nancial assets (note 4.7); 
 v) Estimates of receivables and payables in respect of sta  retirement bene t schemes (note 4.10 

and 20.2); 
 vi) Provision for compensated absences (note 4.11); 
 vii) Provision for taxation (note 4.14, 20.1 and 33); and 
 viii) Contingencies (note 25.1). 
            
4.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
            
4.1  Property, plant and equipment        

 Owned         
            
 These are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and impairment losses, if any, except for freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land, roads 
and civil works, plant and machinery, generators and safety and lab equipments are measured at 
revalued amounts, which is the fair value at the date of revaluation less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognised subsequent to the date of revaluation. The surplus 
arising on revaluation is disclosed as surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. 
 
 

 
Depreciation / amortization is charged to consolidated pro t and loss account, applying the straight line 
method whereby costs of assets, less their residual values, is written o  over their estimated useful 
lives at rates as disclosed in note 5.1 to the consolidated nancial statements. Depreciation / 
amortization on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use up to the 
month preceding the disposal. 
 
The carrying values of the Group’s property plant and equipment are reviewed at each nancial year end 
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 
recoverable. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated 
recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount. 
 
Repairs and maintenance cost is written o  to the consolidated pro t and loss account in the year in 
which it is incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized when it is probable that 
respective future economic bene ts will ow to the Group. 
 
An item of property plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene ts are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
is recognised in the year of disposal. 

Capital work-in-progress 
 
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment, if any, and consists of 
expenditure incurred in respect of operating xed assets in the course of their acquisition, erection, 
construction and installation, including salaries and wages directly attributable to capital work-in
progress, determined by the management. The assets are transferred to relevant category of operating 

xed assets when they are available for use. 
           
Assets subject to nance lease 
 
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and bene ts incidental to 
ownership of the leased item, are stated at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any 
Lease payments are apportioned between the nance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as 
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
 
Leased assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. However, if there is no reasonable 
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated 
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Depreciation, repair and 
maintenance and gain/loss on disposal of assets subject to nance lease is recognised in the same 
manner as for owned assets. 
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4.2 Stock-in-trade         
          
 All stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net Realizable Value (NRV). 
  
 Raw materials 
  
 Cost in relation to crude oil is determined on the basis of First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis. NRV in relation to 

crude oil represents replacement cost at the balance sheet date. 
  
 Finished products 
  
 Cost of nished products comprises of the cost of crude oil and re ning charges consisting of direct 

expenses and appropriate production overheads. Direct expenses are arrived at on the basis of average 
cost for the year per barrel of throughput. Production overheads, including depreciation / amortization, are 
allocated to throughput proportionately on the basis of normal capacity. 
 
NRV in relation to nished products is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale. 

 
4.3 Stores and spares

These are stated at moving average cost less impairment loss, if any. For items which are slow moving 
and / or identi ed as surplus to the Group's requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess 
book value over estimated realizable value. The Group reviews the carrying amount of the stores and 
spares on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence. 
 
Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving items where necessary and is recognised in the 
consolidated pro t and loss account. 
 

4.4 Trade debts and other receivables 
 
Trade debts and other receivables are stated at original invoice amount less provision for doubtful debts, if 
any. Provision for doubtful debts / other receivables is based on the management’s assessment of 
customers’ outstanding balances and creditworthiness. Bad debts are written-o  when identi ed. 
 

4.5 Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 
 
These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial 
recognition assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is an indication that 
a nancial asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable 
amount of that asset or group of assets is determined and any impairment loss is recognised for the 
di erence between the recoverable amount and the carrying value. 

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. For the purposes of cash ow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances with banks and stamp papers. 
 

4.7 Impairment 
 
Financial assets 
 
A nancial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence
that it is impaired. A nancial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or 
more events have had a negative e ect on the estimated future cash ows of that asset. 
 
Individually signi cant nancial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 

nancial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.  
 
All impairment losses are recognised in the pro t and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed if the 
reversal can be related objectively to an event accruing after the impairment loss was recognised. 

Non- nancial assets

The carrying amounts of non- nancial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether 
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estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised as an 
expense in the consolidated pro t and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less cost to sell and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated 
future cash ows using a discount rate that re ects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risk speci c to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 
lowest levels for which there are separately identi able cash ows (cash-generating units). 
 
An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised. 

 
4.8 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to the “Surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment ” shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance 
with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The said section was 
amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002. The Group has adopted following 
accounting treatment of depreciation / amortization on revalued assets, in accordance with Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated 13 January 2003: 
 

- depreciation / amortization on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the 
value assigned to such assets on revaluation and depreciation / amortization charge for the 
year is taken to the consolidated pro t and loss account; and 

- an amount equal to incremental depreciation / amortization for the year net of deferred 
taxation is  transferred from “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment” to 
accumulated loss through Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to record realization 
of surplus to the extent of the  incremental depreciation / amortization charge for the year. 

Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the asset being disposed is transferred to 
accumulated pro t. 

there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is 

4.9 Interest / Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings 
  
 All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received les

directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost with any di erence between the 
proceeds (net of transaction cost) and the redemption value recognised in the consolidated pro t and 
loss account over the period of the borrowing using the e ective interest method. 

  
4.10 Sta  retirement bene ts 
  
4.10.1 De ned bene t plan 
  
 The Group operates a funded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees who have 

completed minimum qualifying period of service. The Group’s obligation under the scheme is 
determined through actuarial valuations carried out under the "Projected Unit Credit Method". The 
latest actuarial valuation was carried out at 30 June 2016 and based on the actuarial valuation; the 
Group had recognised the liability for retirement bene ts and the corresponding expenses. Actuarial 
gains and losses that arise are recognised in other comprehensive income in the year in which they 
arise. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated pro t and loss account 
irrespective of the fact that the bene ts are vested or non-vested. Current service costs and any past 
service costs together with the e ect of the unwinding of the discount on plan liabilities are charged to 
operating expenses. 
 
The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents the present value of de ned 
bene t obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. 

4.10.2 De ned contribution plan 
  
 The Group operates a provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal contributions are 

made by the Group and the employees at 8.33% of the basic salary of the eligible employees. 



752015/16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2016

  
4.11 Compensated absences 
  
 The Group accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the year in 

which these are earned. Provisions to cover the obligation are made using the current salary levels of 
the employees. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences is carried out as the management 
considers that the nancial impact is not material. 

 
4.12 Trade and other payables      

 
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the 
Group. 
 

4.13 Assets held under operating leases / Ijarah nancing 
 
Assets held under operating leases / Ijarah nancing are accounted for using the guidelines of IAS 17 
and IFAS 2 respectively. These assets are not recognised in the Group's consolidated nancial 
statements and payments made under operating leases / Ijarah nancing are recognised in the
consolidated pro t or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 
 

4.14 Taxation 
 
Current 
 
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in 
accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

 Deferred 
  
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary di erences 

arising at the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for nancial reporting purposes. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary di erences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised for all deductible temporary di erences to the extent that it is probable that the future 
taxable pro ts will be available against which the assets may be utilized. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax bene t will be realized. As of the 
balance sheet date, deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 2,753.369 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 3,467.006 
million) has not been recognised in these consolidated nancial statements as a matter of prudence. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

  
4.15 Provisions 
  
 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

a past event, if it is probable that an out ow of resources embodying economic bene ts will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to re ect the current best estimate. 

  
4.16 Liabilities and nance charges against assets subject to nance lease 
  
 Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease are accounted for at net present value of minimum 

payments under the lease arrangements. Lease payments are apportioned between nance costs and 
reduction of lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Financial costs are charged directly to the consolidated pro t and loss account except those 
which are directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of a qualifying asset (refer note 4.1). 

4.17 Revenue recognition        
 

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bene ts will ow to the Group and 
revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable and is recognised on the following basis: 
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- Sales are recognised when the signi cant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have 

passed to the customer which coincide with the dispatch of goods to the customers. 
 

- Export sales are recognised on the basis of product shipped to the customers. 
 

- Handling and storage income, pipeline charges, rental income and other services income is 
recognised on accrual basis. 
 

- Blending, re ning and processing of petroleum naphtha to produce petroleum products and 
other services income is recognized on accrual basis. 

4.18 Other income 
 
Other income is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic bene ts will ow to the 
Group and amount can be measured reliably. Other income is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable and is recognised on the following basis: 
 

- Mark-up on delayed payments charges are recognised on the time proportionate basis. 
 

- Interest income / mark-up on short term deposits and interest bearing advances are 
recognised on the proportionate basis. 

 

- Handling income including income from gantry operations and pipeline charges are recognised 
on an accrual basis. 

 

- Scrap sales and rental income are recognised on an accrual basis. 
  
4.19 Foreign currency translations 
  
 Foreign currency transactions during the period are recorded at the exchange rates approximating 

those ruling on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 
translated at the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing on the balance sheet date. 
Gains and losses on translation are taken to the consolidated pro t and loss account. 

  
4.20 Financial instruments 
  
 All nancial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently re-measured at 

fair value or amortized cost as the case may be. The Group derecognises the nancial assets and 
nancial liabilities when it ceases to be a party to such contractual provisions of the instruments 

  
4.21 O setting of nancial assets and nancial liabilities 
  
 Financial assets and nancial liabilities are o set and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 

nancial statements only when there is legally enforceable right to set-o  the recognised amounts and 
Group intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

  
4.22 Operating segments 
  
 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating 
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identi ed as Chief Executive 
Of cer of the Group. 

 
4.23 Dividends and appropriations 

 
Dividends and reserve appropriations are recognised in the year in which these are declared / approved. 
The distribution of dividend is subject to the covenant as mentioned in note 17.1. to these consolidated 

nancial statements. 
 

4.24 Functional and presentation currency   
 
These nancial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Group’s functional and 
presentation currency.  
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in 
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identi able assets acquired and 
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identi able 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of 
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in 
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in pro t and loss as a bargain purchase gain. 

  
            
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT       
   Note  30 June  30 June 
       2016  2015 
       Rupees in '000

 

 Operating xed assets    5.1  35,216,520  37,189,732 
 Capital work-in-progress  5.2  435,509  783,200 
       35,652,029  37,972,932 

 

4.25 Earnings per share 
 
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the pro t after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 

4.26 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred 
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date 
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of 
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. 
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in consolidated pro t or loss as incurred. 
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5.1.1 The Holding Company's assets located at filling stations are not in possession of the Group. In view of 
large number of dealers, the management considers it impractical to disclose particulars of assets not 
in possession of the Group as required under para 5 of part I of the Fourth Schedule to the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

5.1.2 During the years ended 30 June 2007, 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011, 30 June 2012, 30 June 2014 and 
30 June 2015 revaluation exercises were carried out by independent valuers of the Holding Company 
resulting in surplus on revaluations amounting to Rs.1,901.021 million, Rs. 4,062.989 million, Rs. 
3,484.024 million, Rs. Nil, Rs. 1,150.540 million and Rs. 66.939 million, respectively. 

Further, during the years ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2014, revaluation exercises were carried 
out by independent valuers of a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) resulting in surplus on revaluations 
amounting to Rs.120.888 million Rs. 66.298 million, respectively. 

The fair values were determined with reference to market based evidence, based on active market 
prices and relevant enquiries and information as considered necessary, adjusted for any difference in 
nature, location or condition of the specific property and in case where market based evidence was 
not available or not applicable due to the specialized nature of asset, then it was based on 
depreciated replacement cost method. 

5.1.3 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of specific classes of operating fixed assets would 
have amounted to: 

     Note  30 June 
2016 

 30 June 
2015 

       Rupees in '000  

 Freehold land       50,654  50,654 
 Leasehold land       213,200  213,200 
 Buildings on freehold land, roads and civil works    805,957  1,168,381 
 Plant and machinery       9,908,524  10,411,868 
 Generators       55,975  65,365 
 Safety and lab equipments      -  8,379 
        11,034,310  11,917,847 

         

5.1.4  / amortization charge for the year has been 

 Cost of sales      27.1 2,378,726  1,865,229 
 Administrative expenses    28 54,652  58,674 
 Selling and distribution expenses    29 37,643  38,195 
        2,471,021  1,962,098 

5.1.5 The details of operating fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follows: 
  Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 
Written 
down 
value 

Sale 
proceeds 

Gain on 
disposal 

Mode of  
disposal 

Particulars of Buyer 
Name Status Address 

 (Rupees in '000)     

           
           
 Toyota Corolla 441 - 441 511 70 Group Policy Saeed Ahmed Sheikh Employee Karachi 
 Honda City 1,399 1,119 280 350 70 Group Policy Muhammad Maroof Employee Karachi 
 Honda Civic 1,288 1,288 - 690 690 Tender Hammad Ahmed Khan Independent  Karachi 
 Toyota Corolla 999 999 - 527 527 Tender Ittehad Motors Independent Karachi 
 Toyota Corolla 999 999 - 457 457 Tender Ittehad Motors Independent Karachi 
 Suzuki Cultus 585 585 - 440 440 Tender Ittehad Motors Independent Karachi 
 Suzuki Cultus 780 780 - 530 530 Tender Muhammad Maroof Employee Karachi 
 Audi 5,200 2,947 2,253 2,513 260 Group Policy Mujataba Jafarey Employee Karachi 
 Laptop 62 43 19 19 - Group Policy Muhammad Imran Farooki Employee Karachi 
 June 2016 11,753 8,760 2,993 6,037 3,044     

       
 June 2015 25,062 20,049 5,013 6,706 1,693     

 



812015/16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5.2 Capital work-in-progress          
         
 The movement of capital work-in-progress during the year is as follows: 
  

        Transferred   
    Opening    to operating  Closing balance 
    balance  Additions  xed assets  2016 2015 
            

    (Rupees in ‘000)  
            

 Plant and machinery  774,196  68,503  416,194  426,505 774,196 
 Building on freehold land, 

roads and civil works 
 

691 
 

- 
 

- 
 

691 
 

691 
 Filling stations   8,313  -  -  8,313 8,313 
   783,200  68,503  416,194  435,509 783,200 

 

      Note  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
 

6. INTANGIBLE ASSET       

 Goodwill acquired on business combination 6.1           23,746               23,746  
 

6.1 During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Holding Company acquired 100% shares of a Subsidiary 
Company (BTPL) from all of its shareholders for a consideration of Rs. 87.155 million. The e ective 
control was obtained on 17 February 2010. The acquisition brought about expansion and diversi cation 
of the Holding Company's business as the BTPL is engaged in provision of bulk storage services and 
mooring services of petroleum products. 

 

Goodwill acquired through acquisition has an inde nite life. The Group assessed the recoverable 
amount of the goodwill by determining the value in use over a ten year period as the business is long 
term by nature. The recoverable value exceeds its carrying value and hence no impairment exists. The 
management believes that any reasonable possible changes to the key assumptions on which the 
calculation of recoverable amount are based would not signi cantly cause the carrying amount to 
exceed the recoverable amount.  

 

      Note  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  

7. LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES – unsecured     

 Loan to Coastal Re nery Limited (CRL) 7.1& 7.2 1,518,780  1,518,780 
 Amortization of arrangement fee 7.2 -  446,037 
 Advance against investment in shares 7.3 235,000  100,000 
     1,753,780  2,064,817 

7.1 The Subsidiary Company (BTPL) had entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (the Original 
Agreement) with CRL dated April 12, 2010  whereby it was agreed that the shareholders’ of CRL will sell 
their entire existing shareholding in CRL to BTPL against the consideration of construction cost of the 
Buoy (in ownership of CRL) nanced by BTPL amounting to Rs. 830 million. The Original Agreement was 
revised (the Revised Agreement) on February 21, 2011, which was further amended and restated (the 
First Amended and Restated Share Purchase Agreement) on April 12, 2013, thereby canceling the 
Original Agreement and the Revised Agreement. 
 
According to the First Amended and Restated Share Purchase Agreement, BTPL nanced the 
construction cost of the Buoy (in ownership of CRL) amounting to Rs. 830 million and the cost was to be 
recovered from CRL through issuance of CRL's shares to BTPL at a face value of Rs. 10 each. 

 However, on December 26, 2014, BTPL entered into another Amended and Restated Share Purchase 
Agreement, thereby cancelling the First Amended and Restated Share Purchase Agreement and 
according to which the nancing for construction of the Buoy was converted into a long-term loan. 
Moreover, as per the Amended and Restated Share Purchase Agreement, BTPL will subscribe for 83 
million right shares of CRL at a par value of Rs. 10 each and pay CRL Rs. 830 million in two installments by 
July 31, 2016 and October 31, 2017 as purchase consideration of right shares. Further, as per the 
Amended and Restated Share Purchase Agreement, CRL will pay the installments amount received from 
the right issue to settle the aforesaid loan of Rs. 830 million from BTPL. The aforesaid loan is interest 
free.
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7.2 Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Share Purchase Agreement, BTPL entered into another 

agreement dated December 30, 2014, to provide CRL a loan amounting to Rs. 688.78 million. For this 
purpose, BTPL obtained a long term nance facility of Rs. 348.78 million from Syndicate of four banks 
and entered into a long term Musharaka arrangement for Rs. 340 million as fully disclosed in note 17.4 
and 17.5 to the consolidated nancial statements. These loans were speci cally obtained for the 
purpose of nancing CRL and are repayable semi-annually in arrears in 8 years with an initial 2 years 
grace period commencing from 30 June 2017. The loan carries interest at the rate of 8% per annum. 
 
Further, BTPL also entered into an agreement dated December 30, 2014, according to which BTPL was 
liable to pay arrangement fee to Syndicate banks and Musharaka arrangement amounting to Rs. 214.645 
million and Rs. 231.392 million, respectively, as fully disclosed in note 17.6 to the consolidated nancial 
statements. However, during the year, the Syndicate Banks and Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited have 
waived an amount of Rs. 223.019 million pursuant to the signing of the waiver letter. During the year, 
BTPL recovered arrangement fee in full amounting to Rs. 446.037 million from CRL, however, a 
corresponding advance as disclosed in note 11 was booked against CRL. 

  
7.3 According to the Amended and Restated Share Purchase Agreement, BTPL will purchase CRL’s shares 

from the existing shareholders by acquiring 100% of the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of 
CRL amounting to Rs. 670.525 million at a discount of Rs 2.1 per share against payment of Rs. 529.517 
million by September 2017. As at June 30, 2016, BTPL has made a total payment of Rs. 235 million 
against the purchase price, as speci ed in the Amended and Restated Share Purchase Agreement, 
however, Rs. 30 million which had to be paid by the said date has not been paid. The aforesaid payment 
is being made in an Escrow Account managed by a commercial bank. 

  
      Note  30 June 

2016 
 30 June  

2015 
        Rupees in '000

  

8. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS       
        
 Finance lease    6,955  6,955 
 Ijarah nancing    8.1 20,010  20,321 
 Leasehold land    931  931 
 Rental premises    7,089  7,089 
 Central Depository Company of Pakistan  13  13 
 Others  3,289  2,714 
  8.2 38,287  38,023 
      
 Less: current portion of nance lease deposits 12 (6,955)  (6,955) 
     31,332  31,068 
      
8.1 Represents security deposit paid by a Subsidiary Company to a bank on entering into a lease agreement 

(ijarah) of Rs. 200 million. 
      
8.2 These deposits are interest free.     

 
30 June

2016
30 June

2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

    

   
 

  
 

  
 

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE     
     
 
Raw material 9.1 & 9.2 2,389,729  682,874 
Finished products 9.3, 9.4& 9.5 4,942,026  4,176,741 
  7,331,755  4,859,615 

9.1 This includes raw material in transit amounting to Rs. 1,492.395 million (30 June 2015: Rs. Nil) as at the 
balance sheet date.

9.2 Raw material costing Rs. 2,368.790 million (30 June 2015: Rs. Nil) has been written down by Rs. 22.287 
million (30 June 2015: Rs. Nil) to Net Realizable Value.
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25.1.4 A supplier of generators to a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) has led a suit against BTPL for a sum of Rs. 
2.115 million on account of increased cost of materials, nancial losses etc. on account of delay in 
delivery, which in the view of plainti  was caused due to acts of BTPL. However, the delay was on part of 
supplier which compelled BTPL to hire the generators during the delayed period on which BTPL incurred 
and recovered a sum of Rs. 1.238 million through encashment of guarantees provided by supplier. The 
suit is pending and no provision for the above claim has been made in these consolidated nancial 
statements as there is no contractual or other basis on which the plainti  can rest its claim and 
accordingly the same is likely to be rejected by the Honorable Court, as per BTPL’s legal advisor. 

 

25.1.5 China Harbour Engineering Company (CHEC), engaged by a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) for the 
construction of Single Point Mooring on 19 August 2011, demanded a penalty of Rs. 22 million from BTPL 
on account of delayed payments in accordance with the terms of the agreement entered into between 
BTPL and CHEC. However, BTPL has not acknowledged the said demand as it believes that delay was on 
part of contractor’s bank. No demand of notice or any correspondences have been received from CHEC 
regarding follow up of this penalty based on which no provision for the above demand has been made in 
these consolidated nancial statements. 

 

  
25.1.6 During the current year, the customs authorities raised demand of Rs.273.58 million on account of 

import duty and taxes on import of Tugs being used for the purposes of towing and mooring of vessels 
discharging petroleum products at the Single Point Mooring (SPM). Since, the tug boats in question are 
imported on a temporary basis, the management of a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) is of the view that 
such tugs are entitled to exemption from import duty and taxes under SRO 678(I) of 2004. The bene t of 
the said SRO was previously granted to BTPL, however, the customs authorities have recently changed 
their view as to the applicability of the said SRO to the tugs in question and have issued show cause 
notices to BTPL to pay the customs duties and taxes as assessed by the customs authorities and have 
refused to complete the goods declaration of the tugs, therefore, the tugs in question cannot be re-
exported by BTPL until the entitlement to bene t of the SRO is nally adjudicated upon the customs 
adjudication or the court of law. BTPL on the basis of the advice of its legal advisor have led CP No.408 
/ 2015 and CP No.828 / 2015 before the High Court of Balochistan at Quetta at seeking a determination 
as to the applicability of the SRO to the tugs imported by BTPL and has also led CP No.828 of 2015 in 
order to seek a direction of the court to release a tug of BTPL. Based on the opinion of legal advisor, the 
management is con dent that the matter will be decided in its favor. Hence, no provision for the above 
demand has been made in these consolidated nancial statements. 

  
25.1.7 The Holding Company was selected for an audit under Section 177 and 214C of the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001 for the tax years 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2013. Audit proceedings for all mentioned tax 
years were completed and a demand of Rs. 87.105 million has been raised in an amended order passed 
under Section 122(1)(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. This pertains to the tax year 2013 only and 
represents tax due under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

 

 Being aggrieved by the amended order, the Holding Company led an appeal before Commissioner 
Inland Revenue, Appeals, Karachi which is pending for adjudication. However, as a matter of prudence, 
the said amount has already been provided for in the consolidated nancial statements. 

 
 

        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
25.2 Commitments          

25.2.1 Outstanding letters of credit      10,722,572 4,606 

 

Management based on the opinion of its advisor is con dent of a favourable decision and accordingly no 
provision has been made in this respect.
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25.2.2 Commitments for capital expenditure  11,478 41,146 

25.2.3 Commitments in respect of Ijarah nancing:   

 Not later than one year       35,542  65,553 
            
26. SALES - net     

Gross Sales 
Local  108,685,777 111,245,979 
Export  7,581,901 8,866,314 
  116,267,678 120,112,293 

Less: Sales discount, sales tax, excise duty  
and petroleum  development  levy  (36,179,273) (24,739,889) 

80,088,405 95,372,404 

27. COST OF SALES 

Opening stock 4,176,741 6,292,464 
Cost of goods manufactured 27.1 40,085,076 72,423,146 
Finished products purchased during the year  35,915,358 16,271,282 
  80,177,175 94,986,892 

Closing stock 9 (4,942,026) (4,176,741) 
 75,235,149 90,810,151 

27.1 Cost of goods manufactured    
     
 Raw material consumed 27.1.1 35,561,446 68,441,804 
 Salaries, wages and other bene ts 27.1.2 390,677 388,802 
 Depreciation 5.1.4 2,378,726 1,865,229 
 Fuel, power and water 263,469 602,827 
 Operation cost 903,093 578,222 
 Insurance 106,915 101,719 
 Repairs and maintenance 177,363 101,640 
 Rent, rates and taxes 67,640 89,794 
 Industrial gases and chemicals 61,700 76,326 
 Sta  transportation and catering 62,676 67,705 
 Stores and spares consumed 67,591 58,754 
 Security expenses 24,120 17,014 
 Vehicle running 9,840 10,297 
 Technical fee        -  8,443 
 Others 9,820 14,570 

  40,085,076 72,423,146 

 

Note
30 June

2016
30 June 

2015
Rupees in '000

 30 June 
2016 

30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000
27.1.1 Raw material consumed    

  

 Opening stock 682,874 2,485,043
Purchases during the year 37,268,301 66,639,635
 37,951,175 69,124,678

Closing stock 9 (2,389,729) (682,874)
Raw material consumed  35,561,446 68,441,804
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27.1.2 12.938 
bene ts. 

 

      Note  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES       

 Salaries, allowances and other bene ts  28.1 382,062           359,122 
 Rent, rates and taxes       67,318             70,204 
 Depreciation     5.1.4 54,652  58,674 
 Repairs and maintenance      36,309             36,308 
 Legal and professional       26,673             34,141 
 Travelling and conveyance      27,359             28,129 
 Vehicle running       24,098  23,777 
 Utilities        7,630             11,364 
 Fee and subscriptions       10,140             10,332 
 Insurance        7,878               7,765 
 Auditors’ remuneration     28.2 5,281               5,857 
 Printing and stationary       7,687               5,495 
 SAP maintenance costs      17,986               1,487 
 Others        18,539  15,444 
         693,612   668,099 

28.1 es a sum of Rs.6.671 
bene ts. 

 

        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
28.2 Auditors’ remuneration         

 Statutory audit     1,800               1,800 
 Half yearly review    500                  500 
 Consolidation of nancial statements 400                  400 
 Special audit and other certi cations    2,006               2,250 
 Out of pocket expenses    575               907 
      5,281               5,857 

 

      
Note

  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
29. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES     

 Salaries, allowances and other bene ts  29.1  169,334           164,402 
 Transportation and product handing charges    1,858,109  1,838,354 
 Sales commission    177,903  447,639 
 Advertisement       47,510  28,634 
 Rent, rates and taxes       86,461             63,212 
 Depreciation      5.1.4  37,643             38,195 
 Export development surcharge      16,568             20,772 
 Wharfage and other export expenses    30,574  16,045 
 Insurance        2,036             11,667 
         2,426,138  2,628,920 

29.1 This includes a sum of Rs.2.739 
bene ts. 
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      Note  30 June 

2016 
 30 June  

2015 
        Rupees in '000  
30. OTHER EXPENSES          

 Late payment surcharge and penalties       245,327  405,724 
 Provision for doubtful debts     10.2  680,548           399,608 
 Workers’ pro t participation fund      21.4  38,923  - 
 Workers’ welfare fund      21  15,569  - 
         980,367  805,332 

31. OTHER INCOME          
          
 Income from nancial assets        
 Interest on balances due from customers      465,251   686,817 
 Interest income on saving accounts      17,271  35,584 
 Interest on loan to CRL        50,618  24,349 
         533,140  746,750 
          
 Deferred arrangement fee payable written back    20  223,019  - 

 Income from non- nancial assets        
 Reversal of excess sales tax surcharge provision   708,883           913,576 
 Inland Freight Equalization Margin      -  256,408 
 Land lease rent       52,937             52,937 
 Storage and handling income        28,158  41,638 
 Gain on disposal of operating xed assets  5.1.5  3,044               1,693 
 Dealership income        8,100  2,420 
         801,772  1,268,672 
            
         1,557,281        2,015,422 

 

       30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
32. FINANCE COSTS         
          
 Mark-up on:         
 - Long-term nancing       1,560,519  1,692,106 
 - Loan from a commercial bank   17.2 &17.3  173,712  - 
 - Loan from syndicate banks     17.4  25,877  10,861 
 - Short-term borrowings       696,248   1,292,564 
 - Loan from the Parent Company       -  21,054 
 - Musharaka facility     17.5  24,741        13,488 
 - Advance from customers       20,159  26,994 
 - Workers’ pro t participation fund     21.4  6,341  7,358 
        2,507,597  3,064,425 
           
 Unwinding of arrangement fee       20,971  19,631 
 Exchange loss – net     32.1  229,070  337,753 
 Bank and other charges        67,405  61,859 
         2,825,043  3,483,668 
            
 Recovery of mark-up from Parent Company relating to 

short-term borrowings  
    

 
  

(25,451) 
  

(50,770) 
 Reimbursement of arrangement fee from CRL      (20,971)  (19,631) 
         (46,422)  (70,401) 
            
         2,778,621        3,413,267 
           
32.1 Represents exchange loss - net arising on revaluation of foreign currency nancial assets and liabilities 

and on transactions in foreign currencies. 
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Note
         30 June 

2016 
 30 June  

2015 
        Rupees in '000  
33. TAXATION         

 Current         (448,164)  (529,988) 
 Prior year        81,635  - 
 Deferred        1,221,055  820,033 
         854,526        290,045 
            
33.1 The income tax returns of the Holding Company and a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) have been led up to 

and including tax year 2015. These, except for those mentioned below, are deemed to have been 
assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.  

 Income tax and taxable losses of the Holding Company in respect of tax years 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2013 
have been assessed by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 122(1) of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001, whereas return submitted for the tax year 2008 has been amended by the Additional 
Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 122(5A). The amendments relate to proration of expense 
against income covered in NTR and FTR, disallowance of unrealized exchange loss and other expenses 
not allowed under section 21. The management has led an appeal against the aforesaid notices and in 
consultation with its tax advisors is con dent that no major liability is expected to arise. 

33.2 Relationship between accounting loss and tax expense for the year   

The Holding Company and a Subsidiary Company is subject to Minimum Tax and Final Tax Regime under 
section 113 and section 169 respectively of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship 
between income tax expense and accounting pro t has not been presented for the current year. 
 
No taxation has been provided by a Subsidiary Company (BIPL) in line with the provisions of Section 113 
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

 

        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
34. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE – basic and diloted 
  
 Pro t / (loss) after taxation    386,325  (647,898) 
        
      (Number)  
       
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares    977,858,737  977,858,737 
        
      Rupees  
        
 Earnings / (loss) per share – basic and diluted    0.40  (0.66) 

35. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES   

The Group has related party transactions with its ultimate parent company, parent company, 
associated companies, directors, key management personnel, sta  provident fund and sta  gratuity 
fund. Details of transactions and balances with related parties are as follows: 
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        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
       
35.1 Transactions with related parties       

 Parent Company          
 Land lease rentals       52,634  52,861 
 Purchases      41,998,051  62,487,341 
 Loan received      400,000  - 
 Sales      13,469,307  4,489,445 
 Mark-up charged - net       368,345  638,289 
 Interest received      27,994  - 
 Allocation of gratuity expense      484  14,916 
 Allocation of group expenses      378,194  352,044 
 Purchase of operating xed assets      -  416,195 

Associated Companies 
Sales 1,063,832  7,791,034 
Consultancy services from associated company 13,076  17,388 

 Purchase of operating xed assets and services    -  5,324 
Interest income 28,348  198,216 

 Port services rendered    44,655  38,201 
Receipt of short-term loan 20,000  206,303 

        
 Sta  Provident Fund       
 Contribution made to sta  provident fund   42,367  62,317 

        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
35.2 Balances with related parties        

 Ultimate Parent Company        
 Payable against expenses    12,014           12,014 

           
 Parent Company         
 Receivable against land lease rent    329,134  268,255 

 Interest accrued      18,924           45,337 

 Security deposit payable     3,646  3,646 

 Receivable against services   167,197  201,810 

 Payable against purchases and expenses   433,389  1,812,909 

 Receivable against purchase of goods and services    1,005,506  - 

 Loan receivable - net of mark-up    -  400,000 

 Associated Companies        
 Long-term deposit receivable     95  95 

 Trade debts      9,703      1,369,174 

 Advance against purchases   9,407  9,407 

 Interest accrued      259,302  366,204 

 Payable against purchases   11,709  8,455 

 Receipt of short term loan    -  327,303 

 Sta  Provident Fund       

 Payable to sta  provident fund     13,934  4,302 
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36. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVES, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES 

 The aggregate amount charged in these consolidated nancial statements for remuneration, including 
bene ts and perquisites, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Group are as follows: 

 
Chief 

Executives 
    Executive 

Director 
 

Executives  
 Total 

   2016   2015  2016   2015  2016   2015  2016   2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  

 
 Managerial remuneration 18,403  22,348  6,674  8,195  156,580  154,854  181,657  185,397 
 Housing and utilities 5,285  3,723  2,002  1,365  50,303  25,391  57,590  30,479 
 Leave fare assistance 1,467  7,057  556  2,595  13,043  51,094  15,066  60,746 
 Sta  retirement bene ts 2,935  1,861  1,112  685  25,887  12,659  29,934  15,205 
   28,090  34,989  10,344  12,840  245,813  243,998  284,247  291,827 

 Number of persons 3  3  1  1  151  136  155  140 

36.1 The Chief Executives and Executives have been provided company maintained cars. 

36.2 As at 30 June 2016, the Group's Board of Directors consists of 8 Directors (of which 7 are Non-
Executive Directors). Except for the Chief Executives and the Executive Director, no remuneration and 
other bene ts have been paid to any Director.  

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES     

 The Group nances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with 
a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of nances to minimize the risk. The 
Group's principal nancial instruments comprise loans from nancial institutions, short-term 
borrowings and trade and other payables. Main purpose of these nancial instruments is to raise funds 
for the import of crude oil for re ning business and for its operations. The Group has various nancial 
assets such as cash (including balances with banks), trade debtors, deposits, loans and advances, other 
receivables, etc. which are directly related to Group’s operations. 

  
 The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses on minimizing potential adverse e ects on the 

Group’s nancial performance. The overall risk management of the Group is carried out by the Group’s 
senior management team under policies approved by the Board of Directors. No changes were made in 
the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the year ended 30 June 2016. 
 
The policies for managing each of these risk are summarized below: 

  
37.1 Market risk 
  
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 

because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk. 

  
37.1.1 Interest rate risk 
  
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term 
nancing and short-term borrowing facilities for nancing its re ning business operations, loan to 

Coastal Re nery Limited (CRL) and meeting working capital requirements at variable rates as well as on 
delayed payments from PSO and K-Electric Limited on which the Group earns interest. The Group 
manages these mismatches through risk management policies where signi cant changes in gap 
position can be adjusted. 

  
 At the reporting date, the interest rate pro le of Group's interest-bearing nancial instruments was: 
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Variable Rate Instruments 

    
Note

 
 

  30 June 
 2016 

 30 June  
2015 

               (Rupees in '000)  
 Financial assets         
 Trade debts    6,132,327  5,840,642 
 Loan to the Parent Company    -  400,000 
 Long term loan to CRL    1,518,780  1,518,780 
     7,651,107  7,759,422 

        
 Financial liabilities         
 Long-term nancing and deferred mark-up  17  17,767,028  16,833,269 
 Short-term borrowings  23  6,593,696  3,264,912 
 Current portion of liabilities against asset  

subject to nance lease 
 18  

4,362 
 

6,700 
              24,365,086  20,104,881 

                  
 A change of 1% in interest rates at the year-end would have increased or decreased the loss before tax 

by Rs. 169.007 million (June 2015: Rs. 122.989 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables 
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 2015. 

37.1.2 Currency risk 
  
 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 

due to changes in foreign exchange rates and arises where transactions are done in foreign currency. 
  
 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchase and borrowings that are denominated in a 

currency other than Pak Rupees. As the Group imports and exports nished petroleum products, it is 
exposed to currency risk. The currency is which these transactions are undertaken is US Dollar. 

  
 As at 30 June 2016, the Group is not exposed to any material foreign currency risk. 
  
37.1.3 Other price risk 
  
 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of the nancial instruments will 

uctuate because of changes in market prices. As at the balance sheet date, the Group is not exposed 
to any other price risk. 

  
37.2 Credit risk 
  
 Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss to the Group if a customer or a counter party to a nancial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables 
from customers and balances held with banks. The Group manages credit risk in the following manner: 

  
 Management of credit risk 
   
 The Group’s policy is to enter into nancial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board 

of Directors and other internal guidelines. 
   
 Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Group in the following manner: 
   
 - Credit rating and credit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the 

nancial background so as to minimize the risk of default.   

 - The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Group is 
mitigated by a periodic review of their credit ratings, nancial statements, credit worthiness and 
market information on a regular basis.   

 - Cash is held with reputable banks only.       
  
 As of the balance sheet date, the Group is exposed to credit risk on the following assets: 
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     Rupees in '000   
       
Long-term loans and advances  7  1,753,780  1,638,411  
Long-term deposits  8  31,332  31,068  
Trade debts  10  8,278,080  8,690,271  
Loans and advances  11  555,535  683,429  
Trade deposits  12  16,747  44,198  
Other receivables  13  1,276,715  1,660,951  
Interest accrued    353,193  435,888  
Cash and bank balances  14  240,330  692,425  
    12,505,712  13,876,641  
  
Credit quality of nancial assets  
  
The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to external credit ratings agencies or the historical information about counter party default 
rates as shown below: 

Note
30 June

2016
30 June 

2015

         
       
       
 Trade debts       
        
 The aging of unimpaired debtors at the balance sheet 

date is as follows: 
      

        
 Neither past due nor impaired    4,026,464  2,304,981 
 Past due 1-30 days    20,196  1,574,247 
 Past due 31-180 days    57,061  1,486,168 
 Past due 181 -365 days      1,010,007  737,798 
 Above 365 days    3,164,352  2,587,077 
     8,278,080  8,690,271 
        
 Bank balances       
 A-1+    22,486  116,869 
 A1+    119,307  455,373 
 A1    1,805  20,750 
 A-1    72,541  98,091 
 A2    24,191  259 
 C    -  909 
     240,330  692,251 
        
 Financial assets other than trade debts and bank balances are not exposed to any material credit risk. 
  
37.3 Liquidity risk 
  
 Liquidity risk re ects the Group’s inability in raising fund to meet commitments. Management closely 

monitors the Group’s liquidity and cash ow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet 
liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and 
avoidance of undue reliance on any individual customer. 

  
 The table below summarizes the maturity pro le of the Group's nancial liabilities based on contractual 

undiscounted payments. 

Rupees in '000

30 June
2016

30 June 
2015
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     On demand  Less than       

3 months 
 3 to 12    

months 
   Total 

     (Rupees in '000)  
 2016            
 Long-term loans and deferred mark-up  -  1,632,326  3,964,439  12,170,263  17,767,028 
 Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease  -  4,362  -  -  4,362 
 Long-term deposits    -  -  -  130,978  130,978 
 Trade and other payables   633,185  26,943,707  -  -  27,576,892 
 Short-term borrowings   347,303  6,593,696  -  -  6,940,999 
 Accrued mark-up    95,692  98,951  -  -  194,643 
     1,076,180  35,273,042  3,964,439  12,301,241  52,614,902 

     On demand  Less than       
3 months 

 3 to 12    
months 

   Total 

     (Rupees in '000)  
 2015            
 Long-term loans and deferred mark-up  -  -  3,900,058  12,933,211  16,833,269 
 Liabilities against assets subject to nance 

lease  
  

- 
  

1,193 
  

3,777 
  

1,730 
  

6,700 
 Long-term deposits    -  -  -  108,978  108,978 
 Trade and other payables   1,146  12,050,722  -  -  12,051,868 
 Short-term borrowings   -  3,264,912  -  -  3,264,912 
 Accrued mark-up    180,400  480,646  -  -  661,046 
     181,546  15,797,473  3,903,835  13,043,919  32,926,773 

1 to 5
years

1 to 5
years

37.4 Capital risk management       
        
 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital 

ratios in order to support its business sustain the development of the business and maximize the 
shareholders’ value. The Group closely monitors the return on capital. The Group manages its capital 
structure and makes adjustment to it in light of changes in economic conditions and nances its activities 
through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an approximate 
mix between various sources of nance to minimize the risk. No changes were made in the objectives, 
policies or processes during the year ended 30 June 2016. 

  
 The Group is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirement. 
  
38. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
  
 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between 

knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying values of all nancial assets and 
liabilities re ected in the nancial statements approximate their fair values. 
 
The following table shows nancial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose 
fair value is based on: 
 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, 
 
Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 
 
Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date 
(unobservable inputs). 
 
As of the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any nancial instruments measured at fair value. 

 
39.  OPERATING SEGMENTS          
  
 For management purposes, the Group has determined following reportable operating segments on the

basis of business activities i.e. oil re ning business, petroleum marketing businesses and petroleum 
storage services. Oil re ning business is engaged in crude oil re ning and selling of re ned petroleum 
products to oil marketing companies. Petroleum marketing business is engaged in trading of petroleum 
products, procuring products from oil re ning business as well as from other sources. Subsidiary 
Company (BTPL) is engaged in provision of bulk petroleum storage services. The quantitative data for 
segments is given below: 
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9.3 This includes nished product held by third parties amounting to Rs. 1,345.617million (30 June 2015: Rs. 

1,992.633 million) as at the balance sheet date.  
  
9.4 This includes nished product in transit amounting to Rs. 729.435 million (30 June 2015: Rs. Nil) as at the 

balance sheet date.  

9.5 Finished products costing Rs. 1,327.639 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 3,026.379 million) has been written 
down by Rs. 156.158 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 156.625 million) to Net Realizable Value.  

           

      Note  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000
 

10. TRADE DEBTS – unsecured      
       
 Considered good       
 Due from Pakistan State Oil Company Limited  10.1 4,531,746  4,476,158 
       
 Due from related parties:       
 - K-Electric Limited    196  1,364,484 
 - Standard Shipping Pakistan Limited   9,507  4,690 
 - Byco Oil Pakistan Limited – the Parent Company   1,172,703  201,810 
     1,182,406  1,570,984 

 Others    2,563,928  2,643,129 
        
 Considered doubtful    2,873,379  2,192,831 
     11,151,459  10,883,102 
        
 Provision for doubtful debts   10.2 (2,873,379)  (2,192,831) 
     8,278,080  8,690,271 

 

10.1 Represents amount due from Pakistan State Oil Company Limited (PSO) against supplies of products 
and on account of mark-up on delayed payments. The Holding Company had entered into a "sale and 
purchase of product" agreement with PSO on 05 April 2002 for a period of 10 years. The said agreement 
mentions that in the event of late payment of invoices by PSO, the Holding Company would be entitled 
to recover mark-up from PSO for the period of delay on daily compounding basis at the lending rates 
applicable for short-term running nance of the Holding Company or PSO whichever is lower. The mark 
up on delayed payments relates only to purchases made by PSO under agreement dated 02 April 2002, 
which expired on 02 April 2012. Subsequent to the expiry of the agreement all purchases made by PSO 
do not carry any mark up on delayed payment. 
 
Based on the legal opinion, the management is of the considered view that the Holding Company has a 
legal right to claim markup from PSO. Further, the Holding Company is currently pursuing this matter 
with the Director General Oil, Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources, for the recovery / 
settlement of the outstanding amount. Hence, the management is con dent that the Holding Company 
would be able to recover the receivable in full from PSO in due course of time. 

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note
           

 
         
10.2 Provision for doubtful debts 

 Opening balance    2,192,831  1,793,223 
 Provision made during the year   30 680,548  399,608 
 Closing balance    2,873,379  2,192,831 

11.  – unsecured, considered good 
      
 Loan to employees    100  100 
 Advance to CRL 7.2 446,037  -   
 Advance to suppliers and contractors  109,398  283,329   
    11.1 555,535  283,429   
          
 Loan to Parent Company   11.2 -  400,000   
     555,535  683,429 
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30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

11.1 These loans and advances are interest free. 
  
11.2 This carried mark-up at the rate of six months KIBOR plus 3.25% per annum, receivable semi-annually in 

arrears. The principal amount outstanding was received during May 2016. 
 

         
 

  
 

         
 

12. -TERM PREPAYMENTS 

 Current portion of nance lease deposits 8 6,955  6,955 
 Trade deposits    3,522  5,140   
 Margin against letters of credit    6,270  3,815 
     16,747  15,910   
 Prepayments:       
 - Insurance    33,858  24,033   
 - Rent    2,612  4,255   
     53,217  44,198 
          
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES         
          
 Inland Freight Equalization Margin  397,062  866,192 
 Receivable from CRL 13.1 550,518  526,504   
 Lease rentals due from the Parent Company 13.2 329,135  268,255 
     1,276,715  1,660,951 

 
13.1 This represents expenses incurred by a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) on behalf of CRL. The outstanding 

balance is being adjusted against the cost payable to CRL on account of usage of Buoy. 

13.2 This represents receivable in respect of land situated at Mauza Kund, Balochistan, sub-leased to the 
Parent Company. 

          
 

  
 

         
14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES      

 Cash in hand    102  74 
 Stamp papers    100  100 

 Cash at banks        
   - Current accounts    137,813  675,653 
   - Saving / deposit accounts   14.1 &14.2 102,517  16,598 
    14.3 240,330  692,251 

     240,532  692,425 

14.1 These carry interest at the rates ranging from 5.3 % to 8.2% (30 June 2015: 5.5% to 8.5%) per annum. 
  
14.2 Bank balances with saving accounts are placed under interest arrangements. The Group has 

conventional banking relationships with all the banks having Islamic window operations. 
  
14.3 This includes Rs. 5.254 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 23.98 million) kept under lien against letter of credit 

facilities obtained from banks. 

15. SHARE CAPITAL        

 30 June 
2016 

 30 June 
2015 

    30 June 
2016 

 30 June 
2015 

 (Number of Shares)      (Rupees in '000)  
    Authorized share capital    
 1,200,000,000  1,200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 12,000,000  12,000,000 

    Issued, subscribed and     
      paid-up capital     
 977,858,737  977,858,737 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 9,778,587  9,778,587 
        

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note
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As at 30 June 2016, Byco Oil Pakistan Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of Byco Industries 
Incorporated) held 790,510,099 (30 June 2015: 790,510,099) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each, 
aggregating to Rs. 7,905.101 million and constituting 80.84% of issued share capital of the Holding 
Company. 

         
16. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,     
   PLANT AND EQUIPMENT        

 Opening balance     21,687,674     22,627,641 

 Surplus on revaluation carried out during the year 5.1.2 -            66,939 
 Surplus on revaluation of Isomerization plant   -  - 
        -            66,939 
 Transfer to accumulated loss in respect of:      
   - incremental depreciation charged during the         
       year - net of tax     (983,234)         (684,696) 
   - related deferred tax liability     (446,565)         (322,210) 
        (1,429,799)      (1,006,906) 
           
      20,257,875     21,687,674 

 Less: related deferred tax liability:       
   - on revaluation at the beginning of the year   7,213,523       7,535,733 
 - related to revaluation carried out during the year     -  - 
   - on incremental depreciation charged during the year  (446,565)         (322,210) 
       20.1 6,766,958       7,213,523 
           
 Closing balance       13,490,917     14,474,151 

 

17. LONG-TERM FINANCING AND DEFERRED MARK-UP    
         
 Restructured principal and accrued mark-up facilities  12,080,128    12,869,267 
 Total deferred mark-up on restructured principal  

facilities  3,337,517      3,084,533 
    17.1 15,417,645  15,953,800 
 
 Loan from commercial bank – I 17.2 - 171,058 
 Loan from commercial bank – II      17.3 1,620,000  - 
 Loan form syndicate banks      17.4 & 17.6 348,780  348,780 
 Musharaka facility      17.5& 17.6 340,000  340,000 
 Unwinding of arrangement fee      17.6 40,603  19,631 
        17,767,028  16,833,269 
 Current maturity:          
 - restructured principal facilities  (5,154,142)      (3,529,000) 
 - deferred mark-up on restructured principal facilities   (288,184)  (200,000) 
 - loan from commercial bank – I   -  (171,058) 
 - loan from commercial bank – II   (154,439)  - 
    24 (5,596,765)      (3,900,058) 
       
       12,170,263     12,933,211 

 

17.1 The syndicate banks upon request of the Holding Company restructured the outstanding amount in 
accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions mentioned in the Restructured Agreement (the 
Agreement) made on 04 December 2012. As per the Agreement, principal amount of Rs. 17,379.700 
million had been restructured over a period of maximum 7 years from 2013 to 2019 and carries mark-up 
at the rate of 6 months Karachi Inter-Bank O er Rate (KIBOR) whereas deferred markup of Rs. 1,853.586 
million is interest-free and is to be paid within a period of two years commencing after the payment of 
restructured principal facilities. Further, the restructured facility contains a covenant that the Holding 
Company cannot pay dividend to its shareholders in the event of a default. 

 

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

As per the terms of the Agreement, National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) was paid on a priority basis,
whereas payment in respect of the remaining principal amount is to be made in fourteen unequal semi-
annual installments. Further, an amount of Rs. 50 million out of the total deferred mark-up during the 
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restructured period shall be payable by the Holding Company on each installment date in the rst year 
and Rs. 100 million on each installment date in the following six years. The remaining deferred mark-up 
shall be payable within a period of two years commencing after the repayment of the restructured 
principal facilities. 

 

 The restructuring of loans as mentioned above had resulted in substantial modi cation of the nancing 
terms. Accordingly, the previous liability has been derecognised and new liability has been recognised at 
fair value. The di erence between the carrying amount of the liability extinguished and the fair value of 
the new liability has been recognised in the consolidated pro t and loss account. 

          
 The restructured facility is secured by way of:       

 (i) rst Joint Pari Passu charge over xed assets of the Holding Company to the extent of Rs. 7,670 
million, rst Pari Passu equitable mortgage charge over xed assets (land and building only) of the 
Holding Company to the extent of Rs. 7,670million;   

 (ii) rst Pari Passu equitable mortgage charge over xed assets (exclusive of land and building) of the 
Holding Company to the extent of Rs. 20,400 million;   

 (iii) rst Joint Charge on the assets of a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) including storage related assets 
and crude oil tanks; 

 (iv) rst Pari Passu Hypothecation charge to the extent of Rs. 9,697 million on all present and future 
current assets of the Holding Company; and   

 (v) the syndicate banks will have a lien and right of set o  on an account maintained with an assigned 
agent bank wherein the Holding Company will route all its revenues / receipts. 

 
17.2 Represents a long-term loan obtained by a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) from a commercial bank 

amounting to Rs. 342.116 million. The loan carried mark-up at the rate of one year KIBOR plus 2.75% per 
annum, repayable in two equal annual installments in arrears with a grace period of one year from the 
date of disbursement i.e. 13 February 2013.This was secured by hypothecation on all movable assets of 
BTPL. The amount has been repaid in full during the current year. 

 

17.3 Represents a long-term loan obtained by a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) from a commercial bank 
amounting to Rs. 1,800 million. The loan carries mark-up at the rate of six month KIBOR plus 2.75% per 
annum, payable semi-annually from the date of disbursement i.e. 2 November 2011 and is secured by 
hypothecation on all movable assets of BTPL. The principal outstanding was repayable as a bullet 
payment in November 2013, however, during the current year, the commercial bank upon the request of 
BTPL has restructured the facility (refer note 23.1). Based on the revised agreement, the loan will now be 
repayable in fourteen stepped up quarterly installments which has commenced from August 2015 and is 
payable latest by May 2019 and carry mark-up at the abovementioned rate. 

 

  
17.4 Represents a long-term facility amounting to Rs.348.780 million obtained by a Subsidiary Company 

(BTPL) from syndicate banks carrying mark-up at the rate of 8% per annum for the rst two years from 
the date of disbursement i.e 30 June 2015 and an average six months KIBOR or 12% per annum, 
whichever is lower, for subsequent years. The loan is repayable semi-annually in 8 years with a grace 
period of two years from the date of disbursement. This long term facility is secured by: 
 

i) all present and future assets of CRL; 
ii) personnel guarantees provided by the sponsors of CRL; 
iii) personnel properties of sponsors of CRL; and 
iv) pledge of 80% shares of CRL with a condition of not decreasing less than 51% at any given time. 

 
17.5 Represents a long-term Musharaka facility amounting to Rs. 340 million obtained by a Subsidiary 

Company (BTPL) from a commercial bank carrying mark-up at the rate of 8% for the rst two years and 
an average of six months KIBOR or 12% per annum, whichever is lower, for subsequent years. The loan is 
repayable semi-annually in 8 years with a grace period of two years from the date of disbursement i.e 
commencing from 30 June 2017. This Musharaka facility  is secured by: 

i) all present and future assets of CRL; 
ii) personnel guarantees provided by the sponsors of CRL; 
iii) personnel properties of sponsors of CRL; and 
iv) pledge of 80% shares of CRL with a condition of not decreasing less than 51% at any given time.
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17.6 Represents unwinding of arrangement fee comprising of Rs. 21.753 million and Rs. 18.850 million, 

calculated at an e ective interest rate of 10.862% and 10.89%, respectively. The said amounts relate to 
the arrangement fee amounting to Rs. 214.645 million and Rs. 231.392 million payable from 9th year 
onwards on the loan from the Syndicate banks and Musharaka facility availed by a Subsidiary Company 
(BTPL).However, during the current year, the Syndicate Banks and Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited 
have waived Rs. 223.019 million out of the said arrangement fees as disclosed in note 7.2 to these 
consolidated nancial statements.  

 
18. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE   

   June 2016  June 2015 
   Lease Payments  Lease Payments 
   Minimum  Present 

value 
 Minimum  Present 

value 

    (Rupees in '000)  

 Less than one year 5,006  4,362  5,726  4,970 
 One to ve years -  -  1,963  1,730 
 Total minimum lease payments  5,006  4,362  7,689  6,700 
 arges allocated        
 to the future period 644  -  989  - 
 Present value of minimum         
 lease payments 4,362  4,362  6,700  6,700 
 Less: Current portion under         
 current liabilities 4,362  4,362  4,970  4,970 
   -  -  1,730  1,730 

 

18.1 Presently, the Holding Company has lease agreements with the leasing companies to acquire vehicles. 
The rentals under the lease agreements are payable upto August 2016. The cost of operating and 
maintaining the leased assets is borne by the Holding Company. The Group intends to exercise the 
option to purchase the leased assets at the residual value of assets upon the completion of respective 
lease periods 

 

 
      Note  30 June 

2016 
 30 June  

2015 
        Rupees in '000

 
 

19. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS        
        
 Deposit from related party 19.1  3,646  3,646 
 Trade and other deposits   19.2  127,332  105,332 
       130,978  108,978 

19.1 Represents interest-free deposit received from Parent Company against land lease rental. 
  
19.2 Represents interest-free deposits received from its logistics vendors as security against goods to be 

transported. 
           

      Note  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
20. DEFERRED LIABILITIES       

 Deferred taxation   20.1  4,771,519  5,992,573 
 Employees retirements bene ts  20.2  57,880  52,997 
 Arrangement fee  7.2 & 17.6  198,210  426,406 
       5,027,609  6,471,976 
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20.1 DEFERRED TAXATION    
  
Taxable temporary di erences arising in respect of:  

- accelerated tax depreciation 1,983,711 1,918,692 
- nance lease  - 1,922 

 - surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 16  6,766,958  7,213,523 
         8,750,669  9,134,137 

Deductible temporary di erences arising in respect of: 
- sta  gratuity fund (17,942) (16,961) 
-provision for doubtful debts (890,748) (701,706) 

 - nance lease    (140)  - 
-intangibles - (9,067) 

 - pre-commencement expenditure    -  (6,006) 
- unabsorbed tax losses (3,070,320) (2,407,824) 

         (3,979,150)  (3,141,564) 
 4,771,519 5,992,573 

20.2 Employees retirements bene ts- sta  gratuity 

20.2.1 General description 

The Group operates employee retirement bene ts for permanent employees who have completed the 
minimum service period. In accordance with the requirements of IAS–19 “Employee Bene ts”, actuarial 
valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2016, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has 
been made in the consolidated nancial statements to cover obligation in accordance with the actuarial 
recommendations. Details of signi cant assumptions used for the valuation and disclosures in respect 
of above-mentioned scheme is as follows: 

 
 

Note 
30 June 

2016 
 30 June 

2015 
  Rupees in '000
20.2.2 Reconciliation of amount payable to de ned bene t plan 

            
Present value of de ned bene t obligation 20.2.3 80,017            89,010 
Fair value of plan assets 20.2.4  (22,137)          (36,013) 
  57,880            52,997 

20.2.3 Movement in the present value of de ned bene t 
obligation:  

 

Opening balance 89,010 81,577 
Current service cost 17,949 18,842 
Interest cost 7,161 10,461 
Transfer to the Parent Company 484 (14,916) 
Bene ts paid during the year (34,787) (8,179) 
Actuarial loss 200 1,225 
  80,017 89,010 

 

 
 

Note 
30 June 

2016 
 30 June 

2015 
  Rupees in '000  
20.2.4 Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:  

 
 

Opening balance 36,013 15,978 

 
Expected return on plan assets 2,762             1,732 

 
Contributions 18,000            26,000 

 
Bene ts paid during the year (34,787) (6,312) 

 
Actuarial gain / (loss)  149            (1,385) 

 
  22,137 36,013 
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         20.2.5 Movement in net liability:  

Opening balance 52,997 65,599 
Charge for the year  20.2.6 22,348 27,571 
Transfer to the Parent Company  484 (14,916) 
Bene ts paid on behalf of the fund  - (1,867) 
Contributions  (18,000) (26,000) 
Actuarial loss chargeable in other  comprehensive income 20.2.7 51 2,610 
 57,880 52,997 

20.2.6 Charge for the year    

 Current service cost  17,949            18,842 
 Interest cost – net 4,399             8,729 
  22,348            27,571 

20.2.7 Actuarial re-measurements    

 Actuarial loss on de ned bene t obligations 200 1,225 
 Actuarial (gain) / loss on fair value of plan assets (149)             1,385 
  51 2,610 
     
20.2.8 Actuarial assumption 
      
 Valuation discount rate per annum  9.00% 10.00% 
 Salary increased rate per annum 7.00% 11.50% 
 Expected return on plan assets per annum 9.00% 10.00% 
 Normal retirement age of employees 60 years 60 years 
          
20.2.9 Comparisons for past years:    
     

 As at June 30 2016  2015  2014  2013  2012 
   (Rupees `000)  
           
 Present value of de ned bene t obligation 80,017  89,010  81,577  52,306  47,764 
 Fair value of plan assets (22,137)  (36,013)  (15,978)  -  - 
 De cit  57,880  52,997  65,599  52,306  47,764 
           
 Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 200  1,225  11,445  7,406  3,391 
 Experience adjustment on plan assets (149)  1,385  (65)  -  - 
  51  2,610  11,380  7,406  3,391 
           

  30 June  
2016 

 30 June 
2015 

  Rupees in '000  
20.2.10 Composition of plan assets   

    
 Cash at bank 22,137 36,013 

20.2.11 Balance sheet date sensitivity analysis (+ 100 bps) on present value of de ned bene t obligation 

          

    2016 
    Discount rate Salary increase 
    +100 bps  - 100 bps  +100 bps  - 100 bps 
      

Present value of de ned bene t obligation   70,642  91,151  91,686  70,072 

20.2.12 
scheme. 
 

20.2.13 Charge for the next nancial year as per the actuarial valuation report amounts to Rs. 17.735 million. 
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Note

  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        (Rupees in '000)  
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES    
          

Creditors for supplies and services  21.1 19,677,480  17,250,734 
Accrued liabilities   472,976  505,605 

 Due to related party  21.2  13,658  13,658 
Payable to the Parent Company   -  436,016 
Advance from customers  21.3 670,263   1,712,653 
Dividend payable   1,146   1,146 
Sales tax, duties, levies and late payment surcharge   6,591,541  11,952,685 
Workers’ pro t participation fund  21.4 109,445   64,181 

 Workers’ welfare fund  30  15,569  - 
Withholding tax deductions payable    3,684   35,608 
Payable to sta  provident fund   13,934   4,302 
Others   7,196   7,760 

     27,576,892   31,984,348 
 

21.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 22.983 million (30 June 2015: 70.589 million) payable to China Harbour 
Engineering Company (CHEC) with respect to engineering, fabrication and installation of SPM o shore 
and onshore pipelines. 

  
21.2 This represents amount of Rs. 12.014 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 12.014 million) payable in respect of 

expenses paid on behalf of the Holding Company by Byco Industries Incorporated and also an amount of 
Rs. 1.644 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 1.644 million) payable against purchases made from Premier Systems 
(Private) Limited. 

  
21.3 This includes an amount of Rs. 138 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 158 million) received in respect of 

demarcated plots of land for setting up of Lique ed Petroleum Gas storage and lling facilities (LPG 
village facility). The amount has been received in advance from consumers under LPG village facility 
utilization agreement. The agreements are e ective for 10 years from the date of signing or any period 
thereafter as mutually agreed. During the year, the advance was returned to certain consumers on the 
their demand, however, the facility is expected to commence shortly after commissioning of re nery of 
the Parent Company and completion of certain legal formalities upon which the advance will be classi ed 
as deferred revenue and will be amortized over the period of the agreed terms. These advances are 
interest free. 

        

  
Note

  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        (Rupees in '000)  
21.4 Workers' pro t participation fund       
            

 Opening balance      64,181  56,823 
 Allocation for the year    30  38,923  - 
 Mark-up charged for the year     21.4.1& 32  6,341  7,358 
         109,445  64,181 

 

 
21.4.1 Mark-up has been charged at KIBOR plus 2.5% as per the Companies Profit (Workers' Participation) Act, 

1968. 
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Note

  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        (Rupees in '000)  
22. ACCRUED MARK-UP    
          

Long-term nancing   98,951  24,349 
 Short-term borrowings    -  456,297 
 Advance from customers    95,692  180,400 

        194,643 661,046 
      
23. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS     

From commercial banks – secured     
- Short-term nance facility  23.1 - 1,800,000 
- Short-term nance facility   23.2 - 400,000 
- Finance against trust receipt  23.3 6,593,696 737,609 

          
 From a related party – unsecured    23.4  -  327,303 

Other – unsecured  23.4 347,303 - 
        6,940,999 3,264,912 

           
23.1 As disclosed in note 17.3 to these consolidated nancial statements, the commercial bank upon request 

of a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) has restructured the facility. 

23.2 This represents loan obtained by a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) from a commercial bank carrying mark-
up at the rate of six months KIBOR plus 3.25% per annum, with markup payable semi-annually in arrears 
and principal payable in two installments; Rs. 250 million on 27th January 2016 and Rs. 150 million on 10 
February 2016. This loan has been secured by pledge on shares of the Parent Company with 35% margin. 
The loan has been fully repaid during the year. 

 

  
23.3 The facility has been extended by a commercial bank for working capital requirements aggregating to 

Rs. 15,000 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 15,000 million) out of which Rs. 8,406.304 million (30 June 2015: Rs. 
14,262.391 million) remains unutilized as at the balance sheet date. The facility carries mark-up at 3 
month's KIBOR plus 1%. The facility is secured against documents of title of goods, stock of crude and 
petroleum products, and receivables, lien on the bank's collection account and a Rs. 15,000 million 
corporate guarantee furnished by the Parent Company. 

  
23.4 During the current year the loan obtained from CUSP Pakistan Limited, a related party, amounting to Rs. 

347.303 million has been novated to Cnergyico Acisal Incorporated as per the Novation Agreement 
dated April 14, 2016. The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. 

 
      

Note
  30 June 

2016 
 30 June  

2015 
        Rupees in '000  
24. CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM FINANCING      

AND DEFERRED MARK-UP          

Long-term nancing and deferred mark-up     17 5,596,765 3,900,058 

 

25. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

25.1 Contingencies

25.1.1 As at June 30, 2015, the Holding Company had recorded default surcharge and penalties for the tax 
periods from July 2013 to June 2014 and July 2014 to May 2015 amounting to Rs. 708.883 million and
Rs. 398.012 million, respectively. 
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25.1.2 Claims against the Holding Company not acknowledged as debts amounting to Rs. 3,834.285 million (30 
June 2015: Rs. 3,137 million) comprise of late payment charges on account of delayed payments against 
crude oil supplies from Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL), Mari Gas Limited (MGL) 
and Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) amounting to Rs. 3,196.378 million, Rs. 233.55 million and Rs. 
404.357 million respectively. The details of the cases led by MGL and PPL are as follows: 

 

  
Mari Gas Limited (MGL) had led a suit bearing number 636 of 2012 in Honorable High Court of Sindh at 
Karachi whereby a sum of Rs. 817.340 million has been claimed by MGL on account of its share of the 
price of condensate allocated to the Holding Company from the Adam X-1 well together with late 
payment surcharge and other associated legal and other cost amounting to a total of Rs. 1,050.890 
million. Out of the above mentioned principal, the Holding Company had paid Rs. 203.148 million in 
previous years and as a matter of prudence, the remaining principal amounting to Rs. 614.192 million has 
already been recorded in these consolidated nancial statements. 

 

  
Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) had led a suit bearing number 160 of 2013 in the Honorable High 
Court of Sindh at Karachi for recovery of unpaid sales invoices amounting to Rs. 1,156 million which has 
already been booked in these consolidated nancial statements.  Additionally, PPL also claims a Late 
Payment Surcharge (LPS) amounting to Rs. 404 million. 

 

 
 Based on the opinion of legal advisor, the Holding Company is of the view that there are no speci c 

contractual arrangements with the above suppliers along with OGDCL which allow them to claim / 
recover LPS and other associated costs and hence no provision in respect of the same has been made in 
these consolidated nancial statements. 

 

During the current year, the Holding Company received an order from Deputy Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (DCIR), dated 20 August 2015, in respect of tax periods July 2013 to June 2014, whereby default 
surcharge of Rs. 537.730 million and penalty amounting to Rs. 572.963 million were levied. However, on 

30 September 2015, waived the aforementioned default surcharge and penalty. Accordingly, provision for 
default surcharge and penalty amounting to Rs. 708.883  million made in this respect in the consolidated 

Further, the Holding Company received various orders from DCIR in respect of tax periods from June 
2015 to January 2016 claiming default surcharge amounting to Rs. 21.445 million and penalty amounting 

aforementioned default surcharge and penalty. Therefore, no accrual in respect of aforementioned

Furthermore, the Holding Company received various orders from DCIR in respect of tax periods from 
October 2015 to January 2016 to recover the amount of sales tax, default surcharge and penalty amount-

Therefore, no accrual in respect of aforementioned tax periods has been made in these

During the current year, the Holding Company has made a provision amounting to Rs. 243.353 million for 
default surcharge and penalties for periods from June 2015 to September 2015 and February 2016 to May 
2016. Therefore as at the balance sheet date, total provision amounting to Rs. 644.781 million has been 

light of the provisions of the Sales Tax Act, 1990.

25.1.3 The Holding Company was served with a sales tax order by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) claiming 
additional sales tax amounting to Rs. 99 million. The Holding Company has not adjusted its input claim of 
Rs. 99 million being Federal Excise Duty (FED) claim charged under Value Added Tax (VAT) mode by 
Banking Companies, Insurance Companies and Terminal Operators on various invoices in the relevant 
tax periods from July 2009 to June 2011. The Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR) has condoned the time 
limit under section 43 of the Federal Excise Duty Act, 2005 and has allowed the Holding Company to 
adjust Rs 66 million in the month of June 2014. The remaining amount to be adjusted is under 
consideration by FBR. 
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25.1.4 A supplier of generators to a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) has led a suit against BTPL for a sum of Rs. 
2.115 million on account of increased cost of materials, nancial losses etc. on account of delay in 
delivery, which in the view of plainti  was caused due to acts of BTPL. However, the delay was on part of 
supplier which compelled BTPL to hire the generators during the delayed period on which BTPL incurred 
and recovered a sum of Rs. 1.238 million through encashment of guarantees provided by supplier. The 
suit is pending and no provision for the above claim has been made in these consolidated nancial 
statements as there is no contractual or other basis on which the plainti  can rest its claim and 
accordingly the same is likely to be rejected by the Honorable Court, as per BTPL’s legal advisor. 

 

25.1.5 China Harbour Engineering Company (CHEC), engaged by a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) for the 
construction of Single Point Mooring on 19 August 2011, demanded a penalty of Rs. 22 million from BTPL 
on account of delayed payments in accordance with the terms of the agreement entered into between 
BTPL and CHEC. However, BTPL has not acknowledged the said demand as it believes that delay was on 
part of contractor’s bank. No demand of notice or any correspondences have been received from CHEC 
regarding follow up of this penalty based on which no provision for the above demand has been made in 
these consolidated nancial statements. 

 

  
25.1.6 During the current year, the customs authorities raised demand of Rs.273.58 million on account of 

import duty and taxes on import of Tugs being used for the purposes of towing and mooring of vessels 
discharging petroleum products at the Single Point Mooring (SPM). Since, the tug boats in question are 
imported on a temporary basis, the management of a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) is of the view that 
such tugs are entitled to exemption from import duty and taxes under SRO 678(I) of 2004. The bene t of 
the said SRO was previously granted to BTPL, however, the customs authorities have recently changed 
their view as to the applicability of the said SRO to the tugs in question and have issued show cause 
notices to BTPL to pay the customs duties and taxes as assessed by the customs authorities and have 
refused to complete the goods declaration of the tugs, therefore, the tugs in question cannot be re-
exported by BTPL until the entitlement to bene t of the SRO is nally adjudicated upon the customs 
adjudication or the court of law. BTPL on the basis of the advice of its legal advisor have led CP No.408 
/ 2015 and CP No.828 / 2015 before the High Court of Balochistan at Quetta at seeking a determination 
as to the applicability of the SRO to the tugs imported by BTPL and has also led CP No.828 of 2015 in 
order to seek a direction of the court to release a tug of BTPL. Based on the opinion of legal advisor, the 
management is con dent that the matter will be decided in its favor. Hence, no provision for the above 
demand has been made in these consolidated nancial statements. 

  
25.1.7 The Holding Company was selected for an audit under Section 177 and 214C of the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001 for the tax years 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2013. Audit proceedings for all mentioned tax 
years were completed and a demand of Rs. 87.105 million has been raised in an amended order passed 
under Section 122(1)(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. This pertains to the tax year 2013 only and 
represents tax due under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

 

 Being aggrieved by the amended order, the Holding Company led an appeal before Commissioner 
Inland Revenue, Appeals, Karachi which is pending for adjudication. However, as a matter of prudence, 
the said amount has already been provided for in the consolidated nancial statements. 

 
 

        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
25.2 Commitments          

25.2.1 Outstanding letters of credit      10,722,572 4,606 

 

Management based on the opinion of its advisor is con dent of a favourable decision and accordingly no 
provision has been made in this respect.
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25.2.2 Commitments for capital expenditure  11,478 41,146 

25.2.3 Commitments in respect of Ijarah nancing:   

 Not later than one year       35,542  65,553 
            
26. SALES - net     

Gross Sales 
Local  108,685,777 111,245,979 
Export  7,581,901 8,866,314 
  116,267,678 120,112,293 

Less: Sales discount, sales tax, excise duty  
and petroleum  development  levy  (36,179,273) (24,739,889) 

80,088,405 95,372,404 

27. COST OF SALES 

Opening stock 4,176,741 6,292,464 
Cost of goods manufactured 27.1 40,085,076 72,423,146 
Finished products purchased during the year  35,915,358 16,271,282 
  80,177,175 94,986,892 

Closing stock 9 (4,942,026) (4,176,741) 
 75,235,149 90,810,151 

27.1 Cost of goods manufactured    
     
 Raw material consumed 27.1.1 35,561,446 68,441,804 
 Salaries, wages and other bene ts 27.1.2 390,677 388,802 
 Depreciation 5.1.4 2,378,726 1,865,229 
 Fuel, power and water 263,469 602,827 
 Operation cost 903,093 578,222 
 Insurance 106,915 101,719 
 Repairs and maintenance 177,363 101,640 
 Rent, rates and taxes 67,640 89,794 
 Industrial gases and chemicals 61,700 76,326 
 Sta  transportation and catering 62,676 67,705 
 Stores and spares consumed 67,591 58,754 
 Security expenses 24,120 17,014 
 Vehicle running 9,840 10,297 
 Technical fee        -  8,443 
 Others 9,820 14,570 

  40,085,076 72,423,146 

 

Note
30 June

2016
30 June 

2015
Rupees in '000

 30 June 
2016 

30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000
27.1.1 Raw material consumed    

  

 Opening stock 682,874 2,485,043
Purchases during the year 37,268,301 66,639,635
 37,951,175 69,124,678

Closing stock 9 (2,389,729) (682,874)
Raw material consumed  35,561,446 68,441,804
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27.1.2 12.938 
bene ts. 

 

      Note  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES       

 Salaries, allowances and other bene ts  28.1 382,062           359,122 
 Rent, rates and taxes       67,318             70,204 
 Depreciation     5.1.4 54,652  58,674 
 Repairs and maintenance      36,309             36,308 
 Legal and professional       26,673             34,141 
 Travelling and conveyance      27,359             28,129 
 Vehicle running       24,098  23,777 
 Utilities        7,630             11,364 
 Fee and subscriptions       10,140             10,332 
 Insurance        7,878               7,765 
 Auditors’ remuneration     28.2 5,281               5,857 
 Printing and stationary       7,687               5,495 
 SAP maintenance costs      17,986               1,487 
 Others        18,539  15,444 
         693,612   668,099 

28.1 es a sum of Rs.6.671 
bene ts. 

 

        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
28.2 Auditors’ remuneration         

 Statutory audit     1,800               1,800 
 Half yearly review    500                  500 
 Consolidation of nancial statements 400                  400 
 Special audit and other certi cations    2,006               2,250 
 Out of pocket expenses    575               907 
      5,281               5,857 

 

      
Note

  30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
29. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES     

 Salaries, allowances and other bene ts  29.1  169,334           164,402 
 Transportation and product handing charges    1,858,109  1,838,354 
 Sales commission    177,903  447,639 
 Advertisement       47,510  28,634 
 Rent, rates and taxes       86,461             63,212 
 Depreciation      5.1.4  37,643             38,195 
 Export development surcharge      16,568             20,772 
 Wharfage and other export expenses    30,574  16,045 
 Insurance        2,036             11,667 
         2,426,138  2,628,920 

29.1 This includes a sum of Rs.2.739 
bene ts. 
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      Note  30 June 

2016 
 30 June  

2015 
        Rupees in '000  
30. OTHER EXPENSES          

 Late payment surcharge and penalties       245,327  405,724 
 Provision for doubtful debts     10.2  680,548           399,608 
 Workers’ pro t participation fund      21.4  38,923  - 
 Workers’ welfare fund      21  15,569  - 
         980,367  805,332 

31. OTHER INCOME          
          
 Income from nancial assets        
 Interest on balances due from customers      465,251   686,817 
 Interest income on saving accounts      17,271  35,584 
 Interest on loan to CRL        50,618  24,349 
         533,140  746,750 
          
 Deferred arrangement fee payable written back    20  223,019  - 

 Income from non- nancial assets        
 Reversal of excess sales tax surcharge provision   708,883           913,576 
 Inland Freight Equalization Margin      -  256,408 
 Land lease rent       52,937             52,937 
 Storage and handling income        28,158  41,638 
 Gain on disposal of operating xed assets  5.1.5  3,044               1,693 
 Dealership income        8,100  2,420 
         801,772  1,268,672 
            
         1,557,281        2,015,422 

 

       30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
32. FINANCE COSTS         
          
 Mark-up on:         
 - Long-term nancing       1,560,519  1,692,106 
 - Loan from a commercial bank   17.2 &17.3  173,712  - 
 - Loan from syndicate banks     17.4  25,877  10,861 
 - Short-term borrowings       696,248   1,292,564 
 - Loan from the Parent Company       -  21,054 
 - Musharaka facility     17.5  24,741        13,488 
 - Advance from customers       20,159  26,994 
 - Workers’ pro t participation fund     21.4  6,341  7,358 
        2,507,597  3,064,425 
           
 Unwinding of arrangement fee       20,971  19,631 
 Exchange loss – net     32.1  229,070  337,753 
 Bank and other charges        67,405  61,859 
         2,825,043  3,483,668 
            
 Recovery of mark-up from Parent Company relating to 

short-term borrowings  
    

 
  

(25,451) 
  

(50,770) 
 Reimbursement of arrangement fee from CRL      (20,971)  (19,631) 
         (46,422)  (70,401) 
            
         2,778,621        3,413,267 
           
32.1 Represents exchange loss - net arising on revaluation of foreign currency nancial assets and liabilities 

and on transactions in foreign currencies. 
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Note
         30 June 

2016 
 30 June  

2015 
        Rupees in '000  
33. TAXATION         

 Current         (448,164)  (529,988) 
 Prior year        81,635  - 
 Deferred        1,221,055  820,033 
         854,526        290,045 
            
33.1 The income tax returns of the Holding Company and a Subsidiary Company (BTPL) have been led up to 

and including tax year 2015. These, except for those mentioned below, are deemed to have been 
assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.  

 Income tax and taxable losses of the Holding Company in respect of tax years 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2013 
have been assessed by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 122(1) of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001, whereas return submitted for the tax year 2008 has been amended by the Additional 
Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 122(5A). The amendments relate to proration of expense 
against income covered in NTR and FTR, disallowance of unrealized exchange loss and other expenses 
not allowed under section 21. The management has led an appeal against the aforesaid notices and in 
consultation with its tax advisors is con dent that no major liability is expected to arise. 

33.2 Relationship between accounting loss and tax expense for the year   

The Holding Company and a Subsidiary Company is subject to Minimum Tax and Final Tax Regime under 
section 113 and section 169 respectively of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship 
between income tax expense and accounting pro t has not been presented for the current year. 
 
No taxation has been provided by a Subsidiary Company (BIPL) in line with the provisions of Section 113 
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

 

        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
34. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE – basic and diloted 
  
 Pro t / (loss) after taxation    386,325  (647,898) 
        
      (Number)  
       
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares    977,858,737  977,858,737 
        
      Rupees  
        
 Earnings / (loss) per share – basic and diluted    0.40  (0.66) 

35. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES   

The Group has related party transactions with its ultimate parent company, parent company, 
associated companies, directors, key management personnel, sta  provident fund and sta  gratuity 
fund. Details of transactions and balances with related parties are as follows: 
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        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
       
35.1 Transactions with related parties       

 Parent Company          
 Land lease rentals       52,634  52,861 
 Purchases      41,998,051  62,487,341 
 Loan received      400,000  - 
 Sales      13,469,307  4,489,445 
 Mark-up charged - net       368,345  638,289 
 Interest received      27,994  - 
 Allocation of gratuity expense      484  14,916 
 Allocation of group expenses      378,194  352,044 
 Purchase of operating xed assets      -  416,195 

Associated Companies 
Sales 1,063,832  7,791,034 
Consultancy services from associated company 13,076  17,388 

 Purchase of operating xed assets and services    -  5,324 
Interest income 28,348  198,216 

 Port services rendered    44,655  38,201 
Receipt of short-term loan 20,000  206,303 

        
 Sta  Provident Fund       
 Contribution made to sta  provident fund   42,367  62,317 

        30 June 
2016 

 30 June  
2015 

        Rupees in '000  
35.2 Balances with related parties        

 Ultimate Parent Company        
 Payable against expenses    12,014           12,014 

           
 Parent Company         
 Receivable against land lease rent    329,134  268,255 

 Interest accrued      18,924           45,337 

 Security deposit payable     3,646  3,646 

 Receivable against services   167,197  201,810 

 Payable against purchases and expenses   433,389  1,812,909 

 Receivable against purchase of goods and services    1,005,506  - 

 Loan receivable - net of mark-up    -  400,000 

 Associated Companies        
 Long-term deposit receivable     95  95 

 Trade debts      9,703      1,369,174 

 Advance against purchases   9,407  9,407 

 Interest accrued      259,302  366,204 

 Payable against purchases   11,709  8,455 

 Receipt of short term loan    -  327,303 

 Sta  Provident Fund       

 Payable to sta  provident fund     13,934  4,302 
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36. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVES, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES 

 The aggregate amount charged in these consolidated nancial statements for remuneration, including 
bene ts and perquisites, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Group are as follows: 

 
Chief 

Executives 
    Executive 

Director 
 

Executives  
 Total 

   2016   2015  2016   2015  2016   2015  2016   2015 
    (Rupees in ‘000)  

 
 Managerial remuneration 18,403  22,348  6,674  8,195  156,580  154,854  181,657  185,397 
 Housing and utilities 5,285  3,723  2,002  1,365  50,303  25,391  57,590  30,479 
 Leave fare assistance 1,467  7,057  556  2,595  13,043  51,094  15,066  60,746 
 Sta  retirement bene ts 2,935  1,861  1,112  685  25,887  12,659  29,934  15,205 
   28,090  34,989  10,344  12,840  245,813  243,998  284,247  291,827 

 Number of persons 3  3  1  1  151  136  155  140 

36.1 The Chief Executives and Executives have been provided company maintained cars. 

36.2 As at 30 June 2016, the Group's Board of Directors consists of 8 Directors (of which 7 are Non-
Executive Directors). Except for the Chief Executives and the Executive Director, no remuneration and 
other bene ts have been paid to any Director.  

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES     

 The Group nances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with 
a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of nances to minimize the risk. The 
Group's principal nancial instruments comprise loans from nancial institutions, short-term 
borrowings and trade and other payables. Main purpose of these nancial instruments is to raise funds 
for the import of crude oil for re ning business and for its operations. The Group has various nancial 
assets such as cash (including balances with banks), trade debtors, deposits, loans and advances, other 
receivables, etc. which are directly related to Group’s operations. 

  
 The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses on minimizing potential adverse e ects on the 

Group’s nancial performance. The overall risk management of the Group is carried out by the Group’s 
senior management team under policies approved by the Board of Directors. No changes were made in 
the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the year ended 30 June 2016. 
 
The policies for managing each of these risk are summarized below: 

  
37.1 Market risk 
  
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 

because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk. 

  
37.1.1 Interest rate risk 
  
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term 
nancing and short-term borrowing facilities for nancing its re ning business operations, loan to 

Coastal Re nery Limited (CRL) and meeting working capital requirements at variable rates as well as on 
delayed payments from PSO and K-Electric Limited on which the Group earns interest. The Group 
manages these mismatches through risk management policies where signi cant changes in gap 
position can be adjusted. 

  
 At the reporting date, the interest rate pro le of Group's interest-bearing nancial instruments was: 
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Variable Rate Instruments 

    
Note

 
 

  30 June 
 2016 

 30 June  
2015 

               (Rupees in '000)  
 Financial assets         
 Trade debts    6,132,327  5,840,642 
 Loan to the Parent Company    -  400,000 
 Long term loan to CRL    1,518,780  1,518,780 
     7,651,107  7,759,422 

        
 Financial liabilities         
 Long-term nancing and deferred mark-up  17  17,767,028  16,833,269 
 Short-term borrowings  23  6,593,696  3,264,912 
 Current portion of liabilities against asset  

subject to nance lease 
 18  

4,362 
 

6,700 
              24,365,086  20,104,881 

                  
 A change of 1% in interest rates at the year-end would have increased or decreased the loss before tax 

by Rs. 169.007 million (June 2015: Rs. 122.989 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables 
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 2015. 

37.1.2 Currency risk 
  
 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate 

due to changes in foreign exchange rates and arises where transactions are done in foreign currency. 
  
 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchase and borrowings that are denominated in a 

currency other than Pak Rupees. As the Group imports and exports nished petroleum products, it is 
exposed to currency risk. The currency is which these transactions are undertaken is US Dollar. 

  
 As at 30 June 2016, the Group is not exposed to any material foreign currency risk. 
  
37.1.3 Other price risk 
  
 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of the nancial instruments will 

uctuate because of changes in market prices. As at the balance sheet date, the Group is not exposed 
to any other price risk. 

  
37.2 Credit risk 
  
 Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss to the Group if a customer or a counter party to a nancial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables 
from customers and balances held with banks. The Group manages credit risk in the following manner: 

  
 Management of credit risk 
   
 The Group’s policy is to enter into nancial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board 

of Directors and other internal guidelines. 
   
 Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Group in the following manner: 
   
 - Credit rating and credit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the 

nancial background so as to minimize the risk of default.   

 - The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Group is 
mitigated by a periodic review of their credit ratings, nancial statements, credit worthiness and 
market information on a regular basis.   

 - Cash is held with reputable banks only.       
  
 As of the balance sheet date, the Group is exposed to credit risk on the following assets: 
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     Rupees in '000   
       
Long-term loans and advances  7  1,753,780  1,638,411  
Long-term deposits  8  31,332  31,068  
Trade debts  10  8,278,080  8,690,271  
Loans and advances  11  555,535  683,429  
Trade deposits  12  16,747  44,198  
Other receivables  13  1,276,715  1,660,951  
Interest accrued    353,193  435,888  
Cash and bank balances  14  240,330  692,425  
    12,505,712  13,876,641  
  
Credit quality of nancial assets  
  
The credit quality of nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to external credit ratings agencies or the historical information about counter party default 
rates as shown below: 

Note
30 June

2016
30 June 

2015

         
       
       
 Trade debts       
        
 The aging of unimpaired debtors at the balance sheet 

date is as follows: 
      

        
 Neither past due nor impaired    4,026,464  2,304,981 
 Past due 1-30 days    20,196  1,574,247 
 Past due 31-180 days    57,061  1,486,168 
 Past due 181 -365 days      1,010,007  737,798 
 Above 365 days    3,164,352  2,587,077 
     8,278,080  8,690,271 
        
 Bank balances       
 A-1+    22,486  116,869 
 A1+    119,307  455,373 
 A1    1,805  20,750 
 A-1    72,541  98,091 
 A2    24,191  259 
 C    -  909 
     240,330  692,251 
        
 Financial assets other than trade debts and bank balances are not exposed to any material credit risk. 
  
37.3 Liquidity risk 
  
 Liquidity risk re ects the Group’s inability in raising fund to meet commitments. Management closely 

monitors the Group’s liquidity and cash ow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet 
liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and 
avoidance of undue reliance on any individual customer. 

  
 The table below summarizes the maturity pro le of the Group's nancial liabilities based on contractual 

undiscounted payments. 

Rupees in '000

30 June
2016

30 June 
2015
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     On demand  Less than       

3 months 
 3 to 12    

months 
   Total 

     (Rupees in '000)  
 2016            
 Long-term loans and deferred mark-up  -  1,632,326  3,964,439  12,170,263  17,767,028 
 Liabilities against assets subject to nance lease  -  4,362  -  -  4,362 
 Long-term deposits    -  -  -  130,978  130,978 
 Trade and other payables   633,185  26,943,707  -  -  27,576,892 
 Short-term borrowings   347,303  6,593,696  -  -  6,940,999 
 Accrued mark-up    95,692  98,951  -  -  194,643 
     1,076,180  35,273,042  3,964,439  12,301,241  52,614,902 

     On demand  Less than       
3 months 

 3 to 12    
months 

   Total 

     (Rupees in '000)  
 2015            
 Long-term loans and deferred mark-up  -  -  3,900,058  12,933,211  16,833,269 
 Liabilities against assets subject to nance 

lease  
  

- 
  

1,193 
  

3,777 
  

1,730 
  

6,700 
 Long-term deposits    -  -  -  108,978  108,978 
 Trade and other payables   1,146  12,050,722  -  -  12,051,868 
 Short-term borrowings   -  3,264,912  -  -  3,264,912 
 Accrued mark-up    180,400  480,646  -  -  661,046 
     181,546  15,797,473  3,903,835  13,043,919  32,926,773 

1 to 5
years

1 to 5
years

37.4 Capital risk management       
        
 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital 

ratios in order to support its business sustain the development of the business and maximize the 
shareholders’ value. The Group closely monitors the return on capital. The Group manages its capital 
structure and makes adjustment to it in light of changes in economic conditions and nances its activities 
through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an approximate 
mix between various sources of nance to minimize the risk. No changes were made in the objectives, 
policies or processes during the year ended 30 June 2016. 

  
 The Group is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirement. 
  
38. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
  
 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between 

knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying values of all nancial assets and 
liabilities re ected in the nancial statements approximate their fair values. 
 
The following table shows nancial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose 
fair value is based on: 
 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, 
 
Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 
 
Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date 
(unobservable inputs). 
 
As of the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any nancial instruments measured at fair value. 

 
39.  OPERATING SEGMENTS          
  
 For management purposes, the Group has determined following reportable operating segments on the

basis of business activities i.e. oil re ning business, petroleum marketing businesses and petroleum 
storage services. Oil re ning business is engaged in crude oil re ning and selling of re ned petroleum 
products to oil marketing companies. Petroleum marketing business is engaged in trading of petroleum 
products, procuring products from oil re ning business as well as from other sources. Subsidiary 
Company (BTPL) is engaged in provision of bulk petroleum storage services. The quantitative data for 
segments is given below: 
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     2016 
    

Oil re ning 
business 

Petroleum 
marketing 
business 

Petroleum 
storage 
services Elimination Total 

     (Rupees in '000)  
 Revenue            
 Net sales to external customers  47,266,355  32,022,409  799,641  -  80,088,405 
 Inter-segment sales  27,605,723  -  549,426  (28,155,149)  - 
 Total revenue   74,872,078  32,022,409  1,349,067  (28,155,149)  80,088,405 
             
 Result            
 Segment pro t / (loss)  2,120,876  1,048,270  (634,518)    2,534,628 
            
 Unallocated expenses:            
 Other expenses           (980,367) 
 Finance costs          (2,778,621) 
 Interest income           756,159 
 Taxation           854,526 
 Pro t for the year          386,325 
             
 Segmental Assets  70,780,563  1,434,661  11,249,051  (27,620,672)  55,843,603 
 Unallocated Assets  -  -  -  -  - 
    70,780,563  1,434,661  11,249,051  (27,620,672)  55,843,603 
             
 Segmental Liabilities  48,790,204  1,195,786  6,877,064  1,180,621  58,043,675 
 Unallocated Liabilities  -  -  -  -  - 
    48,790,204  1,195,786  6,877,064  1,180,621  58,043,675 
             
 Capital expenditure  81,393  2,249  69,468  -  153,110 
             
 Other Information           
 Depreciation and amortization  2,027,614  37,643  405,764  -  2,471,021 
             
 
     2015  
    

Oil re ning 
business 

Petroleum 
marketing 
business 

Petroleum 
storage 
services Elimination Total 

     (Rupees in '000)  
 Revenue            
 Net sales to external customers  49,991,543  44,620,506  760,355  -  95,372,404 
 Inter-segment sales  39,290,096  -  401,601  (39,691,697)  - 
 Total revenue   89,281,639  44,620,506  1,161,956  (39,493,646)  95,372,404 
             
 Result            
 Segment pro t / (loss)  1,495,145  1,362,400  (323,639)    2,533,906 
            
 Unallocated expenses:            
 Other expenses           (805,332) 
 Finance costs          (3,413,267) 
 Interest income           746,750 
 Taxation           290,045 
 Loss for the year          (647,898) 
             
 Segmental Assets  62,469,621  4,919,590   11,323,856  (26,492,121)  52,220,946 
 Unallocated Assets  -  -  -  -  5,217,590 
    62,469,621  4,919,590  11,323,856  (26,492,121)  57,438,536 
             
 Segmental Liabilities  42,027,950  4,333,511  6,672,004  (2,520,842)  50,512,623 
 Unallocated Liabilities  -  -  -  -  9,512,259 
    42,027,950  4,333,511  6,672,004  (2,520,842)  60,024,882 
             
 Capital expenditure  587,984  11,597  371,690  (96,297)  874,974 
             
 Other Information           
 Depreciation and amortization  1,480,175  75,594  406,329  -  1,962,098 
             
 

40. PROVIDENT FUND DISCLOSURE         
          
 The Holding Company operates an approved funded contributory provident fund whereas a Subsidiary 

Company (BTPL) operates an unapproved funded contributory fund for both its management and non-
management employees. Details of net assets and investments of the fund is as follows: 

  

Four Oil Marketing Companies (OMCs) contributed 29.59% (30 June 2014: 34.85%) and an Associated 
Company contributed 6.47% (30 June 2014: 10.47%) to the net revenue of the Group during the year. 
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42. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES         

 The total number of employees as at 30 June 2016 were 305 (30 June 2015: 395) and average number of 
employees were 350 (30 June 2015: 419). 

43. RECLASSIFICATION         

 Following corresponding gures have been reclassi ed for better presentation:   
 

 From      To      (Rs. in '000) 

 Administrative expenses    Selling and distribution expenses   28,634 

44. GENERAL           

 Figures have been rounded o  to the nearest thousand of Rupees, unless otherwise stated. 

45. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE         

 These consolidated nancial statements were authorised for issue on 06th September 2016 by the Board 
of Directors of the Group. 

 

Mohammad Wasi Khan
Chief Executive 

Syed Arshad Raza
Director

              
            
              
              
 Size of the fund - net assets        143,979  162,512 
 Cost of investments made        111,908  120,443 
 Fair value of investments         128,885  132,520 
 Percentage of investments      78%  74% 
  
 The breakup of fair value of investments is :       
       2016  2015 
       (Rs in '000)   %  (Rs in '000)   % 
                 
 Bank deposits     39,846  30.92%  33,080  24.96% 
 Debt securities     24,881  19.30%  32,731  24.70% 
 Unit trust schemes     64,158  49.78%  66,709  50.34% 
       128,885  100%  132,520  100% 

The management, based on the unaudited nancial statements of the fund, is of the view that the 
investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 227 of 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose. 

 

41. CAPACITY AND ANNUAL PRODUCTION       

 Against the designed annual re ning capacity (based on 330 days) of 11.55 million barrels (2015: 11.55 
million barrels), the actual throughput during the year was 8.362 million barrels (2015: 9.55 million barrels). 
The Group operated the plant considering the level which gives optimal yield of products. 

30 June
2016

30 June
2015

Rupees in '000
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Shareholders Category 
 
   % 

Directors, Chief Executive O cer and their 
spouse and minor children. 8 19,800 0.00 

Associated Companies, Undertakings and 
Related Parties 1 790,510,099 80.84 
Executives 3 51,000 0.01 
NIT and ICP - - - 

Banks, Development Finance Institutions,  
Non-Banking Financial Institutions 7 2,437,567 0.25 
Insurance Companies 1 200 0.00 
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 12 1,142,500 0.12 
General Public 15,798 168,755,557 17.25 
Others 107 14,942,014 1.53 

TOTAL 15,937 977,858,737 100.00 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

Shareholders' Category 
  

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties(name wise details) 
Byco Oil Pakistan Limited 1 790,510,099  

Mutual Funds  (name wise detail)   
CDC - Trustee Dawood Islamic Fund 1 35,000 
CDC - Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund 1 59,000 

CDC - Trustee First Dawood Mutual Fund 1 35,000 

CDC - Trustee KSEMeezan Index Fund 1 371,500 
MCBFSL - Trustee Pak Oman Advantage Asset Allocation 
Fund 1 90,000 

MCBFSL - Trustee Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund 1 90,000 

Trustee Pak Qatar Family Takaful Limited Aggressive Fund 1 200,000 

Trustee Pak Qatar Family Takaful Limited Balance Fund (BF) 1 200,000 

Directors and their spouse and minor children (name wise details) 
Mr. Amir Abbassciy 1 2,500  
Mr. Muhammad Raza Hasnani 1 500  
Syed Arshad Raza 1 5,600 
Mrs. Uzma Abbassciy (wife of Mr. Amir Abbassciy) 1 5,600 

Mrs. Fazilay Ghulam Ali Raza (wife of Syed Arshad Raza) 1 5,600 

   

Executives 3 51,000 

   

Public Sector Companies and Corporations - - 
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking 
Finance companies, insurance companies, takaful, 
modarabas and pension funds. 13 2,509,233 

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting rights in the listed company 
(name wise details) 
Byco Oil Pakistan Limited 1 790,510,099  
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120000 
125000 

130000 

135000 

140000 

145000 

150000 

155000 

160000 

165000 

170000 

175000 

185000 

190000 

195000 

200000 

205000 

210000 

215000 

220000 

235000 

240000 

33,392  

1,068 ,511  

2,729,297  

16,759,447  

14,498,722  

7,404,235  

8,147,919  

6,609,207  

5,385,615  

3,674,083  

3,044,043  

1,985,620  

5,639,832  

2,196,970  

2,049,600  

  1,654,940  

1,854,550  

1,907,019  

1,718,480  

1,569,485  

1,949,630  

934,000  

5,583,196  

1,120,800  

1,638,90 0  

226,000  

950,000  
1,120,501  

648,500  

668,500  

555,100  

426,787  

2,544,300  

455,500  

478,000  

490,500  

1,179,530  

867,800  

364,500  

376,300  

191,986  

3,398,530  

203,000  

416,500  

    212,500  

434,000  

230,000  

236,000  

764  

2,390  

2,835  

5,840  

1,800  

569                                                             
442                                                            
281  

187  

111  

79  

46  

114  

41  

35  

26  

27  

26  

22  

19  

22  

10  

56  

11  

15  

2  
 
8  
9  

5  

5  

4  

3  

17  

3  

3  

3     
7  

5  

2  

2  

1  

17  

1  

2  

1  

2  

1  

1  
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240001 245000 243,143  

250001 255000 1,251,000  

260001 265000 262,000  
265001 270000 268,000  

275001 280000 550,000  

280001 285000 283,500  

285001 290000 288,500  
295001 300000 1,197,000  

320001 325000 320,000  

335001 340000 337,500  

355001 360000 357,000  

370001 375000 1,121,500  

380001 385000 380,000  

390001 395000 391,000  

395001 400000 397,000  

450001 455000 900,000  

465001 470000 465,500  

495001 500000 2,495,500  

500001 505000 1,007,500  

550001 555000 550,000  

580001 585000 581,000  

625001 630000 625,500  

650001 655000 1,307,000  

700001 705000 700,000  

705001 710000 706,000  

790001 795000 791,000  

860001 865000 862,000  

865001 870000 867,000  
870001 875000 872,554  

880001 885000 880,000  

900001 905000 900,000  

965001 970000 966,000  

1090001 1095000 1,092,500  

1115001  1120000 1,118,528  

1250001  1255000 1,250,000  
1340001 1345000 1,342,000  

1595001 1600000 1,595,500  

1615001 1620000 1,615,000  

1940001 1945000 1,944,086  

2320001 2325000 2,321,500  

2365001 2370000 2,368,500  

3000001 3005000 3,000,000  

4010001 4015000 4,011,000  

4080001 4085000 4,084,500  

4650001 4655000 4,650,000  

8000001 8005000 16,000,000  

790510001 790515000 790,510,099  

1  

5   
1  
1  

2  

1  

1  
4  

1  

1  

1  

3  

1  

1  

1  

2  

1  

5  

2  

1  

1  

1  

2  

1  

1  

1  

1  

1  
1  

1  

1  

1  

1                                                                             
1                                                                             
1   

1  

1                                                                             
1                                                                             
1                                                                             
1                                                                             
1                                                                             
1                                                                             
1  

1  

1  

2                                                                             
1                                                 
15,937    977,858,737  
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Notice is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General Meeting of Byco Petroleum Pakistan
Limited will be held on Wednesday, 26th October 2016 at 2:30 pm at the Moosa D. Desai
Audtorium, ICAP, Clifton, Karachi, to transact the following ordinary business:

1.  To con rm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
 29th August 2016. 

2.  To receive, consider and adopt the audited separate and consolidated nancial
 statements for the nancial year ended June 30th, 2016, together with the Directors’
 and Auditors’ reports thereon.

3. To re-appoint the auditors and to x their remuneration for the nancial year 2016-17. 

NOTES:

Book Closure
 
The register of members and the share
transfer books of the Company will remain
closed from Wednesday, 19th October 2016
until Wednesday, 26th October 2016.

Participation in the Meeting

Only persons whose names appear in the
register of members of the Company as on
Tuesday, 18th October 2016, are entitled
to attend, participate in, and vote at the
Meeting. A member entitled to attend and
vote may appoint another member as proxy
to attend and vote on their behalf. Proxies

the Company not less than 48 hours before
the time for holding the Meeting. A form of
proxy is included in the Annual Report.

Notice to Members Who Have Not
 Provided CNIC Copies

As directed by the SECP through its Circular
No. EMD/D-II/Misc./2009-1342 of 4th April
2013, dividend warrants cannot be issued 
without valid CNICs. Through the Company’s
letter of 4th April 2014, members were advised
to submit copies of their valid CNICs. In the
absence of a member’s valid CNIC, the
Company will be constrained to withhold
dispatch of dividend to such members.

and have not yet submitted their valid CNICs,
are once again advised to submit attested
copies of their valid CNIC along with their
folio numbers to the Company’s Share
Registrar, Messrs FAMCO Associates
(Private) Limited, 8F, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S.,
Nursery next to Hotel Faran,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Majid Muqtadir
Company Secretary

6th September 2016
Karachi

22nd
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Audited Financial Statements Through Email

Pursuant to SRO No. 787(1)2014, dated 8th 
September 2014, the SECP has allowed
circulation of Audited Financial Statements
along with the Notice of the Annual General 
Meeting to the members via email.
Therefore, all members who wish to receive a
soft copy of Annual Report may send their
email addresses to the Company Secretary.
A consent form for electronic transmission
may be downloaded from the Company’s 
website:www.byco.com.pk. A hard copy of
the Audited Financial Statements will be
provided to members on request, free of
cost, within seven days.

Change of Address and Non-Deduction of
Zakat Declaration Form

notify any change in their registered address
and, if applicable, submit their non-deduction of 
Zakat Declaration Form to the Company’s
Shares Registrar. Members holding shares in
CDC / Participants accounts are also requested
to update their addresses and, if applicable, 
submit their non-deduction of Zakat
Declaration Form to CDC or their Participants / 
Stock Brokers.

Guidelines for CDC Account Holders:

CDC account holders should comply with the 
following guidelines of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

A For Attendance at the Meeting

(a) Individuals should be account holder(s) or  
 sub-account holder(s) and their registration  
 details should be uploaded as per CDC
 regulations and they must establish their
 identity by presenting their original
 Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)
 or passport at the time of the Meeting. 

(b) Corporate entities should at the time of the
 Meeting, unless provided earlier, produce a

 Directors, or a Power of Attorney bearing
 the specimen signature of the attorney. 

B For Appointing Proxies

(a) Individuals should be account holder(s) or
 sub-account holder(s) whose registration
 details should be uploaded as per CDC

 regulations and their proxy forms must be

 Company not less than 48 hours before the
 time for holding the Meeting.

(b) The proxy form must be attested by two
 persons whose names, addresses, and
 CNIC numbers must be mentioned therein. 

(c) Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of

 furnished along with the form of proxy. 

(d) Proxies must produce their original CNIC or
 passport at the time of the Meeting. 

(e) Corporate entities should at the time of the
 Meeting, unless provided earlier, produce a

 Directors, or a Power of Attorney bearing
 thespecimen signature of the attorney.

22nd





Majid Muqtadir
Company Secretary

The 22nd Annual General Meeting of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited will be held on 
Wednesday, 26th October 2016 at 2:30 pm at Moosa D. Desai Auditorium, ICAP, Clifton-
Karachi. 
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 The Company Secretary 
22ndAnnual General Meeting Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited 

9th Floor, The Harbour Front, Dolmen City 
HC-3, Block-4, Marine Drive, Clifton 
Karachi-75600 

I / We_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

of _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

being member(s) of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited and holder(s) of ______________________________ 

________________________________ordinary shares, hereby appoint __________________________________ 

of _____________________________ or failing him / her _____________________________________________ 

of ____________________________________, who is / are also member(s) of Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited, 

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote on my / our behalf at the 22ndAnnual General Meeting 

of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 26th October 2016 and in case of adjournment, at any reconvened 

Meeting. 

Signed / Seal and Delivered by________________________________________________________________ 

in the presence of: 

1. Name:  __________________________ 2. Name: __________________________ 

CNIC No.: __________________________  CNIC No.:  __________________________ 

Address: __________________________  Address:  __________________________ 

 __________________________   __________________________ 

________________________ ____________________________ 
Folio No. / CDC Account No. This signature should tally with the 

specimen signature in the  
Company’s record 

Important 

1. The duly completed and signed proxy form must be received at the registered o ce of the Company at 9thFloor, The Harbour
Front, Dolmen City, HC-3, Block-4, Marine Drive, Clifton, Karachi-75600, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
Meeting. 

2. Only members of the Company may be appointed proxies except corporate members who may appoint non-members as 
their proxy. 

3. If more than one proxy is appointed by an instrument or more than one instrument of proxy is deposited by any member, all
such instruments shall be rendered invalid. 

For CDC account holder(s) / corporate entities 
In addition to the above, the following requirements must be met: 

i) the execution of the proxy form should be attested by two witnesses, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall
appear in the form; 

ii) attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the bene cial owner and proxy should be submitted along with the proxy form; 

iii) the proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of the Meeting; and 

iv) Corporate entities should at the time of the Meeting, unless provided earlier, produce a certi ed copy of a resolution of the 
Board of Directors, or a Power of Attorney bearing the specimen signature of the attorney. 



Mr. Majid Muqtadir
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